
 
 

 

 

CABINET 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday, 11 July 2012 
 
The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, 

NN1 1DE. 
 

6:00 pm 
 

 
 
 
Members of the Cabinet: 

 
Councillor: David Mackintosh (Leader of the Council) 

Councillor: John Caswell (Deputy Leader) 

Councillors: Alan Bottwood, Tim Hadland, Mary Markham, Brandon Eldred.  

 
Chief Executive David Kennedy 

 
 
If you have any enquiries about this agenda please contact 
democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk or 01604 837722  
 



 
PORTFOLIOS OF CABINET MEMBERS 
 

CABINET MEMBER TITLE 

Councillor D Mackintosh Leader 
 

Councillor J Caswell Deputy Leader 
Environment 

Councillor A Bottwood Finance 
 

Councillor T Hadland Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning 
 

Councillor M Markham Housing 
 

Councillor B Eldred Community Engagement 
 

 

 
SPEAKING AT CABINET MEETINGS 
Persons (other than Members) wishing to address Cabinet must register their intention to do so by 12 noon on the day of 
the meeting and may speak on any item on that meeting’s agenda. 
 
Registration can be by: 
 
Telephone:  (01604) 837722 
   (Fax 01604 838729) 
 
In writing:  Democratic Services Manager 

The Guildhall, St Giles Square, Northampton NN1 1DE 
For the attention of the Democratic Services Officer 
 

By e-mail to  democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk 
 
Only thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses, so that if speakers each take three minutes no more than ten 
speakers will be heard.  Each speaker will be allowed to speak for a maximum of three minutes at each meeting.  Speakers 
will normally be heard in the order in which they registered to speak.  However, the Chair of Cabinet may decide to depart 
from that order in the interest of hearing a greater diversity of views on an item, or hearing views on a greater number of 
items.  The Chair of Cabinet may also decide to allow a greater number of addresses and a greater time slot subject still to 
the maximum three minutes per address for such addresses for items of special public interest. 
 
Members who wish to address Cabinet shall notify the Chair prior to the commencement of the meeting and may speak on 
any item on that meeting’s agenda.  Such addresses will be for a maximum of three minutes unless the Chair exercises 
discretion to allow longer.  The time these addresses take will not count towards the thirty minute period referred to above 
so as to prejudice any other persons who have registered their wish to speak. 
 

KEY DECISIONS 
 � denotes the issue is a ‘Key’ decision: 
 
• Any decision in relation to the Executive function* which results in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the 

making of saving which are significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 
decision relates. For these purpose the minimum financial threshold will be £250,000;   

 

• Where decisions are not likely to involve significant expenditure or savings but nevertheless are likely to be significant 
in terms of their effects on communities in two or more wards or electoral divisions; and 

 

• For the purpose of interpretation a decision, which is ancillary or incidental to a Key decision, which had been 
previously taken by or on behalf of the Council shall not of itself be further deemed to be significant for the purpose of 
the definition. 

 



 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

CABINET 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held: 
 

in The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE. 
 

on Wednesday, 11 July 2012 
 

at 6:00 pm. 
 

D Kennedy 
Chief Executive  

AGENDA 

 
1. APOLOGIES   
 

2. MINUTES   

(Copy herewith)  
 

3. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES   
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES   
 

(A) OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY: SCRUTINY PANEL: CUSTOMER 
SERVICES   

Report of the Chair of Scrutiny Panel 3 (Copy herewith)  
 

6. ENTERPRISE ZONE- RATE RELIEF   

� Report of Director of Resources (Copy herewith)  
 

7. LAND AT SIXFIELDS - DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY   

� Report of Interim Director – Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning (Copy herewith)   
 

8. LAND AT EAGLE DRIVE, DELAPRE   

� Report of Interim Director – Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning (Copy herewith).   
 

9. ROYAL AND DERNGATE   

� Report of Director of Resources (Copy herewith).   
 

10. FINANCE AND MONITORING OUTTURN REPORT   

� Report of Director of Resources (Copy herewith)  
 

11. CORPORATE PERFORMANCE OUTTURN REPORT 2011/12   

� Report of Director of Resources (Copy herewith)   
 

12. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   



THE CHAIR TO MOVE: 
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE REMAINDER OF THE 
MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO 
THEM OF SUCH CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS LISTED AGAINST 
SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH 
OF SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”  
 

 SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA 
 

 Exempted Under Schedule  
12A of L.Govt Act 1972 
Para No:- 



 
 

 
 



1 
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 9 May 2012 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 

 

Wednesday, 9 May 2012 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Mackintosh (Chair); Councillor Caswell (Deputy Chair); 

Councillors  Eldred, Hadland and Markham 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Councillor Bottwood.  
 

2. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 18th April 2012 were agreed and signed by the 
Chair.   
 

3. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES 

There were none.   
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.   
 

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

5.A OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY REPORT: SCRUTINY PANEL 2: INDEPENDENT 
LIVING STRATEGY 

Councillor Marriot as the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny introduced the Chair of Scrutiny 
Panel 2: Independent Living Strategy - Councillor Mason .He stated that there had been a 
lot of interest in the report which had received positive publicity and that the report had also 
been presented at conferences. Councillor Mason commented that the report had been very 
in depth and had taken over 8 months to compile, with evidence having been gathered from 
a variety of sources, including the council’s Pensioners Forum, Age UK Northamptonshire 
County Council and the Health Service. She emphasised that older people wanted to be 
part of the solution and that she would like to see Northampton as a good place to grow old. 
She stated that at the crux of the evidence of the findings was the need for joined up 
working with other agencies and partners and for this purpose a co-opted member had sat 
on the panel. 
 
The Leader thanked Councillor Mason for her work and concurred that there was a need for 
co-operative working with other agencies to achieve the most positive outcome.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
Cabinet noted the contents of the report.  
  

5.B OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY REPORT: SCRUTINY PANEL 1: HATE CRIME 

Councillor Marriot as the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny introduced the Chair of Scrutiny 
Panel 1: Hate crime- Councillor Glynane. Councillor Glynane commented that this had been 
another good piece of scrutiny work which echoed the cross party working mentioned by 
Councillor Mason. He commented that the Council had been proactive with regards to the 
training of front line staff in recognising and dealing with people who were victims of Hate 
Crime. It was noted that the Council produced a report annually, which identified areas that 

Agenda Item 2

1



2 
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 9 May 2012 

where the Council were performing well and where necessary improvements had been 
made. He also suggested that consideration be given to endorsing a Councillor who would 
act as a Hate Crime Champion who would work alongside the Councils Safeguarding 
Group. 
 
The Leader expressed his appreciation of the work that had been undertaken by the panel 
and agreed that cross party collaboration was necessary in progressing. He reported that he 
had written to the Leader and Chief Executive of Northamptonshire County Council to 
address the issues laid out in the report. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
Cabinet noted the contents of the report. 
  
  

6. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

The Chair moved that the public and Press be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
on the grounds that there was likely to be disclosure to them of such categories of exempt 
information as defined by Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 as listed against 
such items of business by reference to the appropriate paragraph of Schedule 12A to such 
Act. 
 
The Motion was Carried.  
 

The meeting concluded at 6.10pm 
 
 

2



O & S Report to Cabinet Template/03/07/12 

 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY VIEWS AND 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET   

  
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 

 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date:   
 
 

Directorate:                    
 

  
11 July 2012 
 
Customer and Communities 
  
 

 

1.  Purpose 

 
1.1 To present to Cabinet for consideration, the comments and recommendations 

of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the findings of the Review – 
Customer Services. 

 
1.2 The Executive Summary to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s report is 

attached at Appendix A.  Members of Cabinet have been issued with a copy of 
the full report.  All Overview and Scrutiny Review reports are published on the 
Overview and Scrutiny page on the Council’s Webpage and a copy of the this 
report can be located: www.northampton.gov.uk/scrutiny - Previous Scrutiny 
Reviews. 

 
1.3 The purpose of the Scrutiny Panel was to evaluate all customer services with 

a review of the customer contact centre, customer satisfaction and the 
refurbished and extended one stop shop. 

 
1.4 The Scrutiny Panel highlights that over the last two years there has been            

significant improvements made and new and innovative improvements           
introduced. This Scrutiny Review demonstrates the importance of good 
quality customer services to each and every customer.  The Scrutiny Panel 
has put forward a series of recommendations to Cabinet that it feels will 
further develop and improve customer services facilities at Northampton 
Borough Council: 

 
 
 
 
 

Report Title 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – CUSTOMER SERVICES 

Appendices: 

1 

Agenda Item 5a

3



O & S Report to Cabinet Template/03/07/12 

2.       Recommendations 

 
2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends to Cabinet: 
 
2.2 That funding for improved signage both outside and inside the Guildhall be 

made available, particularly in relation to signs for housing and registrars; with 
a particular focus on the improvement of signage around the old building of 
the Guildhall. 

 
2.3 That floor walkers, located in the One Stop Shop, be provided with a uniform 

that makes them and their role clearly identifiable to customer. 
 
2.4 That funding for additional uniforms for front line Customer Services Officers 

be investigated.  
 
2.5 That the uniforms provided for front line Customer Services Officer identify the 

corporate image of the Council.   
 
2.6 That the plasma screens in situ in the One Stop Shop be utilised to broadcast 

news channels which can be done at no extra cost to the Council. 
 
2.7 That those departments not currently delivered through Customer Services, 

such as Planning, Building Control and Licensing be brought into Customer 
Services for “first contact”, to apply customer services skills, to enable the 
channel shift strategy to be fully applied to calls/visits in relation to these 
departments. 

 
2.8 That Planning Services is incorporated into the One Stop Shop and the 

Planning Reception desk is constantly manned during opening hours by a fully 
trained Customer Services Advisor. 

 
2.9 That, with a particular focus on the entrances and exits, the layout of the One 

Stop Shop be altered to improve customer flow and further support channel 
shift. 

 
2.10 That funding is identified for a further automatic ticketing machine to support 

the improved layout and increase the number of floor walkers. 
 
2.11 That in order to reduce the time the process takes, the volume of evidence 

requested from customers in relation to housing applications is reduced and 
evidence is only sought upon offer of accommodation to validate the 
information given. 

 
2.12 That a project be undertaken to assess the feasibility and cost implications of 

extending the hours of the contact centre and One Stop shop from 8.30am to 
5.30pm, Monday to Friday. 

 
2.13 That the mystery shopping exercise is repeated, including the Centres under 

the management of the Northampton Leisure Trust, and that in order to 
achieve consistency the same questions should be used and repeated on a 
regular basis. 

 

4



O & S Report to Cabinet Template/03/07/12 

2.14 That further methods of communication both to and from the Council, such as 
social media sites and short messaging services be investigated; with a 
special focus to pre-empting messaging regarding local issues. 

 
2.15 That in recognising that more customers may seek assistance due to the 

current economic climate and a number of changes to the benefits system a 
priority queuing system be introduced. 

 
2.16 That the area of the One Stop Shop located around the Planning reception 

desk be better utilised for use by customers. 
 
2.17 That it be ensured that Neighbourhood Wardens share all relevant data and 

information with EMS. 
 
2.18 That a tour of the EMS site be incorporated into the Councillor Induction 

Package so that Councillors are aware of all the processes and procedures in 
place. 

 
2.19 That tours of the EMS site be arranged for all front line Customer Services 

Officers to further aid them in answering queries and providing information to 
the public.   

 
2.20 That Equality and Multi-cultural Awareness continues to have a high priority 

for Induction and on going training of Customer Services Advisors, recognising 
the skills and knowledge required of Advisors dealing with a very diverse 
range of customers.   

 
2.21 That a Protocol be produced for all NBC staff to follow that details clear 

guidelines, including the wearing the appropriate PPE, when visiting the site at 
EMS. 

 
2.22 That improvements be made to the signage at Westbridge depot, with a 

particular focus regarding signage for the EMS site. 
 
2.23 That, where budgets permit, the GPS in-cab system is extended more widely 

to appropriate departments. 
 
2.24 That the Scrutiny Panel informs Cabinet that it recognises the value of a 

shared customer service for both the customer and the organisation. 
 
2.25 That a copy of the updated Customer Excellence Strategy 2009-2012 be 

circulated to the Panel when finalised. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



O & S Report to Cabinet Template/03/07/12 

 
3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1  Northampton Borough Council’s (NBC) ambition is to become one of the best 

Councils in terms of public service by 2013; one of the key management aims 
that will contribute to achieving this is to provide excellent customer service.  By 
focusing on the delivery of Customer Services at NBC, the Panel contributed 
ideas to an area of particular interest and focus for Cabinet.  

 
3.1.2  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed at its work programming event in 

June 2011 to include a review of Customer Services to its work programme for 
2011/2012 and commissioned Scrutiny Panel 3 to undertake the review.   A 
short, sharp review commenced in January 2012 concluded in May 2012. 

 
 

3.1.3  A Scrutiny Panel was established comprising Councillor Mike Hallam (Chair); 
Councillors Tony Ansell, Dennis Meredith, David Palethorpe, Terry Wire and 
County Councillor Marion Minney (co-optee).   

 
3.1.4  This review links to the Council’s corporate priorities - Corporate priority: CP9 – 

Satisfying our customers. 
 
3.1.5   The Scrutiny Panel agreed that the following needed to be investigated and 

linked to the realisation of the Council’s corporate priorities: 
 
i. Baseline data 
ii. Data from other Local Authorities 
iii. Published Guidance  
iv. Evidence from internal Officers 
v. Evidence from appropriate external witnesses 
vi. Evidence from partners 
vii. Site visits and desktop research 
viii. Focus Group 

 
3.1.6 The work of this Scrutiny Panel followed on from the previous Scrutiny review 

that had been undertaken late in 2008 that had looked at customer services 
facilities throughout the Council with the purpose of putting forward 
recommendations for improvement.  All of the recommendations contained within 
that Overview and Scrutiny report were accepted by Cabinet and implemented.  
Following on from this Review, Overview and Scrutiny agreed that there was a 
need to evaluate the impact of the improvements introduced. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



O & S Report to Cabinet Template/03/07/12 

 
3.2     Conclusions 
 
3.2.1        After all of the evidence was collated the following conclusions were drawn: 
 
3.2.2     It was highlighted that over the last two years there have been significant 

improvements made within customer services and new and innovative 
improvements introduced, although it was recognised that there are still some 
further limited improvements that could be made to help improve both 
customer satisfaction and the customer experience. .  This Scrutiny Review 
demonstrates the importance of good quality customer services. 

 
3.2.3       In considering the data for the mystery shopping exercise, the Panel felt that 

the mystery shopping exercise should be repeated, including the Centres 
under the management of the  Northampton Leisure Trust, and that in order 
to achieve consistency the same questions should be used. It welcomed the 
re-establishment of the Northamptonshire Customer Services Group so that 
different members would be able to mystery shop each other. 

 
3.2.3      The Panel acknowledged that the Customer Excellence Strategy 2009-2012 

was being updated; to reflect the fact that there was no longer a separate site 
at Cliftonville and also the implementation of the Northampton Leisure Trust.  

 
3.2.4       Satisfaction scores for Northampton Borough Council (NBC) were welcomed. 

On an average basis is 85%. This compared to the national average of 75% 
for public sector services.   

3.2.5         In considering the desktop research exercise, the Panel concluded that:: 
 

a) Targets for customer services were similar 
b) Some Local Authorities offer additional points of contact such as text 

message and live chat 
c) In the main the most frequent form of contact was telephone 
d) Costs of dealing with customers were provided by Rugby Borough 

Council who also provided details of the average costs that had been 
provided via a channel benchmarking group: 

 

3.2.6    The value of a shared customer service for both the customer and the 
organisation was recognised. 

 
3.2.7      The importance of various methods for the customer to contact the Council 

was highlighted.  It was acknowledged that external organisations and the 
Northampton Leisure Trust provided other methods such as social media 
sites and short messaging services as a form of contact.  Social media is a 
method to quickly disseminate information. 

 
3.2.8      Migration of services to Customer Services provides value for money due to 

optimal use of agent’s time.  Therefore the Panel recognised that more 
technical departments could be incorporated into the call centre for "first 
contact" to enable the channel shift strategy to be fully applied to these calls 
too. 

 

7



O & S Report to Cabinet Template/03/07/12 

 
3.2.9      It was acknowledged that flow of people into the One Stop Shop is not normally 

monitored, but had been manually counted for a month. 
  
3.2.10     The Panel emphasised the need for improved signage, in particular directing 

customers to the Registrars.  Signage must be clear, precise and displayed in 
an appropriate time frame. The provision of signage at Danes Camp was 
commended.  Signage at Rugby Borough Council was perceived as very 
good and informative: 

 
3.2.11     Positive feedback was received from the survey of Councillors of Northampton 

Borough Council regarding their experiences of the Contact Centre.  
However, one Councillor indicated the automated telephone system was 
rather slow when the caller needed to contact a particular officer or service 
area. 

 
3.2.12    The Panel highlighted that public perceptions of how they were dealt with 

within the service area is vital, irrespective of whether people receive the 
outcome that they want.  They should feel that best efforts have been made 
to help them. It was accepted that there might be an issue regarding 
managing people’s expectations of service. 

 
3.2.13    It was realised that due to the current economic climate and a number of 

changes being introduced to the benefits system, more people will be seeking 
help, therefore there is a need to prioritise queries. 

 
3.2.14    Queries from customers to the One Stop Shop, such as homeless and rough 

sleepers can be very challenging for staff and disruptive to other customers. 
 
3.2.15    The Panel felt that it was important that the floorwalkers, located in the One 

Stop Shop, were easily identifiable. 
 
3.2.16   It was highlighted that first impressions count. The Panel felt that this is 

demonstrated by staff being very positive and friendly, smart and efficient.  
There is a need for uniforms to be replaced regularly to ensure that staff are 
always of smart appearance. 

  
3.2.17     The Panel noted the recommendation of the previous Customer Services Task 

and Finish Group “That resources be allocated for the provision of uniforms 
for frontline Customer Services Officers, identifying a corporate image. Staff 
be consulted on the style of the uniform.”  The Panel felt that the uniforms 
provided did not clearly identify the corporate image. 

 
3.2.18    The Panel supported the broadcasting of news channels in One Stop Shop at 

Rugby Borough Council, noting that as long as the Authority has a television 
licence there is no cost to providing this. 

 
3.2.19   The Panel realised that there is difference between the customer base of 

commercial organisations and that of Local Authorities. The customer base of 
Local Authorities is fixed. The Panel emphasises that if the majority of staff 
are happy, the workplace is a better and more productive environment and 
fits for both a commercial organisation and a Local Authority. There is also 

8



O & S Report to Cabinet Template/03/07/12 

the element of corporate responsibility and promoting good citizenship.  
 
3.2.20     The Panel was concerned at the numbers of single homeless people that were 

presenting to the Council. It was noted that although it is not a statutory duty 
to re-house them unless they are within a vulnerable category, staff made an 
effort to help and advice them. It was noted that numbers presenting to the 
Council could increase as a result of the Welfare Reform Act 2012, which will 
increase the pressure on staff. 

 
3.2.21    The area of the One Stop Shop where the Planning desk is located could be 

better utilised and it was felt that there should be a clearly signed designated 
area in the One Stop Shop for Planning. 

 
3.2.22   The Panel recognised the need for interface with the Lagan System of reporting 

and the system used by EMS so that queries can be easily shared and 
supported the upgrading of the system.   

 

3.2.23    It was felt that good links between Neighbourhood wardens and EMS would 
improve customer services. 

 
3.2.24    The Panel agreed that a better customer service will be provided if less Agency 

staff are engaged at EMS as there had been problems with the attitude of 
some Agency staff particularly in respect of spillages at the side of the lorry 
but understood that a staffing structure was currently being investigated which 
would involve the engagement of less Agency staff. 

 
3.2.25   The Panel supported the introduction of new technology that EMS is introducing 

to the lorries which details information such as the street, which households 
require assisted collection. The operator can detail whether bins are put out 
on the specified day.  This technology will soon connect to the Customer 
Services system at NBC which was felt to be very useful. 

 

3.2.26      The Panel supported the education package offered by the Northampton 
Waste Partnership. It is a good customer service practice. 

 
3.2.27     Tours of the EMS site would be useful for both Customer Services Officers 

and Councillors at NBC so that they are aware of all the processes carried out 
by EMS. This would help them in their role answering queries and providing 
information to the public.   

 
3.2.28      Health and Safety is a key priority of EMS.  It was considered to be important 

that all staff and visitors to the site adhere to the wearing of the appropriate 
PPE when on site.  

 
3.2.29 The Panel recognised that the most inexpensive method of contact was via 

the Internet. It was realised that channel shift to other methods such as the 
Internet would only apply to those customers who are happy with this   

 
 
 
 
 

9



O & S Report to Cabinet Template/03/07/12 

 
3.2.30 Upon conclusion of its Review, the Scrutiny Panel put forward a series of 

recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for its 
consideration: 

 
a) That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee undertakes a Scrutiny Review 

of customer services provided by EMS in relation to the environmental 
services contract. 

 
b) That, in recognising that customer services is a continuous improvement 

process, this Scrutiny Panel reconvenes in 2014 to evaluate all customer 
services provided by Northampton Borough Council. 

 
c) That a Scrutiny Review is set up to assess the impact on the Council of 

the Welfare Reform Act 2012. 
 

d) That a copy of this Overview and Scrutiny Review be circulated to all 
those involved in the Review. 

 
e) That the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee contacts all those 

involved in this Review, informing them of Cabinet’s response to the 
recommendations and provides continuous feedback at regular intervals 
regarding the implementation of the accepted recommendations. 

 
f) That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, as part of its monitoring 

regime, reviews the impact of this report in six months time. 
 
 
3.3           Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1      Cabinet will need to consider the possible options as part of its response to 

the recommendations. 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1           Policy 
 
4.1.1         The work of Overview and Scrutiny plays a major part in the development 

of the Council’s policy framework through its work programme. 
 
4.1.2         The report and its recommendations have policy implications in relation to 

Customer Services.   Cabinet’s response will need to consider these 
issues in detail. 

 
4.2           Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1 Cabinet will need to consider the resourcing issues for the 

recommendations made. 
 
 
 
 

10



O & S Report to Cabinet Template/03/07/12 

 
4.3           Legal 
  
4.3.1 Legal issues will need to be considered as part of Cabinet’s response to 

the recommendations. 
 
4.4          Equality 
 
4.4.1       Equality issues will need to be considered as part of Cabinet’s response to 

the recommendations. 
 
4.5           Consultees (Internal and External) 

 
4.5.1 The Scrutiny Panel consulted and took evidence from a variety of sources 

as detailed in paragraph 3.1.5 of this report. 

 
5.               Background Papers 

 
 
 • Overview and Scrutiny Committee Report – Customer Services  

      (May 2012 

• Minutes of the meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
– 28 May 2012 

 
 
 
 
 

Tracy Tiff- Overview and Scrutiny Officer - 7408 
(On behalf of Cllr Marriot – Chair of O and S) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

11



  

Appendix 1 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of the Review was to evaluate all customer services with a review of the 
customer contact centre, customer satisfaction and the refurbished and extended one stop 
shop. 
  
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed at its work programming event in June 2011 
to include a Review of Customer Services to its work programme for 2011/2012 and 
commissioned Scrutiny Panel 3 to undertake the Review.    
 
A Scrutiny Panel was established comprising Councillor Mike Hallam (Chair); Councillors 
Tony Ansell, Dennis Meredith, David Palethorpe, Terry Wire and County Councillor Marion 
Minney (co-optee). The Review commenced in January 2012 and the Scrutiny Panel 
concluded its work in May 2012. 
  
It was highlighted that over the last two years there have been significant improvements 
made within customer services throughout that the Council and new and innovative 
improvements have been made.  This Scrutiny Review demonstrates the importance of 
good quality customer services to each and every customer  
  

 
     CONCLUSIONS AND KEY FINDINGS 
 

 
A considerable amount of evidence was heard, details of which are contained in 
the report.  After gathering evidence the Scrutiny Panel established that: - 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.3 
 
 
 
5.1.4 
 

It was highlighted that over the last two years there have been significant 
improvements made within customer services and new and innovative improvements 
introduced, although it was recognised that there are still some further limited 
improvements that could be made to help improve both customer satisfaction and the 
customer experience. .  This Scrutiny Review demonstrates the importance of good 
quality customer services. 
 
In considering the data for the mystery shopping exercise, the Panel felt that the 
mystery shopping exercise should be repeated, including the Centres under the 
management of the  Northampton Leisure Trust, and that in order to achieve 
consistency the same questions should be used. It welcomed the re-establishment 
of the Northamptonshire Customer Services Group so that different members would 
be able to mystery shop each other. 
 
The Panel acknowledged that the Customer Excellence Strategy 2009-2012 was 
being updated; to reflect the fact that there was no longer a separate site at 
Cliftonville and also the implementation of the Northampton Leisure Trust.  
 
The satisfaction scores for Northampton Borough Council (NBC) were welcomed. 
On an average basis is 85%. This compared to the national average of 75% for 

This Review links to the Council’s corporate priorities - Corporate priority: CP9 – 
Satisfying our customers. 
 

12



  

 
 
5.1.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.6 
 
 
5.1.7 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.8 
 
 
 
 
5.1.9 
 
 
5.1.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

public sector services.   
 
In considering the desktop research exercise, the Panel concluded that:: 
 

I. Targets for customer services were similar 
II. Some Local Authorities offer additional points of contact such as text 

message and live chat 
III. In the main the most frequent form of contact was telephone 
IV. Costs of dealing with customers were provided by Rugby Borough Council 

who also provided details of the average costs that had been provided via 
a channel benchmarking group: 

 

Channel SOCITM 
 
£ 

NWEGG - Channel Value 
Benchmarking 
£ 

Average  
 
£ 

Web £0.39 £0.17 £0.28 

Telephone £3.21 £4.00 £3.65 

Face to 
Face 

£8.23 £7.81 £8.02 

 
The value of a shared customer service for both the customer and the organisation 
was recognised. 
 
The importance of various methods for the customer to contact the Council was 
highlighted.  It was acknowledged that external organisations and the Northampton 
Leisure Trust provided other methods such as social media sites and short 
messaging services as a form of contact.  Social media is a method to quickly 
disseminate information. 
 
Migration of services to Customer Services provides value for money due to optimal 
use of agent’s time.  Therefore the Panel recognised that more technical 
departments could be incorporated into the call centre for "first contact" to enable 
the channel shift strategy to be fully applied to these calls too. 
 
It was acknowledged that flow of people into the One Stop Shop is not normally 
monitored, but had been manually counted for a month. 
  
The Panel emphasised the need for improved signage, in particular directing 
customers to the Registrars.  Signage must be clear, precise and displayed in an 
appropriate time frame. The provision of signage at Danes Camp was commended.  
Signage at Rugby Borough Council was perceived as very good and informative: 

 
 
Positive feedback was received from the survey of Councillors of Northampton 

13



  

5.1.11 
 
 
 
 
5.1.12 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.13 
 
 
 
5.1.14 
 
 
5.1.15 
 
 
5.1.16 
 
 
 
 
5.1.17 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.18 
 
 
 
5.1.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.21 
 

Borough Council regarding their experiences of the Contact Centre.  However, one 
Councillor indicated the automated telephone system was rather slow when the 
caller needed to contact a particular officer or service area. 
 
The Panel highlighted that public perceptions of how they were dealt with within the 
service area is vital, irrespective of whether people receive the outcome that they 
want.  They should feel that best efforts have been made to help them. It was 
accepted that there might be an issue regarding managing people’s expectations of 
service. 
 
It was realised that due to the current economic climate and a number of changes 
being introduced to the benefits system, more people will be seeking help, therefore 
there is a need to prioritise queries. 
 
Queries from customers to the One Stop Shop, such as homeless and rough 
sleepers can be very challenging for staff and disruptive to other customers. 
 
The Panel felt that it was important that the floorwalkers, located in the One Stop 
Shop, were easily identifiable. 
 
It was highlighted that first impressions count. The Panel felt that this is 
demonstrated by staff being very positive and friendly, smart and efficient.  There is 
a need for uniforms to be replaced regularly to ensure that staff are always of smart 
appearance. 
  
The Panel noted the recommendation of the previous Customer Services Task and 
Finish Group “That resources be allocated for the provision of uniforms for frontline 
Customer Services Officers, identifying a corporate image. Staff be consulted on the 
style of the uniform.”  The Panel felt that the uniforms provided did not clearly 
identify the corporate image. 
 
The Panel supported the broadcasting of news channels in One Stop Shop at 
Rugby Borough Council, noting that as long as the Authority has a television licence 
there is no cost to providing this. 
 
The Panel realised that there is difference between the customer base of 
commercial organisations and that of Local Authorities. The customer base of Local 
Authorities is fixed. The Panel emphasises that if the majority of staff are happy, the 
workplace is a better and more productive environment and fits for both a 
commercial organisation and a Local Authority. There is also the element of 
corporate responsibility and promoting good citizenship.  
 
The Panel was concerned at the numbers of single homeless people that were 
presenting to the Council. It was noted that although it is not a statutory duty to re-
house them unless they are within a vulnerable category, staff made an effort to 
help and advice them. It was noted that numbers presenting to the Council could 
increase as a result of the Welfare Reform Act 2012, which will increase the 
pressure on staff. 
 
The area of the One Stop Shop where the Planning desk is located could be better 
utilised and it was felt that there should be a clearly signed designated area in the 
One Stop Shop for Planning. 

14



  

 
 
5.1.22 
 
 
 
5.1.23 
 
 
5.1.24 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.25 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.26 
 
 
5.1.27 
 
 
 
 
5.1.28 
 
 
 
5.1.29 
 

 
The Panel recognised the need for interface with the Lagan System of reporting and 
the system used by EMS so that queries can be easily shared and supported the 
upgrading of the system.   
 
It was felt that good links between Neighbourhood wardens and EMS would 
improve customer services. 
 
The Panel agreed that a better customer service will be provided if less Agency staff 
are engaged at EMS as there had been problems with the attitude of some Agency 
staff particularly in respect of spillages at the side of the lorry but understood that a 
staffing structure was currently being investigated which would involve the 
engagement of less Agency staff. 
 
The Panel supported the introduction of new technology that EMS is introducing to 
the lorries which details information such as the street, which households require 
assisted collection. The operator can detail whether bins are put out on the specified 
day.  This technology will soon connect to the Customer Services system at NBC 
which was felt to be very useful. 
 
The Panel supported the education package offered by the Northampton Waste 
Partnership. It is a good customer service practice. 
 
Tours of the EMS site would be useful for both Customer Services Officers and 
Councillors at NBC so that they are aware of all the processes carried out by EMS. 
This would help them in their role answering queries and providing information to 
the public.   
 
Health and Safety is a key priority of EMS.  It was considered to be important that all 
staff and visitors to the site adhere to the wearing of the appropriate PPE when on 
site.  
 
The Panel recognised that the most inexpensive method of contact was via the 
Internet. It was realised that channel shift to other methods such as the Internet 
would only apply to those customers who are happy with this   
 

 
             RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
The above overall findings have formed the basis for the following 
recommendations: - 
 
 
6.1.1      The Scrutiny Panel highlights that over the last two years there has been  

significant improvements made and new and innovative improvements 
introduced. This Scrutiny Review demonstrates the importance of good 
quality customer services to each and every customer.  The Scrutiny 
Panel has put forward a series of recommendations to Cabinet that it 
feels will further develop and improve customer services facilities at 
Northampton Borough Council: 

 

15



  

6.2.1      That funding for improved signage both outside and inside the Guildhall 
be made available, particularly in relation to signs for housing and 
registrars; with a particular focus on the improvement of signage around 
the old building of the Guildhall. 

 
6.2.2      That floor walkers, located in the One Stop Shop, be provided with a 

uniform that makes them and their role clearly identifiable to customer. 
 
6.2.3      That funding for additional uniforms for front line Customer Services 

Officers be investigated.  
 
6.2.4       That the uniforms provided for front line Customer Services Officer 

identify the corporate image of the Council.   
 
6.2.5       That the plasma screens in situ in the One Stop Shop be utilised to 

broadcast news channels which can be done at no extra cost to the 
Council. 

 
6.2.6      That  those departments not currently delivered through Customer 

Services, such as Planning, Building Control and Licensing be brought 
into Customer Services for “first contact”, to apply customer services 
skills, to enable the channel shift strategy to be fully applied to 
calls/visits in relation to these departments. 

 
6.2.7      That Planning Services is incorporated into the One Stop Shop and the 

Planning Reception desk is constantly manned during opening hours by 
a fully trained Customer Services Advisor. 

 
6.2.8      That, with a particular focus on the entrances and exits, the layout of the 

One Stop Shop be altered to improve customer flow and further support 
channel shift. 

 
6.2.9      That funding is identified for a further automatic ticketing machine to 

support the improved layout and increase the number of floor walkers. 
 
6.2.10      That in order to reduce the time the process takes, the volume of 

evidence requested from customers in relation to housing applications is 
reduced and evidence is only sought upon offer of accommodation to 
validate the information given. 

 
6.2.11       That a project be undertaken to assess the feasibility and cost 

implications of extending the hours of the contact centre and One Stop 
shop from 8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday to Friday. 

 
6.2.12      That the mystery shopping exercise is repeated, including the Centres 

under the management of the Northampton Leisure Trust, and that in 
order to achieve consistency the same questions should be used and 
repeated on a regular basis. 

 
6.2.13       That further methods of communication both to and from the Council, 

such as social media sites and short messaging services be 

16



  

investigated; with a special focus to pre-empting messaging regarding 
local issues. 

 
6.2.14 That in recognising that more customers may seek assistance due to 

the current economic climate and a number of changes to the benefits 
system a priority queuing system be introduced. 

 
6.2.15 That the area of the One Stop Shop located around the Planning 

reception desk be better utilised for use by customers. 
 
6.2.16 That it be ensured that Neighbourhood Wardens share all relevant data 

and information with EMS. 
 
6.2.17     That a tour of the EMS site be incorporated into the Councillor Induction 

Package so that Councillors are aware of all the processes and 
procedures in place. 

 
6.2.18 That tours of the EMS site be arranged for all front line Customer 

Services Officers to further aid them in answering queries and providing 
information to the public.   

 
6.2.19     That Equality and Multi-cultural Awareness continues to have a high 

priority for Induction and on going training of Customer Services 
Advisors, recognising the skills and knowledge required of Advisors 
dealing with a very diverse range of customers.  

 
6.2.20     That a Protocol be produced for all NBC staff to follow that details clear 

guidelines, including the wearing the appropriate PPE, when visiting the 
site at EMS. 

 
6.2.21 That improvements be made to the signage at Westbridge depot, with a 

particular focus regarding signage for the EMS site. 
 
6.2.22     That, where budgets permit, the GPS in-cab system is extended more 

widely to appropriate departments. 
 
6.2.23      That the Scrutiny Panel informs Cabinet that it recognises the value of a 

shared customer service for both the customer and the organisation. 
 
6.2.24       That a copy of the updated Customer Excellence Strategy 2009-2012  
                 be circulated to the Panel when finalised. 
 

     Recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
6.2.25 That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee undertakes a Scrutiny Review 

of customer services provided by EMS in relation to the environmental 
services contract. 

 
6.2.26 That, in recognising that customer services is a continuous improvement 

process,   this Scrutiny Panel reconvenes in 2014 to evaluate all 
customer services provided by Northampton Borough Council. 

 

17



  

6.2.27     That a Scrutiny Review is set up to assess the impact on the Council of 
the Welfare Reform Act 2012. 

 
6.2.28    That a copy of this Overview and Scrutiny Review be circulated to all 

those involved in the Review. 
 
6.2.29     That the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee contacts all those 

involved in this Review, informing them of Cabinet’s response to the 
recommendations and provides continuous feedback at regular intervals 
regarding the implementation of the accepted recommendations. 

 
6.2.30 That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, as part of its monitoring 

regime, reviews the impact of this report in six months time. 
 

18



  

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 

Cabinet Meeting Date: 

Key Decision: 

Listed on Forward Plan: 

Within Policy: 

Policy Document: 

Directorate: 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  

Ward(s) 

  

11th July 2012  

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

Resources Directorate   

Alan Bottwood 

All 

 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 The report sets out the proposed use of discounts for businesses located 

within the Waterside Enterprise Zone within Northampton.  
 
2. Recommendations 

 
 That Cabinet: 
 
2.1 Agrees the discount scheme for new and existing properties within the 

enterprise zone proceeds.  
 
2.2 Notes the issues and risks associated with the award of discounts within the 

Waterside Enterprise Zone.  
 
2.3 Delegate to the Director of Resources in consultation with the Cabinet 

Member for Finance, to make changes to the discount scheme should the 
Government make any changes to funding of the scheme. 

  
 
 

Report Title 
 

BUSINESS RATES DISCOUNTS WITHIN THE 
ENTERPRISE ZONE 

Appendices 
 

1 

Agenda Item 6

19



  

3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 In March 2011, Government announced plans for a ‘new wave’ of local 
Enterprise Zones, with 21 in total to be created across the UK.  The Council 
submitted a comprehensive bid to CLG on 30th June, for consideration and 
approval as part of the competitive process.  The Council was successful in its 
bid for the Waterside Enterprise Zone (see map attached at Annex 1). 

 
3.1.1 Enterprise Zones seek to stimulate economic growth through tax breaks, 

reduced planning restrictions and "superfast" broadband. They can offer a 
business discount rate for five years for firms that move into the area before 
31 March 2015. 

 
3.1.2 The uplift in business rates receipts, as a result of the introduction of the 

Enterprise Zone, will be used to support the priorities of the local enterprise 
partnership.  All business rate growth within the zone for a period of at least 25 
years will be retained and reinvested in the local area, to support the local 
enterprise partnership’s priorities. 

 
3.1.3 The Non-Domestic Rating Contributions (England) (Amendment) Regulations 

2012 were laid in Parliament on 7 March, came into force on 31 March, and 
apply from this financial year (2012/13).  

 
3.1.4 Authorities are able to provide discounts using the new local discount powers 

contained in section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 as 
amended by Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011.  Although the use of the 
power is entirely a matter for Northampton Borough Council (NBC), we are 
encouraged to discuss this with the Local Enterprise Partnership who has 
overall responsibility for the zone (SEMLEP).  

 
3.1.5 Clause 69 of the Localism Act amended section 47 of the Local Government 

Finance Act 1988 also allows local billing authorities to fund their own local 
discounts. 

 
3.1.6 The Chief Finance Officer, through delegation within the Constitution, has the 

power to make a decision to award the discounts. However, as this decision is 
upon the level of discount, it would be appropriate for Cabinet to approve. 

 
3.1.7 Starting from 1 April 2012, authorities are now able to grant business rates 

discounts entirely as they see fit within the limits of the primary legislation and 
European rules on state aid.  These new powers can be used to encourage 
new business and investment, as well as to support local shops or community 
services.  

 
3.1.8 Although the power to grant local discounts rests with billing authorities, they 

are expected to work closely with county councils on the use of the power.  
 
3.1.9 Authorities should note that if the relief were not granted for a fixed period the 

usual notice period for ending discretionary relief would apply, currently 12 
months.  

 

20



  

3.2 Proposed Scheme within the Enterprise Zone  

3.2.1 The preferred option will be to provide existing and new businesses full 
discount.  This option is seen as the most advantageous to attracting business 
to the zone alongside the simplest to administer.  Effectively this would mean 
that all businesses and business sectors within the Enterprise Zone Boundary 
receive the discount up to the state aid De-minimis level of €200k in a three-
year period (approximately £55k per annum). 

 
3.2.2 The discount can award up to a maximum of 100% of business rates, for a 

five-year period up to state aid de minimis levels highlighted above. 
 
3.2.3 Discounts for a business with more than one property can be granted, subject 

to state aid rules.  
 
3.2.4 Discounts can be granted from the 1st April 2012, or the day the business 

enters the Zone if this is after the 1st April 2012 and before 1st April 2015.  
 
3.2.5 Owners of empty properties can receive a discount and this will be funded in 

the same way.  
 
3.2.6 Existing reliefs will be applied to the bill first. E.g. if a business is entitled to 

50% small business rate relief, the discount would be applied to cover the 
remaining 50%. 

 
3.3 Funding arrangements 

3.3.1 In 2012-13, the Government will fund discounts granted within the Enterprise 
Zone for a period of 5 years. The regulations provide for the costs of any 
discount under section 47 (i.e. including discounts to existing business and 
empty properties) granted in the zone, provided it complies with state aid de-
minimis limits, to be offset against the billing authority's contribution to the 
central pool i.e. NBC contribution would be reduced by the total cost of award 
made within the zone. 

 
3.3.2 Any discounts outside of the enterprise zone would be funded by NBC and no 

proposal has been made to offer discounts outside of the boundary for the 
zone.  

 
3.3.3 For 2013-14 onwards, central Government will fund the discount under the 

new retention of business rates scheme being introduced. Please see 3.5 
Issues, for more information on the new business rates retention scheme.  

 
3.3.4 If a business enters the zone on 1 April 2015 or later, it would not be eligible 

for a Government funded discount.  
 
3.3.5 Billing authorities are responsible for managing state aid issues and advice will 

be required on how we assess. 
 

3.4 State aid 

3.4.1 Tax exemptions are capable of constituting State Aid, which is why business 
rate discounts in Enterprise Zones must be administered within State Aid 
levels set out in the De-minims Regulations.  

21



  

 
3.4.2 For most organisations, the total amount of De-minimis aid that can be paid 

will be €200,000 within a three-year period. It is awarded on a rolling basis, 
although the three-year period could either be all in one year, then none for 
the following two, or spread equally over the three years.  

 
3.4.3 The De Minimis threshold applies to all aids received by a parent company / 

group of businesses rather than just a subsidiary, i.e. a subsidiary located in 
an Enterprise Zone would not be eligible for the discount if its parent company 
(located elsewhere) had already received up to or over the De Minimis level of 
state aid in the three year period. 

 
3.4.4 Under the Enterprise Zone business rate discount scheme, the billing authority 

is the aid administrator and so is responsible for ensuring the rules are met.  
 
3.4.5 The administrator will be required to report upon the total amount of aid 

provided each year through the De Minimis exemption.  Care should be taken 
to ensure they comply with all the requirements set out in the De Minimis 
Regulation.  The key requirement is that the provider of the aid writes to the 
company in question to inform them of the intention to grant De Minimis aid, 
with the company informing them of any De Minimis aid they have already 
received.  

 
3.5 Issues 

3.5.1 The assessment and administration of discounts within the zone will require 
additional funding both in terms of set up and ongoing management via the 
Councils consortium business rates service. Costs however will be kept to a 
minimum and funded via the income received from the enterprise zone.  

 
3.5.2 The Government is currently undertaking reform of local government finance, 

which includes the introduction of the local retention of business rates.  Key to 
the funding distribution under the new scheme is the business rates baseline 
and the amount of business rates collected.  The baseline will be calculated by 
taking an average over a number of years (how many yet to be confirmed) and 
adjusting for a schedule of allowable deductions (yet to be determined). 

 
3.5.3 Business rates for existing businesses in the Enterprise Zone at 1 April 2012 

form part of the baseline for the local retention of business rates scheme (for 
which CLG has yet to publish the final details).  Any discount given to local 
businesses in the Enterprise Zone would normally therefore result in a 
reduction in business rates compared to the baseline and so the Government 
has written to Chief Finance Officers to confirm that CLG will fund Enterprise 
Zone discretionary discounts given to existing businesses for 5 years from 1 
April 2012. 

 
3.5.4 For 2012/13 this will be through a reduction in the amount of pooled NNDR to 

be paid across, and from 2013/14 onwards it will be built into the local 
retention of business rates calculations.  How this will work has yet to be 
announced by CLG, but there are medium-term risks associated with the 
proposals for 2013/14 onwards that is explained in section 4.2 below. 

 

22



  

3.5.5 All growth in business rates (above the baseline) in the Enterprise Zone from 1 
April 2012 is ring fenced to the Local Enterprise Partnership for 25 years.  
Growth covered by this ring fencing is excluded from the local retention of 
business rates scheme and therefore will have an influence on decisions 
taken in respect of pooling.  A business plan for the Enterprise Zone is being 
developed and will be presented to cabinet in the autumn. 

 
3.5.6 Any Enterprise Zone discounts given to new businesses entering the 

Enterprise Zone between 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2015 will be funded by 
CLG for 5 years.  There is discretion to offer discounts after that, but that 
would have to be funded at a local level.  In the current financial climate NBC 
would not consider funding an extension of the discounts to new businesses 
entering the Enterprise Zone after 31 March 2015. 

 
3.5.7 It has been confirmed that a new business replacing a business that was in 

place in the Enterprise Zone at 1 April 2012 would count as replacing the 
original business for the purposes of the local retention of business rates 
scheme baseline up to the rateable value of the original business.  Should the 
new business redevelop the site and increase the rateable value, the excess 
above the baseline will be considered business rates growth would be funded 
by the government and ring fenced to SEMLEP. 

 
3.5.8 Rules relating to displacement of existing businesses within Northampton re–

locating into the zone will need to be considered. This will ensure that the 
business rates consortium can accurately award discounts to those entitled.  

 
3.5.9 Displacement could also remove growth from outside of the enterprise zone 

and with growth being retained by the Enterprise Zone mean that lower 
retention would be received for NBC, due to reduction in growth outside of the 
zone.     Equally displacement may free up sites allowing future opportunities 
for development which may be more suited for those locations. 

 
3.5.10 It is proposed that discounts for businesses who relocate to the enterprise 

zone from other areas of Northampton will also receive 100% discount in the 
same way as other businesses moving into the Enterprise Zone. 

 
3.5.11 A process and set of procedures for handling complaints and challenges will 

need to be created.  Following the introduction of any discount scheme, 
challenge could be made from business located outside of the enterprise 
zone.  This is on the basis that those outside the Enterprise Zone could 
perceive it as an unfair trading advantage, especially in times of recession.   

 
3.5.12 Further guidance on assessing existing levels of state aid will be required in 

order to assist on the accurate award of discounts. 
 
3.5.13 Providing a full discount within the zone could see other Councils offering 

similar discounts, albeit any discounts offered outside of an Enterprise Zone 
would need to be funded by the Local Authority. 

 

23



  

3.6 Choices (Options) 

3.6.1 Explore alternative discount schemes within the Enterprise Zone, although any 
reduced benefit could impact on the attractiveness of the zone.  

 
3.6.2 Explore different schemes for New and existing business that incentivise 

moving into the zone from outside of Northampton or from within Northampton 
in order to grow the business.  

 
3.6.3 Grant 100% discounts to businesses in the Enterprise Zone as long as they 

are funded by Central Government. 
 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 
 None 
 
4.2 Resources and Risk 

4.2.1 Initial resource estimates for implementation and ongoing administration are 
shown below, however these are subject to the scheme proposed and final 
calculation:   

Implementation costs £8,500 
 On-going administration £4,000 per annum 
 
 The implementation costs will be funded from the Enterprise budget and the 

ongoing administration costs will be included in the medium term financial 
plan. 

 
4.2.2 If appeals and complaints are to be handled by the business rates team, costs 

would be anticipated over the initial 12 months of the discounts scheme 
therefore a minimum contingency of £10,000 should be set aside from the 
Enterprise Zone budget to cover the cost of appeals.  This is merely a rough 
estimate and will need to be revisited as and when appeals present. 

 
4.2.3 Funding for relief for existing businesses comes through the local retention of 

business rates scheme for 4 years from 2013/14 (2012/13 is through NNDR 
pooling adjustments).  There is a risk that at the end of the period the funding 
could be removed at its original value, without being reduced for the annual 
funding reductions arising from the Comprehensive Spending Review and 
without the authority being allowed to retain the rates now being collected after 
the relief period ends.    

 
4.2.4 The risk is considered low to medium, but the authority will need to monitor 

this carefully towards the end of the Enterprise Zone discount funding period 
(and raise with CLG if necessary) to make sure that giving this discount does 
not leave the authority in a worse position than if it hadn’t.  

 
4.2.5 As outlined at 3.5.9 above, displacement could remove growth from outside of 

the enterprise zone and with growth being retained by the Enterprise Zone 
mean that lower retention would be received for NBC, due to reduction in 
growth outside of the zone. 

24



  

 
4.2.6 A process and set of procedures for handling complaints and challenges will 

need to be created.  Following the introduction of any discount scheme, 
challenge could be made from business located outside of the enterprise 
zone.  This is on the basis that those outside the Enterprise Zone could 
perceive it as an unfair trading advantage, especially in times of recession.  
This could have significant resource implications. 

 
 
4.2.7 Risks associated with the award of discounts are part of the overall risk log for 

the Enterprise Zone project.  
 
4.3 Legal 

 
These are covered within the body of the report.   

 
4.4 Equality 

 
A high level Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken.  There were no 
equality issues arising from the assessment. 
 

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 

Internal: Finance & Resources 
Legal Services 
Regeneration and Development 

 
External: Enterprise Zone Executive Group / Delivery Group 

 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 

4.6.1 The award of discounts provides a considerable incentive for business and 
compliments the wider opportunities offered by the enterprise zone.  

 
4.6.2 A successful Enterprise Zone helps deliver a number of corporate priorities, 

and very specifically Priority 1, Northampton – on track, which includes: 

� An economically prosperous, successful and vibrant Town 
� The Town is nationally recognised as an economic hub and a place to 

do business 
� Increased job opportunities and an improvement in the quality of jobs 

available 
 
4.7 Other Implications 

None 
 

25



  

5. Background Papers 

 
The Non-Domestic Rating Contributions (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2012 
Local Government Finance Act 1988, section 47  
Localism Act 2011, Section 69 
 
Enterprise Risk Register 
Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
 
 
 

Isabell Procter, Director of Resources 
Extension 8757, iprocter@northampton.gov.uk 

 
Robin Bates, Head of Finance and Resources 

Ext. 7119, rbates@northampton.gov.uk 
 

26



A
o
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

27



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

 

 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 
 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Listed on Forward Plan: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
 

Directorate: 
 
 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
11 July 2012 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
No 
 
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning 
 
Cllr Tim Hadland 
 
St James 
 
 

1.  Purpose 

 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for Cabinet to consider this Council entering into 

contractual arrangements with partners, which would involve the disposal of 
freehold land or the grant of a new long lease of land presently forming part of 
Sixfields Stadium, to help promote comprehensive development in the locality. The 
aim would be to support economic growth and employment generation, aid social 
and environmental regeneration of the area, potentially release funding for the 
provision of additional community facilities and assist key sports clubs within 
Northampton to meet their aspirations for improved accommodation and facilities. 

 
 

2.   Recommendation 

 
That Cabinet: 

 
2.1 Approves this Council entering into a Collaboration Agreement (CA) with the 

Homes & Communities Agency (HCA), to promote the comprehensive development 
of land forming: 

Report Title 
 

Land at Sixfields – Development Strategy 

Appendices 
 

1 

Agenda Item 7

28



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

 (i)  part of the Sixfields Stadium complex (shown edged red upon the attached  
plan at Appendix 1) and 
 

 (ii)  larger adjacent landholdings in the freehold ownership of HCA (shown  
indicatively edged blue upon the attached plan at Appendix 1), on terms to  
be approved by the Chief Executive in consultation with the Cabinet Member  
for Regeneration Enterprise and Planning. 

 
2.2  Approves, in pursuance of 2.1, the acceptance of a surrender of part of the property 

presently let to Northampton Town Football Club Limited (NTFC) and    the disposal 
of the Council’s freehold interest in the land or the grant of a new long lease of the 
land edged red upon the plan at Appendix 1 for development.  There would be 
consequent sharing of value between NBC and NTFC of receipts received under 
the proposed CA in respect of the land edged red, on a basis that appropriately 
reflects the respective legal interests of the parties.  

 
2.3  Recognises the importance of high quality athletics facilities in Northampton and 

supports the principle that as a pre-condition of any development of the land edged 
red upon the attached plan at Appendix 1, alternative athletics facilities to meet 
United Kingdom Athletics Class A certification (“suitable for all competition”) 
standard must first be provided within Northampton at no direct cost to this Council, 
on a basis that generally protects the existing contractual rights enjoyed by Rugby 
& Northampton Athletics Club in respect of the existing facilities. 

 
2.4  Approves the principle that under the terms of a Collaboration Agreement as set out 

at 2.1, provision is made for 25% of the total net value arising from the combined 
land sale (prior to any distribution of any apportioned receipts between HCA and 
this Council) to be specifically allocated to support the provision of additional 
community facilities. Such allocation to be distributed by this Council according to 
criteria that shall take into account 

 
(i)  the promotion of health, leisure and well being amongst the wider community 

of Northampton through the provision of new or additional facilities  
predominantly situated within the vicinity of Sixfields 
 

 (ii)  that such new or additional facilities shall be widely available to the public at  
reasonable cost and 
 

 (iii) that statutory obligations avoiding ‘state aid’ shall be fully observed. 
 

 
3.  Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1  In 2004, as part of the “Joint Brownfield Initiative”, this Council transferred various 

areas of land at Sixfields to English Partnerships (now HCA). That land was 
partially remediated by English Partnerships and the land edged blue on the plan at 
Appendix 1, together with other land in the ownership of HCA in the locality, now 
forms part of the Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone (NWEZ). 

 

29



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

3.1.2 Sixfields Community Stadium is owned freehold by this Council. It is let to 
Northampton Town Football Club Limited under the terms of a 150 years lease, 
dated 13 April 2004. The permitted uses of the land comprised within the lease are 
restricted. The lease to NTFC is also subject to the terms of a Licence agreement 
dated 17 March 2004, relating to the use of the athletics facilities that form part of 
the stadium complex. That agreement with Rugby and Northampton Athletics Club 
(R&NAC) remains valid until 2029. Sixfields Stadium also forms part of the NWEZ.  

 
3.1.3 This Council together with its partners within South East Midlands Local Enterprise 

Partnership (SEMLEP) and beyond wish to bring forward development, promote 
economic growth and create additional employment at Sixfields consistent with the 
wider objectives of the NWEZ. It is recognised that given the previous uses of land 
at Sixfields, there are additional challenges in achieving development in this area 
due to poor residual ground conditions. Consequently, mixed use forms of 
development on the land are likely to be necessary to support its overall financial 
viability. The status of the land within the NWEZ also helps to promote its 
development, through business rate relief opportunities for occupiers for a period of 
up to five years (up to a ceiling figure). 

 
3.1.4 NTFC wish to expand and improve Sixfields Stadium and the Council supports this 

aspiration. The Lease granted by this Council to NTFC in 2004 makes provision for 
part of the landholding to be sub-let for use as a hotel and conference facility. The 
Council has subsequently accepted a variation of the approach set out in the lease 
in relation to this land, to support the Club in achieving a valid commercial 
methodology to generate value from that. The present proposal would facilitate re-
development of the land that presently accommodates the athletics facilities at 
Sixfields Stadium. As part of a wider comprehensive development, this offers scope 
for additional capital monies to be generated that can legitimately be shared with 
NTFC.  

 
3.1.5 Rugby & Northampton Athletics Club (R&NAC) has been recognised by this 

Council as important in supporting and promoting participation in athletics in 
Northampton and in coaching and supporting performance athletes. It has been 
acknowledged that there are some existing constraints to R&NAC achieving the full 
extent of their aspirations at Sixfields. The Club has previously recognised that 
relocation to an alternative facility in Northampton, on appropriate terms, may offer 
them the opportunity to access improved facilities. 

 
3.1.6 Part of the land owned by HCA, included within the area edged in blue on the plan 

at Appendix 1, is let by them to Northamptonshire County Council and is used as a 
household waste recycling site. That area is shown indicatively hatched green on 
the plan. The surrender of that lease and the re-provision of that facility at a suitable 
alternative location would also be a pre-requisite of a comprehensive development 
scheme being undertaken. 

 
3.1.7 A scheme of development on this land that might be brought forward by a 

developer appointed by HCA and NBC would be likely to include some retail 
element. The scale and arrangement of such provision, within the context of a wider 
overall development scheme, would need to be discussed at pre-planning 
application stage with this Council (in its separate statutory capacity as Local 
Planning Authority) to seek to avoid potential conflicts with local and national 
planning policy, where possible. 

30



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

 
3.1.8 The commercial benefit of any development scheme and the consequential values 

that may be generated from it will ultimately be determined by the costs of 
undertaking the scheme and the market values of the property created. The 
financial viability and value of any particular scheme will ultimately be determined 
by the developer appointed, who will bear all risks of the project. 

 
3.2 Choices (Options) 
 
3.2.1 Option 1 – No Development - The Council could choose not to support the 

recommendations contained in this report and to retain ownership of the freehold 
interest in all parts of Sixfields Stadium. This could limit opportunities for 
development that would, if realised, support employment creation and economic 
growth in relation to the land presently let to NTFC. Similarly, it would limit any 
scope for generating additional value for this Council or for NTFC in relation to that 
land. The HCA owned sites do form part of the NWEZ and have already been 
identified for development to support employment generation. 

 
3.2.1  Option 2 – Partial Development - The Council could choose to agree with NTFC a 

limited form of re-development proposal affecting only the land coloured red on the 
plan at Appendix 1. This might offer some modest scope for additional value to be 
generated, but would still have to address the cost issue of high quality athletics 
facility re-provision elsewhere in the Town. Importantly, it would also limit the 
opportunities for linking development with that on wider areas of adjacent land 
within the NWEZ, which might generate greater economic benefits and create 
scope for additional community facilities to be funded. 

 
3.2.2 Option 3 – Full Development -The Council could choose to support the 

recommendations at 2.1 to 2.4 above. This would support an approach that offers 
the greatest scope for promoting growth and employment within the Enterprise 
Zone on this land, bringing some partially remediated land into higher productive 
uses, providing a potential source of funding for additional community facilities and 
helping to support the aspirations of NTFC. 

 
4.  Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1     Policy 
 
4.1     Any planning application made by a developer appointed under the proposed 

Collaboration Agreement would need to be considered by the Council, in its 
capacity as local planning authority, in the context of local and national planning 
frameworks. The promotion of this land for development in this area is consistent 
with the aims and objects of the Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone. 

 
4.2     Resources and Risk 
 
4.2.1 The costs of progressing a collaboration agreement with HCA and ancillary 

agreements with NTFC will incur officer time and potentially some shared external 
professional costs.  The Council would not be exposed to any development cost 
risk under the basis proposed.  The structure of any agreements would require 
replacement athletic facilities to be provided prior to the re-development of existing 
land.  The values that may be generated from any scheme will be determined by 

31



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

the market values and costs of development and cannot be precisely estimated at 
this time. Any business rate uplift from any buildings created within the NWEZ 
would contribute to the financial model for NWEZ and could potentially be payable 
to SEMLEP.  This potentially provides a valuable source of potential funding for re-
investment in SEMLEP and potentially Northampton.  

 
4.3 Legal 
 
4.3.1 The pertinent legal issues are dealt with generally in the body of this report. The 

procurement of any developer under a Collaboration Agreement with HCA would 
need to be in compliance with public procurement policy. Any disposal of land 
would need to be in accordance with the obligation to meet best value for this 
Council, consistent with s.123 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
4.4 Equality 
  

4.4.1 There are none specifically.  
 
4.5 Consultees (External & Internal) 
 
4.5.1 Homes and Communities Agency, Northampton Town Football Club Limited, Rugby 

& Northampton Athletics Club, SEMLEP, West Northamptonshire Development 
Corporation, Northamptonshire County Council, Ward Councillor, NBC Legal. 

 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 The promotion of new commercial development within the Enterprise Zone, to 

create additional employment and generate economic growth is a key priority 
outcome. Similarly, providing support to help the aspirations of the Town’s sports 
clubs be fulfilled has been identified as a significant priority. 

  
4.7  Other Implications 
 

4.7.1  The proposed forms of development selected by the procured Developer may have 
potential planning implications in terms of existing policy. Similarly, the balance of 
uses proposed will need to be considered in the context of the emerging business 
plan for the NWEZ.  

 

5.   Background Papers 

 
5.1       Asset Management files  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Simon Dougall, Corporate Asset Manager, x 8177 
 
 
 

32



Appendix 1

33



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12 

 

 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 
 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Listed on Forward Plan: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
 

Directorate: 
 
 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
11 July 2012 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
No 
 
No 
 
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning 
 
Cllr Tim Hadland 
 
Delapre and Briar Hill Ward 
 
 

1.  Purpose 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for Cabinet to consider the principle of this Council 

entering into contractual arrangements, which could lead to the disposal of land 
designated as public open space - by way of one or more long leases – of land 
located at Eagle Drive, Delapre for use as sports facilities.  

 
 

2.   Recommendation 

 
2.1   That Cabinet: 
 
2.1.1 Approves the principle of this Council entering into agreements with one or more of  

the following organisations 
 

(i)  Northampton Rugby Football Club Limited 
(ii)  Northampton Town Football Club Limited 
(iii)  a properly incorporated charitable foundation to support the promotion of  

football in the local community (in memory of Richard Butcher) – 
 

Report Title 
 

Land at Eagle Drive, Delapre 

Appendices 
 

1 

Agenda Item 8

34



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12 

to grant leases, for terms in excess of 21 years, of land located off Eagle 
Drive, Delapre situated within the areas shown edged upon the attached 
plan at Appendix 1.  Such agreements to limit the use of the land to that of 
sports pitches and ancillary facilities only and otherwise to be on terms to be 
approved by the Chief Executive in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration Enterprise and Planning. 

 
2.2  That Cabinet authorises, in pursuance of 2.1, the advertisement as necessary of 

the proposed disposal of public open space in accordance with the requirements of 
the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government, Planning 
and Land Act 1980, in respect of the land edged red on the plan at Appendix 1. 

 
2.3  That Cabinet support the principle of the grant of a lease at below full market value 

to a properly constituted charitable organisation arising from the Richard Butcher 
memorial campaign, on the basis that the primary use of any land concerned would 
be connected with the ongoing provision of non-profit making, sporting 
opportunities for young people in Northampton. The specific terms and conditions 
of such a lease to be approved by the Chief Executive in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Regeneration Enterprise and Planning. 

 
 
3.  Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1  This Council owns land located off Eagle Drive, Delapre, shown edged red upon the 

attached plan at Appendix 1 that forms part of the wider Delapre Park estate. The 
land is formally designated as public open space. A significant part of the land is 
presently utilised under a licence agreement for the grazing of horses, connected 
with the separate lease from this Council of Home Farm, utilised as an equestrian 
centre. The future of the land is under consideration, as part of a strategic process 
associated with the restoration of Delapre Abbey complex and identifying sources 
of capital and revenue funding to support that. This Council has successfully 
obtained funding following a Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) stage 1 bid made in 2011. 
It is presently utilising those enabling funds to develop a much more detailed HLF 
Stage 2 bid, seeking approximately £3.5m towards substantive Abbey Complex 
restoration works. If this bid is to be successful, it will be necessary for the Council 
to demonstrate its own financial commitment to supporting the project. 

 
3.1.2 Northampton Rugby Football Club Limited (NRFC) own freehold and leasehold  

land at Franklin’s Gardens, St James. Part of the land under their control at this 
location is utilised for training pitches, which are also presently used to support 
community activity. NRFC have ambitions to expand their stadium facilities at 
Franklin’s Gardens and wish to support this expansion through significant enabling 
development on land within their control, including on that area currently used for 
training pitch purposes. A redevelopment proposal is being prepared with NRFC’s 
commercial partner and will, in due course, be the subject of pre-application 
planning discussions. NRFC require replacement training pitch facilities within 
Northampton to support their own and related community activity and to meet the 
requirements of key sporting bodies. NRFC have approached this Council 
regarding the use of land at Eagle Drive as an alternative location. 

 

35



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12 

 
 
3.1.3 Northampton Town Football Club Limited (NTFC) have expressed an interest in 

land at Eagle Drive as an option they may wish to pursue further. The grant of any 
lease agreement would necessarily be conditional upon them obtaining a 
satisfactory planning permission for development at this location. 

 
3.1.4 The family of the late Richard Butcher (a young professional footballer from 

Northampton) are leading a significant community campaign to bring forward 
football facilities in the Far Cotton and Delapre area of Northampton, in his memory, 
for use by local young people. The Council have been actively engaged with the 
family and its supporters, looking at possible options for accommodating the 
envisaged facilities, involving Council owned land within the desired search area. 
The formal incorporation of the campaign, into a properly constituted organisation 
with charitable status, is being progressed with the support of this Council.  Whilst a 
proposal involving Council owned land at Briar Hill has been discussed with the 
Butcher family, the land at Eagle Drive, Delapre has been identified by them as 
being as the land option they would wish to pursue. The grant of any lease to this 
organisation would be conditional upon them:- 

 
(i)  obtaining a satisfactory planning permission for this use at Delapre and 
 
(ii)  being able to demonstrate their ability, within a reasonable period, to raise 

the necessary finance for the physical development of their proposals. The 
Council could choose to provide some indirect financial assistance to their 
scheme, by way of agreeing a discounted rental basis, if it was sufficiently 
satisfied that the facilities provided would be widely accessible to local young 
people at low or nominal cost. 

 
3.1.5 The Council has confirmed its support to the Town’s major sport’s clubs, to help 

fulfil their various expansion and improvement aspirations, as a priority issue it 
wishes to support. In its capacity as a landowner, distinct from the Council’s 
separate role as a local planning authority, the provision of land to accommodate 
sporting requirements at an appropriate value is a legitimate method of helping to 
achieve this objective.  

 
3.1.6 The Council in its capacity as a local planning authority, will necessarily form an 

independent view of the merits of any planning application made for enabling 
development at Franklin’s Gardens by NRFC and its partners. Consequently, any 
proposed arrangement to grant a lease to NRFC would be conditional upon the 
outcome of any planning application that may be made in respect of existing land 
they control, as well as in respect of obtaining a planning permission relating to 
development at Eagle Drive. 

 
3.1.7 The land edged red upon the attached plan at Appendix 1 represents a significant 

area of the land, situated to the western side of the Delapre Park estate. The land 
currently generates limited revenue income for the Council under a grazing licence. 
That use is linked to the operation of Home Farm for equestrian purposes. The 
letting of Home Farm also generates revenue for this Council. The future use of 
Home Farm for its present purposes may not be possible if the grazing land is not 
available.  

 

36



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12 

3.1.8 Subject to 
 

(i)  seeking alignment as far as is possible with the objectives of the HLF stage  
2 bid, and 

 
(ii)  with the planning and conservation issues that are relevant to the land 

(including it forming part of a registered Historic Battlefield site), there could 
be a number of possible options for use or development of the land edged 
red upon the plan. These could potentially generate a range of capital and/or 
revenue values. These may include higher value uses than for sporting 
facilities, although no formal development or planning appraisals have been 
completed to date of other alternative uses. The values that could be 
generated are potentially relevant to the Council’s own funding support for 
the HLF stage 2 bid, raised at 3.1.1. 

 
3.1.9 The land edged red upon the attached plan at Appendix 1 is very unlikely to be of 

sufficient size to be able to accommodate the full aspirations of all three 
organisations.  It will be necessary to refine individual requirements and for there to 
be close continuing dialogue with all parties.  It may be the case that the Council 
working with the organisations concerned may have to consider alternative land 
options, within or outside the Council’s ownership, to meet the expressed total 
needs of the Clubs and of the Richard Butcher memorial campaign. 

 
3.1.10 None of the organisations have, at this stage, made any detailed planning enquires 

concerning the use of land at Eagle Drive, Delapre.  The types and locations of any 
proposed development would need to be considered carefully with planning officers 
(and English Heritage) prior to any applications being made. This may be a 
constraint on the extent of land that may be physically available and the type of any 
permitted development. 

 
3.2 Choices (Options) 
 
3.2.1 Option 1 – No Leases -  Cabinet could choose not to support the recommendation 

contained in this report and not to grant leases, for sporting purposes, to any of the 
organisations set out at 2.1 above. This could prevent opportunities for appropriate 
enabling development at Franklin’s Gardens that, in turn, could support 
employment creation and economic growth within the Northampton Waterside 
Enterprise Zone.  It would also reduce the land options available to the Richard 
Butcher Memorial campaign and would reduce the range of possible options for 
NTFC to acquire land for training pitch purposes. A decision not to reach 
agreements that could lead to the grant of leases would, however, allow a fuller 
evaluation of possible other forms of development on that land, that might 
potentially generate higher values. 

 
3.2.2 Option 2 – Grant of Lease to only one organisation - Cabinet could choose to offer 

an agreement linked to one of the organisations above only.  It could, for example, 
choose not to facilitate what it may regard as inappropriate enabling development 
at Franklin’s Gardens and thus require NRFC to identify alternative land. It could 
similarly decide only to offer alternative land at Briar Hill to the Richard Butcher 
Memorial Campaign. It could therefore further explore potential alternative training 
pitch options on Council owned land, or third party land elsewhere, with NTFC and/ 
or NRFC.  It is already noted above that the physical extent of the land at Eagle 

37



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12 

Drive is unlikely to meet the full requirements of all of the organisations concerned. 
However, Cabinet could choose to make a decision to support only the ambitions of 
one or two organisations at Eagle Drive, Delapre.   

 
3.2.3 Option 3 – Grant of Leases to more than one organisation -The Council could 

choose to support the recommendations at 2.1 to 2.3 above. This would support 
the aspirations of NRFC, NTFC and the Richard Butcher Memorial Campaign, 
whilst acknowledging the physical constraints that do necessarily limit the extent of 
all three organisation’s full ambitions.  Doing so may help to facilitate significant 
development at Franklin’s Gardens, providing funding for NRFC expansion plans 
and generating employment. It may lead to new community football facility 
provision in Delapre, to support the vision of the Butcher family. It may help to 
address the needs of NTFC to identify a fixed home for some of their training 
requirements. It would though restrict the ability of the Council to pursue possible 
higher value uses of some of the land concerned. It could also lead to the 
determination of the lease of Home Farm by the present tenant, with the possible 
consequential loss of existing equestrian facilities at Delpare. 

 
4.  Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1     Policy 
 
4.1    Any planning application made by any of the organisations for sports facilities at 

Eagle Drive, Delapre would need to be considered by the Council, in its capacity as 
local planning authority, in the context of local and national planning frameworks. 
Similarly, in the case of proposed enabling development at Franklin’s Gardens, that 
would (if successful) give rise to this replacement training pitches requirement, this 
would also have to be considered separately by the Council (as the local planning 
authority) and thus any decision made by Cabinet regarding the grant of leases at 
Delapre must be without prejudice to the outcome of the statutory process. 

 
4.2     Resources and Risk 
 
4.2.1 The costs of progressing conditional agreements with one or more of the three 

organisations would incur officer time. The Council would generate an income from 
the letting of the land for sporting purposes. The rental values would be determined 
by reference to the (undeveloped) values of other land in the Town let for sporting 
purposes only. Any costs of development would have to be met solely by the 
organisations concerned. If recommendation 2.3 were supported, this could lead to 
a discounted rent being agreed, which would reduce the overall income that might 
otherwise be achieved. If one or more organisations were unable to meet their 
obligations after the creation of new sports facilities, there could be the risk of the 
Council being left with the revenue costs of maintaining facilities or facing the 
reputational risks of closing them with loss of amenity to the community (if 
applicable). The progression of leases for sporting purposes would, as noted 
above, limit the potential scope for alternative - possibly higher value – forms of 
development on some of the land concerned. 

 
4.2.2 The application to Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) is due for submission in March 

2013. The application will be for approximately £3.5million and will require match 
funding.  The project currently has a funding shortfall of approximately £1million. 
The application to HLF will also require the submission of a Business Plan, which 

38



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12 

sets out the sustainability of Delapre Abbey.    Any development within the wider 
boundaries of Delapre Abbey will need to demonstrate how it will complement the 
emerging uses of Delapre Abbey and not compromise the sustainability of the 
Abbey.   

 
4.3 Legal 
 
4.3.1 The pertinent legal issues are dealt with generally in the body of this report. The 

disposal of land designated as public open space by way of lease for a term in 
excess of 21 years, would need to be advertised in accordance with statutory 
process and any objections received would need to be properly considered.  Where 
there is any letting of land this must generally be in accordance with the obligation 
to meet best value for this Council, consistent with s.123 of the Local Government 
Act 1972.  However, having regard to the policy approach adopted by the Cabinet 
of this Council in March 2007, there is scope to let land at below market value – 
subject to the total capital value equivalent of the discount being within the terms of 
the extant general consent issued by central government (i.e. not being greater 
than £2 million). 

 
4.4 Equality 
  

4.4.1 There are none specifically.  
 
4.5 Consultees (External & Internal) 
 
4.5.1  Richard Butcher Memorial Campaign, Northampton Town Football Club Limited, 

Northampton Rugby Football Club Limited, Delapre Abbey Preservation Trust, 
Friends of Delapre Abbey, Consultants employed by this Council in connection with 
HLF Stage 2 bid, neighbouring businesses, Ward Councillors. 

 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 Providing support to help the aspirations of the Town’s sports clubs be fulfilled has 

been identified as a significant priority.  The promotion of community participation in 
sport, with health and wider social benefits, is also a prioritised outcome. 

  
4.7  Other Implications 
 

4.7.1  The implications are set out generally in the report above.  
 

5.   Background Papers 

 
5.1       Asset Management files  
 

Simon Dougall, Corporate Asset Manager, x 8177 
 
 
 

39



40



  

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 

Cabinet Meeting Date: 

Key Decision: 

Listed on Forward Plan: 

Within Policy: 

Policy Document: 

Directorate: 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  

Ward(s) 

  

11th July 2012  

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

Resources Directorate   

Alan Bottwood 

All 

 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 The report seeks the agreement of Cabinet to confirm the Council’s support 

for a continuing reduced rental arrangement in respect of the Royal and 
Derngate Theatre Complex, after taking into account the Council’s costs in 
providing capital financing assistance to create a new Cinema “Pod” within the 
existing Complex 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
 That Cabinet: 
 
2.1 Support the use of Council capital funding for the creation of a Cinema “Pod” 

on the site of the Royal and Derngate Theatre Complex, on the basis that the 
additional facility created by Northampton Theatres Trust Limited (NTTL) will 
become part of the Council’s overall property asset at this location 

 
2.2 Support a continued reduction in the contractual rent payable by NTTL in 

respect of the Royal and Derngate Theatre Complex for a period of 11 years 
from 1st April 2012, to a level that reflects the full costs to this Council (as 
determined by the Director of Resources) of providing capital finance to 
support the creation of the Cinema “Pod” facility. 

Report Title 
 

ROYAL & DERNGATE THEATRE COMPLEX 

Appendices 
 

0 

Agenda Item 9

41



  

3. Issues and Choices 
 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 The Royal and Derngate Theatre complex, including ancillary buildings and 
adjacent land, is owned freehold by this Council and is let to the Northampton 
Theatres Trust Limited (NTTL).  

 

3.1.2 The rental arrangements for the theatre complex is now up for review and this 
report seeks to confirm the existing arrangements along with the consideration 
of financing for a Cinema “Pod” on the existing site. 

 

3.1.3 The Theatre contributes significantly to the local economy of the town.  With a 
turnover of just under £8m in 2011/12, the economic impact locally has been 
calculated to be £20m. 

 
3.1.4 The work of the Theatre contributes significantly to Northampton and 

Northamptonshire in terms of the arts, culture and regeneration of the town. 
 
3.1.5 The Theatre Trust intends to develop a small (approx 100 seats) specialist 

cinema 'pod' adjoining the rear entrance to the Royal & Derngate Theatre.  
The 'pod' will be self contained but will make use of the box office, restaurant 
and bar facilities, cloakrooms and other facilities of the host building. 

 
3.1.6 The Cinema will screen a wide range of features spanning, independent, 

classic, documentary and world cinema films.  It is not intended the facility 
would compete with the mainstream cinemas. 

 
3.1.7 The Cinema is an important feature, together with other regeneration projects 

being delivered in the St Johns area.  This part of the town centre is a focus 
for developing an attractive "cultural quarter" as part of an invigorated and 
enriched regional centre, which currently includes the Royal & Derngate 
Theatre (which has been subject to a major refurbishment over the recent 
years) and the central museum which houses the national shoe collection.  In 
the very near future, the Northamptonshire Arts Collective will occupy their 
new premises in the Quarter. 

 
3.1.8 Other projects currently in progress within the area are a major University 

facility, 100 bedroom hotel, commercial offices and family orientated 
restaurants.  All these planned new facilities will uplift the local economy, 
introduce as more diverse mix of people, to achieve the Council's ambition to 
have a buoyant and vibrant town centre. 

 
3.1.9 The St Johns cultural quarter also has within the Waterside Enterprise Zone 

whose success is dependant on several factions including a provision of a 
high quality town centre offered.  The Theatres, along with the Cinema “Pod” 
helps deliver this offer. 

 

42



  

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 The Theatre complex is let to NTTL under the terms of two leases both dated 
10 September 2009.  The leases are both for a term of 50 years commencing 
from 1 April 2003.  The rent payable under the leases is £135,000 per annum, 
subject to five yearly reviews. 

 
3.2.2 The Council, as the landlord is responsible for major external repairs to the 

Theatre complex and NTTL, as the tenant, are responsible for most revenue 
related repairs and reimburse 50% of the full insurance buildings insurance 
premium paid by the Council in relation to the premises.   
 

3.2.3 In recognition of the significant funding obtained by the Trust from bodies 
external to this Council and the consequent investment made in the Theatre 
complex to re-configure and improve the buildings, an initial nine years rent 
free period was agreed from1 April 2003. This period expired on 31 March 
2012. 

 
3.2.4 The permitted use of the Theatre is as an Arts Complex. This definition would 

allow the proposed development of some of the land adjacent to the main 
buildings, currently comprised within the lease area, as a cultural cinema 
without lease variation.  

 

3.2.5 The Theatres, like a large number of Enterprises, are finding it financially 
challenging in the current economic environment.  The Cinema “Pod”, along 
with the continuation of the current rental agreement, is a critical part of R&D 
future business plan and is seen as an enabler to ensure that the theatres and 
related areas remain financially viable. 

 
3.2.6 NBC, as the owner of the Theatre complex has an interest in any development 

on the site.  The Theatre Trust has asked NBC to help facilitate the building of 
the Cinema “Pod”. 

 
3.2.7 As the Cinema “Pod” is being built on a NBC asset, the easiest and most 

financially efficient method of facilitating the building of the Cinema “Pod”, is 
for NBC to fund the capital aspects of the building via its capital programme 
and then lease the building to the trust ensuring, as a minimum, that all NBC 
costs are covered by the rental.  In that way NBC will own the whole asset.  
The estimated capital cost is £350,000. 

 
3.2.8 Should the R&D trust cease to run the theatre and the building vacated NBC 

would incur substantial direct costs.  There is the potential of a capital claw 
back in relation to the grant funding for the renovation of the Theatres, along 
with empty property holding costs which would include cost of security, utilities 
and maintenance, empty property rates and insurance. 

 
3.2.9 The overall loss of the Theatre Complex would have an impact on the Town’s 

economic, culture and regeneration. 
 
3.2.10 This report therefore seeks to reconfirm concessionary rental arrangements in 

favour of NTTL, after taking due account of the funding arrangements for the 
Cinema “Pod”, for a period of 11 years from 1st April 2012.  

43



  

3.3 Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 The Council could choose to support the Theatre Trust as outlined above or 

equally choose not to support the building of the Cinema “Pod” and / or seek 
to charge a rental on the Theatre Complex. 

 
 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 
 None 
 
4.2 Resources and Risk 
 
4.2.1 There is a risk that without the stability of the current agreement with regard to 

the rental payments the Theatre Trust will have significant financial issues. 
 
4.2.2 The proposal for the Cinema “Pod” will greatly enhance the Theatre Trusts 

overall financial position.  The funding, and cost of funding, provided by NBC 
in the first instance will be covered, over the 11 year period by the proposed 
rental agreement.   

 
4.2.3 Should the Theatre Trust become financial unviable, NBC would incur 

significant costs to mothball the Theatres, and would be challenged in finding 
another suitable use to mitigate these costs. 

 
This would include a potential capital claw back in relation to the grant funding 
for the renovation of the Theatres, along with empty property holding costs 
which would include, on top of the cost of security, utilities and maintenance: 

NNDR on empty property £111,752 
Insurance £  52,060 

 £163,812 
 
4.2.4 The overall loss of the Theatre Complex would have an impact on the Town’s 

economic, culture and regeneration. 
 
4.3 Legal 
 

There are no additional Legal issues other than what has been addressed in the 
main body of the report.  

 
4.4 Equality 

 
An initial Equalities Impact Assessment will need to be completed, as part of the 
Waterside Enterprise Zone business case to ascertain if there is a need for a full 
assessment 

44



  

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 

Internal: Management Board 
  Valuer to the Council 
  Cabinet Member for Finance 
  Cabinet Member for Planning, Regeneration & Enterprise 
  Legal Services – Solicitor to the Council 
 
External: Theatre Trust 

 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 

4.6.1 A successful Theatre helps deliver a number of corporate priorities, and very 
specifically  

 
Priority 1, Northampton – on track, which includes: 
� An economically prosperous, successful and vibrant Town Increased 

numbers of visitors 
� A Delivery with partners of major town centre regeneration projects 
� The Town’s history, heritage and culture is promoted and preserved 

 
Priority 3 - Celebrating our heritage and culture which includes: 
� Increased tourism 
� Promotion, protection and improvement of our heritage and other 

attractions 
� Delivery of events to celebrate and enjoy the Town’s heritage and culture 
� Celebration of national events through a varied cultural programme 

 

 
4.7 Other Implications 

 
None 

 
5. Background Papers 

 
 

Isabell Procter, Director of Resources 
Extension 8757, iprocter@northampton.gov.uk 

 

45



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Listed on Forward Plan: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member: 
 
Ward(s) 

  
11th July 2012 
 
No 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
No 
 
Resources 
 
Cllr A Bottwood 
 
N/A 

 
 
 

1.  Purpose 

 
1.1 This report provides the outturn position for the Council’s General Fund, 

Housing Revenue Account, and Capital Programme for the financial year 
2011/12. 

1.2 This report also puts forward a Housing Revenue Account Capital Variation 
form for 2012/13 requiring approval. 

 
 
2. Recommendations 

 

2.1. That Cabinet note the outturn position for the General Fund and Housing 
Revenue Account for the financial year 2011/12. 

2.2 That Cabinet note the net movement in General Fund Revenue Reserves of 
£200k, and the detailed movement in Earmarked Reserves shown in 
Appendix 4. 

Report Title 
 

FINANCE AND MONITORING OUTTURN REPORT 
2011/2012 

Appendices 
 

[9] 

Agenda Item 10

46



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

2.3 That Cabinet note the net movement in Housing Revenue Account Reserves 
and working balances. 

2.4 That Cabinet note the outturn position for the Council’s capital programme 
for 2011-12 and how the expenditure was financed. 

2.5 That Cabinet approve the carry forward of unfinished capital schemes from 
2011-12 into the 2012-13 capital programme. 

2.6 That Cabinet approve the HRA Capital project variation for Community 
Energy Savings Programme (CESP) of £1.5m.for 2012/2013. 

 

3. Issues and Choices 

3.1 Report Background 
3.1.1 The Council’s budget is divided into two accounts.  The General Fund (GF) 

and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA).  These are kept separate with 
their respective sources of funding independent of each other.  HRA 
expenditure and income relates to the Council’s role as a housing landlord, 
and the GF relates to all other services. The Council approved the GF 
Revenue budget and HRA budget for 2011/12 on 28th February 2011. 

3.2 General Fund Revenue Account 
3.2.1 The 2011/12 GF budget preparation process identified a substantial gap in 

funding.  This was bridged by a combination of efficiency measures and 
savings of £4.3m.  There was also a requirement for the use of reserves and 
balances of £1.5m. 

3.2.2 The final outturn position for the Controllable General Fund Service 
Accounts is an under spend of £1,219k as shown in the following table and 
detailed in Appendix 2: 

 

 
3.2.3 Period 10 monitoring projections for the 2011/12 General Fund Controllable 

Service Revenue budget was a forecast under spend of £295k. The 
comparable final outturn position for Controllable Service budgets is an 
under spend of £1,219k giving rise to a difference between the forecast and 
actual Controllable outturn variance of £925k, (Appendix 3 refers).  

3.2.4 Many of the outturn variations have already been addressed as part of the 
2012/13 budget setting process however, all outturn variations identified 
within the 2011/12 accounts will be investigated to identify if any 

 2011/12 Revised 
Budget  

2011/12 Outturn (Under) / Over 
Spend 

  £000 £000 £000 

        

Assistant Chief Executive 4,633 4,246 -387

Director of Planning and Regeneration 2,859 2,314 -545

Director of Finance and Support 14,761 14,548 -213

Director of Housing 225 309 84

Borough Solicitor 652 636 -15

Director of Environment and Culture 9,885 9,741 -144

Total Variations within Budget 
Managers Control 

33,015 31,796 -1,219

47



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

savings/overspends are ongoing and need to be reflected within the current 
forecast and future year budgets. 

3.2.5 The 2012/13 budget monitoring report to the end of July (period 4), which will 
be presented to cabinet in September, will provide more detail concerning 
any recommended budget revisions and management actions required to 
ensure that the budget remains in balance for the current financial year. This 
provides a robust basis for the Medium Term Financial strategy and service 
delivery planning. 

3.2.6. General Fund Budget 
3.2.6.1 After a net contribution to General Fund Earmarked Reserves of £200k, the 

level of working balances carried forward to underpin the 2012/13 budget is 
£3.1m.  The Council has undertaken a risk-based assessment of working 
balances.  This risk assessment suggests that minimum level of balances, 
taking all known risks into account along with the Councils gross expenditure 
requirement, should be in the order of £3m.  The year end unaudited outturn 
shows that this can be achieved as at 31 March 2012.  

3.2.6.2 The Council also holds Earmarked Reserves of £16.2m (excluding HRA 
Reserve) to mitigate specific risks that the Council will be exposed to 
including the need for service improvement.  Appendix 4 to this report 
identifies the Earmarked Reserves. 

3.2.7 Controllable Service Budget Outturn 
3.2.7.1 In period 10 of 2011/12, the forecast outturn position reported to Cabinet for 

the Controllable Service budgets was an under spend of £295k. 

3.2.7.2 Controllable Service Budgets include Employees, Transport Costs, Premises 
Costs, Supplies and Services, Transfer Payments, Contract Payments and 
Income.  They exclude Capital Charges, Support Service Recharges, 
Provisions and Debt Charges. 

3.2.7.3 Appendix 3 to this report provides a comparison of the period 10 forecast 
and the final outturn position. 

3.2.7.4 The final outturn position for the General Fund Account for 2011/12 including 
technical accounting adjustments is an under spend of £464k.  Appendix 1 
to this report provides a detailed breakdown of the outturn position. 

3.2.8 General Fund Balance 
3.2.8.1 The following table identifies the movement in the General Fund Balance: 

 

 

 
 

3.3 Housing Revenue Account 
3.3.1 The 2011/12 budget preparation process set a balanced budget which 

budgeted for a contribution of £1.7m to the HRA reserves. 

3.3.2 Budget monitoring reports at period 10 had forecast a net underspend on 
direct costs of £381k with a revised contribution to reserves of £2.3m. 

General Fund Balances  £000 

  General Fund Balance as at 01.04.2011 2,672 

Plus: General Fund Surplus 464 

  General Fund Balance as at 31.03.2012 3,136 

48



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

3.3.3 The Council followed Government legislation and bought out of the existing 
HRA Subsidy regime on 27th March 2012, moving it onto a self-financing 
HRA model from April 2012. 

3.3 4 Housing Revenue Account Outturn 
3.3.4.1 The final HRA outturn position for the HRA for 2011/2012 is an underspend 

of £663k against the Revised budget. This includes prudently setting aside a 
further £2.2m for financing the future capital programmes, including £120k 
roll forward of unspent Property Maintenance budget for the Strategic 
Business review of the service. A further contribution is being made of £347k 
to the Service Improvement Reserve.  After contributions to earmarked 
reserves a small surplus of £107k remains, which will increase the HRA 
working balance to £5m.  The Cabinet is asked to note these contributions to 
reserve levels.  Appendix 5 to this report provides a summary of the HRA.  
The major variations in the income and expenditure side of the account are 
detailed in the analysis and the notes contained in Appendix 6. 

 
3.3.5 Controllable Service Budget Outturn 
3.3.5.1 The HRA net expenditure over income reported above is inclusive of an 

underspend on the HRA’s controllable budgets. The actual outturn shows a 
net underspend on Service Controllable budgets of £499k, (Appendix 5 
refers).  This represents a change to the month 10 forecast underspend of 
£118k, (Appendix 7), reported to Cabinet on 7th March 2012. 

 
3.3.6 Main Variances in Outturn 2011/12 Against Budget 
3.3.6.1 The table below summarises the main variances detailed in Appendix 6.  All 

outturn variations identified within the 2011/12 accounts will be investigated 
to identify if any savings/overspends are ongoing and need to be reflected 
within the current and future year budgets.  The next 2012/13 budget 
monitoring report to Cabinet will provide more detail concerning any 
recommended budget revisions and management actions required to ensure 
that the budget remains in balance for the current financial year.  

 

Table 1 - Main Summary of Variances of HRA Outturn  

HRA Variance Description 

Outturn 
Variance 

31.3.12 

£'000 

 Housing Revenue Account Subsidy -765 

 General Management   326 

 Repairs and Maintenance   273 

 Special Services -156 

 Increase in Bad Debt Provision -273 

 Interest & Financing -100 

 Other Variations   32 

 HRA Service Underspend 2011/12 -663 

  

Net Contribution to HRA Reserves  556 

 HRA SURPLUS 2011/12 -107 

49



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

3.3.7 Contribution to HRA Working Balances and Reserves. 
3.3.7.1 The total balance on all HRA reserves and balances at 31/3/2012 is 

£11.34m, (Appendix 8).  The contributions to working balances and 
earmarked reserves and their resultant balances are summarised in the 
table below. 

Table 2 – HRA Working Balances and 
Reserves    

  Balance Movement Balance 

  1.4.11 In Year 31.3.12 

HRA Balances on Account £'000 £'000 £'000 

 HRA Working Balance 4,893 107 5,000 

 HRA Capital Programme Earmarked 
Reserve 12,860 -10,247 2,613 

 HRA Leaseholders Earmarked Reserve 1,000 -832 168 

 HRA Service Improvement & Project 
Reserve 821 179 1,000 

 Stock Options Appraisal 2,000 0 2,000 

 HRA Supporting People Reserve 558 0 558 

TOTAL HRA BALANCES 22,132 -10,793 11,339 

 
3.3.7.2 As at the 1 April 2011 the Council held earmarked reserves of £12.86m for 

financing the capital programme. Delivery of the 2011/12 Capital programme 
(paragraphs refers 3.4.5) has required as planned £12.4m of this reserve to 
be used for financing.  A further £2.2 m has been earmarked to contribute to 
reserves at 31 March 2012 making the balance on this reserve £2.6m.  This 
reserve will be managed in line with the requirements of the Asset 
Management Strategy and in line with the HRA Business Plan. 

 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

3.4 2011-12 Capital Outturn  
3.4.1 The Council’s final approved budget for capital programme expenditure in 

2011-12 was £35.36m, a net increase of £3.78m from the original budget of 
£29.31m. The budget initially increased due to carry-forwards from 2010/11 
of £12.79m, but decreased by £8.59m due to planned carry-forwards to 
2012/13. Other changes largely relate to increases in external financing from 
grants and contributions. 

3.4.2 The overall capital programme includes revenue expenditure funded from 
capital under statute (REFCUS). This is expenditure, such as grants to 
homeowners for disabled facilities, which can be funded from capital 
resources under statute and regulations. 

3.4.3 Capital expenditure for 2011-12 totalled £33.09m against the final approved 
budget of £35.36m, a net underspend of £2.27m. 

3.4.4 The position by Directorate is summarised below, with further details set out 
in Appendix 9, along with explanations of the reasons for any significant 
variances. 

50



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

Capital Expenditure 

2011-12 

Final 
Approved 
Budget 

Outturn Variance 

GF £m £m £m 

Resources 1.103 0.948 0.155 

Customers & Communities 2.691 2.452 0.239 

Regeneration, Enterprise & 
Planning 

5.953 5.186 0.767 

Housing General Fund 4.031 3.214 0.817 

HRA    

Housing 21.582 21.291 0.291 

Total 35.360 33.091 2.269 

 
3.4.5 The table below shows how the capital programme for 2011-12 has been 

funded. In line with the approved Capital Strategy and the Treasury 
Management Strategy, capital receipts have been utilised to fund 
expenditure on short-life assets whilst prudential borrowing has been used 
where assets have a longer life.  

Financing of Capital Programme 
2011-12 

General 
Fund 

HRA Total 

 £m £m £m 

Prudential Borrowing 2.856  2.856 

Capital Receipts 4.280 0.698 4.978 

Major Repairs Allowance  8.161 8.161 

Government Grants 3.759  3.759 

Third Party Contributions 0.764  0.764 

Revenue Contributions 0.141 12.432 12.573 

Total 11.800 21.291 33.091 

 
Capital Carry forward 2011-12 
 
3.4.6 The table below shows the amount of carry forward from 2011-12 into the 

2012-13 capital programme.  Details are shown on a scheme by scheme 
basis at Appendix 9. 

51



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

 

Capital Carry forward 2011-12 £m 

General Fund  

Resources 0.153 

Customers & Communities 0.166 

Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning 0.767 

Housing General Fund 0.816 

HRA  

Housing 0.880 

Total 2.782 

 

3.4.6.1 The carry-forward request for HRA schemes, which is required to finish 
incomplete schemes, is greater than the net underspend. The overall outturn 
included an overspend on Decent Homes of £0.5m due to additional 
properties being made decent ahead of schedule. This will be reflected in 
future updates of the HRA Business Plan. 

3.4.6.2 The carry forward schemes will be incorporated into the 2012-13 agreed 
capital programme and monthly monitoring processes. 

 
3.5 2012/2013 Capital Programme Project Variation 
3.5.1 An opportunity has come forward under the HRA Capital Project Community 

Energy Savings Programme (CESP) to bring additional properties to Decent 
Homes standard by installing External Wall insulation and double glazed 
windows to 274 properties. Whilst carrying out external works a number of 
additional blocks were identified as qualifying for these works.  The original 
CESP project was approved by Cabinet 25th May 2011.  A project variation 
of £1.5m is required to deliver these works in 2012/13 whilst on site.  This 
project variation will be financed by HRA resources. 

 
3.6 Choices (Options) 
3.6.1 Cabinet is invited to note the report and the explanations of the outturn 

position and reasons for the change since the forecast outturn position for 
the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and Capital Programme. 

3.6.2 Cabinet is asked to note the proposed movements in the General Fund and 
HRA reserves. 

3.6.3 Cabinet are asked to agree the Capital budgets to be carried forward to 
2012-13. 

3.6.4 Cabinet are asked to approve the HRA Capital Project variation for 2012/13. 

 
 

52



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

4.  Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 
4.1.1. The outturn position impacts on the level of reserves. 
 
4.2 Resources and Risk 
4.2.1 This report informs Cabinet of the General Fund Revenue budget, Housing 

Revenue Account budget and Capital Programme outturn. 
The impact of individual outturn variances needs to be assessed against the 
current and future year’s budgets. 

 
4.3 Legal 
4.3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 
 
4.4 Equality 
4.4.1 There are no specific equality implications arising from this report.  
 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
4.5.1 Chief Executive, Directors, Heads of Service and Budget Managers have 

been consulted. 
 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
4.6.1 Annual outturn reporting contributes to the priority of delivering value for 

money to protect local services by sustaining effective and prudent financial 
management. 

 
 
4.7 Other Implications 
4.7.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 Cabinet Reports – Budget Setting and Budget Monitoring throughout 

2011/12 
5.2 Cabinet Report – CESP 25th May 2011. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Isabell Procter, Director of Resources, 01604 838757 

53



Summary of General Fund Outturn Position 2011/12 Appendix 1

Key

"-" figure denotes a budget under spend or an income budget

"+" figure denotes a budget overspend or an expenditure budget

 2011/12 

Revised

Budget

2011/12

Projected

Outturn as at 

Period 10

2011/12

Outturn

(Under) / 

Over

Spend

£000 £000 £000 £000

Assistant Chief Executive 4,633 4,146 4,246 -387

Director of Planning and Regeneration 2,859 2,505 2,314 -545

Director of Finance and Support 14,761 14,794 14,548 -213

Director of Housing 225 791 309 84

Borough Solicitor 652 738 636 -15

Director of Environment and Culture 9,885 9,578 9,741 -144

Total within Budget Managers Control 33,015 32,552 31,796 -1,219

Capital Expenditure charged to Revenue Account 134 119 119 -15

Provisions 0 481 481 481

Net Support Service Recharges -4,856 -4,803 -4880 -24

Interest and Financing 1,899 1,711 1,411 -488

Parish Precepts & Grants 922 922 922 0

Government Funding -14,207 -14,207 -14,207 0

Council Tax -14,969 -14,969 -14,966 3

Council tax freeze grant -351 -351 -351 0

Non specific grants -989 -989

Technical Accounting Adjustments -31,427 -31,096 -32,460 -1,033

General Fund (under) / over spend 1,588 1,456 -664 -2,252

Net Contribution to/(from) Reserves -1,688 -1,556 200 1,888

General Fund Deficit (Surplus) -100 -100 -464 -364

Balance  b/fwd -2,672

Balance c/fwd -3,136

J:\ACS Section\Year End_11-12\Management Accounts\Outturn\2012 06 11 GF Outturn excelerator.xls

54



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
K

e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
X

0
1

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

2
0
0

1
8
0

-2
0

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

n
 s

u
p
p
lie

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

u
d
g

e
ts

.

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
s

2
0
0

1
8
0

-2
0

L
S

0
1

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
L
S

P
7
2

7
5

4

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
L

S
P

7
2

7
5

4

D
R

0
4

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

4
2
0

3
4
4

-7
6

S
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
, 

n
o
n
e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t.

 

G
C

0
2

C
iv

ic
 a

n
d
 M

a
y
o
ra

l 
E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

9
5

9
5

-0

G
C

0
5

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y

4
8

4
6

-2

G
C

0
6

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

&
 M

a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

5
3
6

5
1
1

-2
5

S
a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 r
e
v
ie

w
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

.

G
C

0
8

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

1
8
9

1
5
2

-3
7

S
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

L
D

0
2

E
le

c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
1
6

3
4
9

-6
7

T
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
le

c
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 R

e
fe

re
n
d
u
m

 o
n
 t

h
e
 U

K
 

P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
ta

ry
 V

o
ti
n
g
 S

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 s
h
a
re

d
 e

q
u
a
lly

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 t

w
o
 a

re
a
s
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e

R
e
fe

re
n
d
u
m

 c
o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 e

le
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

w
e
re

 j
u
s
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fo

re
c
a
s
t.

L
D

0
8

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
5
1

1
1
2

-3
9

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v

e
1
,8

5
3

1
,6

0
8

-2
4
6

55



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
K

e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
I2

0
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3
7
9

3
2
6

-5
3

S
a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

lo
w

e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
la

n
 (

£
3
4
k
) 

a
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 (
£
1
8

k
).

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

a
n

d
 C

h
a
n

g
e

3
7
9

3
2
6

-5
3

G
C

0
1

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
0
7

1
0
6

-2

G
C

0
4

P
o
lic

y
9

8
-1

G
C

0
9

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 O

th
e
r 

G
ra

n
ts

1
,1

6
1

1
,1

3
7

-2
5

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
w

a
rd

e
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
p
a
rt

 w
a
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

y
e
a
r 

- 
J
u
n
e
, 

w
h
e
re

a
s
 a

s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 w
o
u
ld

 h
a
p
p
e
n
 f

ro
m

 A
p
ri
l.

G
C

1
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

4
5
8

4
9
9

4
0

£
4
0
k
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
p
ro

je
c
t.

G
C

1
1

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
s

3
4
9

2
5
7

-9
2

A
 s

a
v
in

g
 o

f 
(£

5
6
k
) 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
re

v
io

u
s
 g

a
s
 b

ill
s
 o

f 
a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
e
n
t 

b
a
c
k
 t

o
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
.

G
C

1
5

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
4
5

5
2

7

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
o

li
c
y
 a

n
d

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 E
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n

t
2
,1

2
9

2
,0

5
8

-7
1

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v

e
4
,6

3
3

4
,2

4
6

-3
8
7

56



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
K

e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

D
R

0
2

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
3
1

2
2
8

-2

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
2
3
1

2
2
8

-2

F
A

0
1

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
,8

5
0

1
,7

7
5

-7
6

S
a
v
in

g
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 N
N

D
R

 r
e
fu

n
d
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

p
p
e
a
l.

F
A

0
6

O
th

e
r 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 &

 L
a
n
d

-1
,4

2
3

-1
,6

8
5

-2
6
2

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
n
ta

l 
fe

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 (

£
2
3
2
k
) 

d
u
e
 t

o
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
re

n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 (

b
a
c
k
 d

a
te

d
 5

 y
e
a
rs

) 
b
e
in

g
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 g
ro

u
n
d
 r

e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 a

rb
it
ra

ti
o
n
 (

£
3
3
2
k
),

 o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 £

1
0
0
k
. 

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
fe

e
s
 o

f 
£
1
3
k
 w

e
re

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 a

rb
it
ra

ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e

n
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
(£

3
7
k
).

  
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

e
in

g
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

(w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 l
e
a
s
e
d
 o

u
t)

 i
n
c
u
rr

in
g
 N

N
D

R
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

£
2
6
k
.

R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

re
m

iu
m

s
 (

£
3
3
k
) 

fo
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 w

e
re

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
.

R
G

0
1

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

9
0

9
1

1

R
G

0
2

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

6
0
1

6
0
6

5

R
G

0
5

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

2
5

2
5

0

R
G

1
2

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 C

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

5
5

0

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
1
,1

4
9

8
1
7

-3
3
2

57



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
K

e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

P
E

0
2

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

1
5

-1
1

-2
6

 (
£
1
6
k
) 

o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 f

ro
m

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 v

e
h
ic

le
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s
, 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

fe
e
s
 &

 s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 e

tc
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 (
£
8
k
) 

s
a
v
in

g
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
w

e
re

d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
e
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
.

P
E

0
3

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l

2
9
3

1
5
0

-1
4
3

T
h
e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 f

e
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 s

o
m

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 m

a
d
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 v
a
c
a
n
t.

P
E

0
6

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
1
0
9

1
0
9

-0

P
E

1
5

J
o
in

t 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 U

n
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

2
8
9

2
8
8

-1

P
E

1
7

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

2
7
6

2
7
3

-2

R
G

0
4

P
la

n
n
in

g
7
8
7

7
4
8

-3
8

 (
£
2
8
k
) 

o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 h

o
ld

in
g
 p

o
s
ts

 v
a
c
a
n
t.

 

R
G

0
9

B
u
s
 S

h
e
lt
e
rs

-2
9
0

-2
9
0

0

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g

1
,4

8
0

1
,2

6
8

-2
1
1

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
2
,8

5
9

2
,3

1
4

-5
4
5

58



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
K

e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

F
A

0
4

N
o
n
 D

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 C

o
s
ts

4
,0

5
7

4
,0

1
1

-4
6

T
h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 s

tr
a
in

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
.

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

4
,0

5
7

4
,0

1
1

-4
6

D
R

0
3

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 &

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

3
4
2

3
2
6

-1
7

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 &

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

3
4
2

3
2
6

-1
7

H
R

0
1

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

9
1
4

9
6
4

5
0

E
x
tr

a
 c

o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
a
b

le
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
.

H
R

0
2

S
in

g
le

 S
ta

tu
s

1
3
1

1
0
2

-2
9

S
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 S

ta
ff

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

R
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

o
ff

s
e
tt

in
g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

H
R

0
3

T
ra

in
in

g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

2
0
2

2
0
0

-2

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

H
u

m
a
n

 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
,2

4
6

1
,2

6
7

2
0

F
A

0
2

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,4

9
5

1
,4

9
4

-1

F
A

0
3

A
u
d
it

3
9
2

3
0
8

-8
4

T
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
lo

w
e
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

o
th

 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

d
is

c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
fu

n
d
s
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
.

F
A

0
5

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

9
2

5
0

-4
2

S
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 b

a
n
k
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

re
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

b
a
n
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

F
A

0
7

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

8
2

8
3

0

F
A

1
9

E
x
c
h
e
q
u
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

4
9
5

5
2
2

2
7

E
x
tr

a
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 p

la
c
e
d
 b

y
 f

ro
n
t 

lin
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 

is
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

ff
s
e
tt

in
g
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
. 

P
R

0
1

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

1
6
6

1
6
5

-1

R
G

0
7

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s
0

4
8

4
8

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a
ry

 f
a
re

s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
.

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

2
,7

2
2

2
,6

7
0

-5
2

59



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
K

e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
S

0
1

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
7
1

4
6
6

-5

C
S

0
3

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 I
C

T
8
4

9
0

6

C
S

0
4

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,5

3
1

1
,6

2
5

9
4

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d
, 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 w
e
re

 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
.

C
S

0
5

P
ri
n
t 

U
n
it

2
3
6

2
4
9

1
2

F
A

0
8

O
ff

ic
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

1
,0

9
4

9
9
3

-1
0
1

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 (
£
6
7
k
) 

s
a
v
in

g
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 N

N
D

R
 r

e
b
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

w
h
ils

t 
w

o
rk

s
 w

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.

 (
£
4
4
k
) 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 A

 

w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

m
in

o
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 v

a
ri
a
n

c
e
.

P
I0

2
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

2
,6

1
6

2
,5

5
3

-6
3

A
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

p
o
s
t 

in
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 h

a
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
(£

2
2
k
).

 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

le
a
s
in

g
 o

f 
h
a

rd
w

a
re

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
(£

2
9
k
).

  
(£

1
0
k
) 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 n
o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
.

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 I
C

T
6
,0

3
1

5
,9

7
5

-5
6

H
S

0
1

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

-4
4

-9
6

-5
1

T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

re
c
o
v
e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 w
a
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 (

£
9
8
k
).

  
£
4
6
k
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 w
a
s
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

th
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

 f
lo

w
.

H
S

0
2

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 &

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

8
1

8
1

0

H
S

0
3

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

3
2
6

3
1
5

-1
2

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 

a
n

d
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
3
6
3

3
0
0

-6
3

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 

F
in

a
n

c
e
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
4
,7

6
1

1
4
,5

4
8

-2
1
3

60



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
K

e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

D
R

0
5

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
1
7
9

1
6
9

-1
0

M
a
in

ly
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 b
u
d
g
e
t

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
1
7
9

1
6
9

-1
0

C
S

0
2

C
a
ll 

C
a
re

-2
0
9

-2
5

1
8
5

T
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

a
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
it
h
 c

o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d

in
g
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 o

f 

£
2
3
7
k
 a

n
d
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
. 

H
S

0
5

H
o
m

e
 C

h
o
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t

-8
4

-9
0

-7

H
S

1
2

H
o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

3
8
0

3
5
0

-3
0

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 w
id

e
s
p
re

a
d
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 o
n
e
 b

e
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
(£

5
1
k
) 

fo
r 

h
o
ld

in
g
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

. 

H
S

1
3

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
s

9
5

1
1
5

2
1

P
E

0
9

T
ra

v
e
lle

rs
 S

it
e
s

1
2

4
-8

P
E

1
2

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

-1
7
3

-2
0
2

-2
9

S
a
v
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 d
u
e
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 t
o
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 r

e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 b

y
 (

£
6
8
k
) 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 u
s
e
d

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
e
s
 I

n
 

M
u
lt
ip

le
 O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 (

H
IM

O
) 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 a

n
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
4
7
k
. 

R
G

0
3

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

2
5

-1
2

-3
7

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 w
id

e
s
p
re

a
d
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 o
n
e
 b

e
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

h
o
ld

in
g

v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

. 

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
4
6

1
4
1

9
5

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
H

o
u

s
in

g
2
2
5

3
0
9

8
4

L
D

0
3

L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

-4
4

-7
6

-3
2

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 L

a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
 f

e
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
fl
u
c
tu

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t

a
c
ti
v
it
y
.

L
D

0
4

L
e
g
a
l

6
9
6

7
1
2

1
6

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 S
o

li
c
it

o
r

6
5
2

6
3
6

-1
5

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 S

o
li

c
it

o
r

6
5
2

6
3
6

-1
5

61



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
K

e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

D
R

0
1

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 C

u
lt
u
re

2
8
5

1
8
6

-9
9

T
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 d

u
e
 m

a
in

ly
 t

o
 a

d
m

in
 p

o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 v
a
c
a
n
t.

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

2
8
5

1
8
6

-9
9

C
E

0
4

L
e
is

u
re

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

1
,1

3
4

1
,1

0
2

-3
2

C
C

T
V

 c
o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 L

e
is

u
re

 T
ru

s
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fe
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
.

C
E

0
6

M
u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 A

rt
s

7
9
4

8
0
7

1
3

C
E

2
7

A
rt

s
 a

n
d
 O

th
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
5
9

4
8

-1
1

T
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
is

.

C
E

3
0

L
e
is

u
re

 -
 N

B
C

0
-1

5
-1

5
T

h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 m

a
in

ly
 b

y
 u

n
fo

re
s
e
e
n
 r

e
fu

n
d
s
 f

o
r 

w
a
te

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
la

te
 t

o
 p

ri
o
r 

y
e
a
rs

.

C
E

3
1

U
n
it
y
 L

e
is

u
re

 P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
s
ts

3
6

3
6

-0

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

L
e
is

u
re

 a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

2
,0

2
3

1
,9

7
8

-4
5

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

7
,3

0
3

7
,2

1
8

-8
5

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

p
lit

 i
n
to

: 
(£

3
7
0
k
) 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 c

re
d

it
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

to
n
n
a
g
e
s
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 p

ri
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

re
c
y
c
le

d
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

. 

£
4
6
0
k
 p

re
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
o
b
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

; 
th

is
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
p
a
ir
in

g
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

re
tu

rn
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

s
ta

ff
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

 T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£
1
4
0
k
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

lie
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

te
a
m

. 

62



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
K

e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
E

0
2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
3
8
7

4
0
8

2
1

L
D

0
5

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
-2

6
1

-2
9
1

-3
0

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
ri
v
e
r 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f

a
c
ili

ty
.

P
E

0
7

P
e
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l

2
0

-2

P
E

1
0

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

3
5
8

3
5
7

-2

P
E

1
1

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

4
3
8

4
0
7

-3
1

T
h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
im

a
l 
w

e
lf
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

P
E

1
6

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

6
9

7
2

2

S
S

0
1

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

7
4
6

6
5
8

-8
8

T
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 a
tt

ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
u

b
li

c
 

P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

1
,7

4
0

1
,6

1
0

-1
3
0

C
E

0
3

E
v
e
n
ts

3
4
1

3
1
0

-3
1

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 '
N

ig
h
t 

L
it
e
 r

u
n
' 
e
v
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
m

a
lle

r 

re
c
e
ip

ts
.

C
E

2
3

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

-2
5

-4
2
1

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 w

o
rk

s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.

C
E

2
4

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

in
g

-1
,9

7
0

-1
,7

3
4

2
3
6

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 a

 d
o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 u

s
a
g
e
 o

f 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 (

b
o
th

 d
a
ily

 a
n
d
 s

e
a
s
o
n
 

ti
c
k
e
ts

) 
a
n
d
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 V

A
T

 r
a
te

. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 d
e

la
y
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
  

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 

c
e
n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
re

s
tr

a
in

ts
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
 u

n
b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 s

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
2
8
k
 

in
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 

fr
e
e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 £

2
5
0
k
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 w
a
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
s
, 

s
o
 n

o
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

h
e
re

.

C
E

2
5

O
n
-S

tr
e
e
t 

P
a
rk

in
g

0
-0

-0

C
E

2
6

B
u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n

2
2
6

2
2
6

-0

F
A

0
9

M
a
rk

e
ts

-3
9

-4
9

-1
0

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

a
s
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t

o
 o

v
e
r 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
n
g
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 (

a
n
 o

v
e
r 

a
c
c
ru

a
l)
.

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

T
o

w
n

 C
e
n

tr
e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

,4
6
6

-1
,2

5
1

2
1
6

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 C
u

lt
u

re
9
,8

8
5

9
,7

4
1

-1
4
4

T
o

ta
l

3
3
,0

1
5

3
1
,7

9
6

-1
,2

1
9

63



C
X

0
1

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
s

L
S

0
1

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
L
S

P

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
L

S
P

D
R

0
4

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

G
C

0
2

C
iv

ic
 a

n
d
 M

a
y
o
ra

l 
E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

G
C

0
5

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y

G
C

0
6

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

&
 M

a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

G
C

0
8

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

L
D

0
2

E
le

c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
D

0
8

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v

e

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

-1
8

-2
0

-2

-1
8

-2
0

-2

-2
4

6

-2
4

6

-6
5

-7
6

-1
2

7
-0

-7

-2
-2

0

-2
8

-2
5

3

-3
7

-3
7

0

-9
1

-6
7

2
4

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 c
o
m

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

-4
0

-3
9

1

-2
5
6

-2
4
6

1
0

64



P
I2

0
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

a
n

d
 C

h
a
n

g
e

G
C

0
1

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

G
C

0
4

P
o
lic

y

G
C

0
9

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 O

th
e
r 

G
ra

n
ts

G
C

1
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

G
C

1
1

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
s

G
C

1
5

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
D

iv
is

io
n

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

P
o

li
c
y
 a

n
d

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 E
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n

t

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v

e

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

-5
8

-5
3

5

-5
8

-5
3

5

-1
-2

-0

-1
-1

0

-2
0

-2
5

-5

3
7

4
0

3

-3
6

-9
2

-5
5

A
 s

a
v
in

g
 o

f 
(£

5
6
k
) 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
re

v
io

u
s
 g

a
s
 b

ill
s
 o

f 
a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
e
n
t 

b
a
c
k
 t

o
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
. 

7
7

0

-1
4

-7
1

-5
7

-3
4
8

-3
8
7

-3
9

65



D
R

0
2

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

F
A

0
1

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

F
A

0
6

O
th

e
r 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 &

 L
a
n
d

R
G

0
1

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

R
G

0
2

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

R
G

0
5

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

R
G

1
2

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 C

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

-3
-2

1

-3
-2

1

-7
3

-7
6

-3

-2
5
6

-2
6
2

-7

0
1

1

3
4

5
-3

0
(£

3
0
k
) 

o
f 

g
ra

n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 A
rt

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
q
u
a
re

 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

.

0
0

0

0
0

0

-2
9
3

-3
3
2

-3
8

66



P
E

0
2

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

P
E

0
3

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l

P
E

0
6

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g

P
E

1
5

J
o
in

t 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 U

n
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

P
E

1
7

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

R
G

0
4

P
la

n
n
in

g

R
G

0
9

B
u
s
 S

h
e
lt
e
rs

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

-9
-2

6
-1

7
 T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 

d
a
n
g
e
ro

u
s
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

c
o
s
ts

 a
ft

e
r 

a
 f

ir
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
t 

in
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

k
n
o
w

n
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

-1
5
0

-1
4
3

7

-1
-0

1

0
-1

-1

-9
-2

6

-2
7

-3
8

-1
2

0
0

0

-1
9
5

-2
1
1

-1
6

-4
9
1

-5
4
5

-5
4

67



F
A

0
4

N
o
n
 D

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 C

o
s
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

D
R

0
3

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 &

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 &

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

H
R

0
1

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

H
R

0
2

S
in

g
le

 S
ta

tu
s

H
R

0
3

T
ra

in
in

g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

H
u

m
a
n

 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

F
A

0
2

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

F
A

0
3

A
u
d
it

F
A

0
5

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

F
A

0
7

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

F
A

1
9

E
x
c
h
e
q
u
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
R

0
1

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

R
G

0
7

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

0
-4

6
-4

6
T

h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 s

tr
a
in

 c
o
s
ts

 t
u
rn

e
d
 o

u
t 

to
 b

e
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
.

0
-4

6
-4

6

-8
-1

7
-9

-8
-1

7
-9

3
9

5
0

1
1

-3
0

-2
9

1

0
-2

-2

1
0

2
0

1
0

-9
-1

8

-5
4

-8
4

-3
0

R
e
b
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
o
u
n
ts

 o
n
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
&

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 n

o
t 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

o
 N

B
C

.

-2
4

-4
2

-1
8

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

n
 b

a
n
k
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

s
 n

e
w

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

b
a
n
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 l
e
s
s
 c

o
s
ts

 t
h
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

0
0

0

3
1

2
7

-3

5
-1

-6

4
8

4
8

0

-3
-5

2
-4

9

68



C
S

0
1

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
S

0
3

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 I
C

T

C
S

0
4

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
S

0
5

P
ri
n
t 

U
n
it

F
A

0
8

O
ff

ic
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

P
I0

2
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 I
C

T

H
S

0
1

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

H
S

0
2

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 &

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

H
S

0
3

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 

a
n

d
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 

F
in

a
n

c
e
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

-1
-5

-4

6
6

-0

2
2

9
4

7
2

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
. 

2
5

1
2

-1
2

 A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 (

£
1
0
k
) 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 f

ro
m

 p
ri
n
ti
n
g
 w

o
rk

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

L
e
is

u
re

 T
ru

s
t 

a
n
d
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 b

o
o
k
le

ts
 e

tc
.

-4
-1

0
1

-9
7

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 o

f 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 h

o
ld

in
g
 

v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 a
m

o
u
n
te

d
 t

o
 (

£
6
5
k
).
 (

£
2
5
k
) 

w
a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 h
ir
in

g
 o

f 
ro

o
m

s
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t.

 

-6
3

-6
3

0
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 l
e
a
s
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 h

a
rd

w
a
re

 a
n
d
 p

c
's

 d
u

e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 I

C
T

 l
e
a
s
e
s
. 

-1
4

-5
6

-4
2

8
3

-5
1

-1
3
4

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ra

b
le

 p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 R

e
n
t 
A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

a
d
 d

e
b
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
(£

1
8
0
k
).

  
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

 f
lo

w
.

-1
0

1

-1
3

-1
2

1

6
9

-6
3

-1
3
2

5
4

-2
1
3

-2
6
7

69



D
R

0
5

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g

C
S

0
2

C
a
ll 

C
a
re

H
S

0
5

H
o
m

e
 C

h
o
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t

H
S

1
2

H
o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

H
S

1
3

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
s

P
E

0
9

T
ra

v
e
lle

rs
 S

it
e
s

P
E

1
2

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

R
G

0
3

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

H
o

u
s
in

g

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
H

o
u

s
in

g

L
D

0
3

L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

L
D

0
4

L
e
g
a
l

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 S
o

li
c
it

o
r

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 S

o
li

c
it

o
r

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

4
-1

0
-1

5
S

a
v
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 b

u
d
g
e
t

4
-1

0
-1

5

1
3
6

1
8
5

4
9

T
h
e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
C

a
ll 

C
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
o
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
.

-5
-7

-1

-4
5

-3
0

1
5

T
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 £

1
0
k
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

o
rm

 o
th

e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

1
1

2
1

9

-3
1

-8
2
3

A
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
s
ts

 a
ls

o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
. 

-1
1

-2
9

-1
8

T
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
.

-3
3

-3
7

-4

2
2

9
5

7
3

2
6

8
4

5
8

1
0

-3
2

-4
1

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 l
a
n
d
 c

h
a
rg

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
.

7
2

1
6

-5
5

R
e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 w

e
re

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

la
te

 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

8
1

-1
5

-9
6

8
1

-1
5

-9
6

70



D
R

0
1

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 C

u
lt
u
re

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

C
E

0
4

L
e
is

u
re

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

C
E

0
6

M
u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 A

rt
s

C
E

2
7

A
rt

s
 a

n
d
 O

th
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

C
E

3
0

L
e
is

u
re

 -
 N

B
C

C
E

3
1

U
n
it
y
 L

e
is

u
re

 P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
s
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

L
e
is

u
re

 a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

-9
2

-9
9

-7

-9
2

-9
9

-7

-0
-3

2
-3

2
C

C
T

V
 c

o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 L

e
is

u
re

 T
ru

s
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fe
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
.

1
1
3

1
2

-5
-1

1
-6

1
9

-1
5

-3
5

T
h
e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 t
o
 u

n
fo

re
s
e
e
n
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
ts

.

8
-0

-8

2
3

-4
5

-6
8

3
0
7

-8
5

-3
9
2

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 (

£
2
8
0
k
) 

o
f 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

la
te

 

in
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 (

£
3
0
k
),

 a
n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 

d
ra

w
n
 d

o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

te
s
ti
n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 (
£
3
0
k
) 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

71



C
E

0
2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty

L
D

0
5

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g

P
E

0
7

P
e
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l

P
E

1
0

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
E

1
1

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
E

1
6

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

S
S

0
1

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
u

b
li

c
 

P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

C
E

0
3

E
v
e
n
ts

C
E

2
3

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
E

2
4

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

in
g

C
E

2
5

O
n
-S

tr
e
e
t 

P
a
rk

in
g

C
E

2
6

B
u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n

F
A

0
9

M
a
rk

e
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

T
o

w
n

 C
e
n

tr
e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 C
u

lt
u

re

T
o

ta
l

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

5
2

2
1

-3
1

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

g
ra

n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

.

-2
4

-3
0

-6

-2
-2

-0

1
-2

-3

-1
6

-3
1

-1
5

0
2

2

-8
5

-8
8

-3

-7
5

-1
3
0

-5
5

-1
8

-3
1

-1
4

2
5

2
1

-4

2
0
4

2
3
6

3
2

T
h
is

 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 f

lu
c
tu

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
.

0
-0

-0

-1
7

-0
1
7

T
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 w

a
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 l
e

s
s
 r

e
n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e

2
4

-1
0

-3
5

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 m

a
rk

e
t 

re
n
ta

l 
a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
.

2
1
9

2
1
6

-4

3
8
3

-1
4
4

-5
2
7

-2
9
5

-1
,2

1
9

-9
2
5

72



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 E

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 4

R
e
s
e
rv

e
A

u
d

it
e
d

 B
a
la

n
c
e
 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1

R
e
a
ll

o
c
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

2
0
1
1
/1

2

U
n

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

2
0
1
1
/1

2

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

 2
0
1
1
/1

2

U
n

a
u

d
it

e
d

B
a
la

n
c
e

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

£
,0

0
0

£
,0

0
0

£
,0

0
0

£
,0

0
0

£
,0

0
0

£
,0

0
0

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
/E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
-3

8
6

3
8

-1
1
9

0
1
8
4

-2
8
3

S
e
rv

ic
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

/P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 C

h
a
n
g
e

-8
6
0

0
-2

3
0

6
5

-8
1
8

G
e
n
e
ra

l
-7

,2
3
0

4
6
2

-1
,4

5
6

0
2
,3

7
9

-5
,8

4
5

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
G

ra
n
ts

-3
,4

7
7

0
-1

,9
8
7

5
0

6
1
2

-4
,8

0
2

B
u
ild

in
g
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
-3

2
9

0
0

0
2
0

-3
0
9

S
u
b
s
id

y
 E

q
u
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

-5
0
0

0
0

0
0

-5
0
0

D
e
b
t 

F
in

a
n
c
in

g
-3

7
7

0
0

0
0

-3
7
7

R
e
n
t 

D
e
p
o
s
it
 S

c
h
e
m

e
-1

0
0

0
-6

0
0

0
-1

6
0

L
e
a
s
in

g
-7

0
0

0
0

-7

C
a
rb

o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

&
 S

a
lix

-1
2
4

0
-4

6
0

0
-1

7
0

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
-2

,3
0
2

0
-8

7
0

2
4
6

-2
,1

4
3

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

y
s
te

m
s

-2
9
9

0
0

0
4
5

-2
5
4

A
rt

s
-1

9
0

0
0

0
-1

9

D
e
la

p
re

 A
b
b
e
y

0
-5

0
0

-2
5

0
3

-5
2
2

-1
6
,0

1
0

0
-3

,8
0
3

5
0

3
,5

5
4

-1
6
,2

0
9

-0
.1
9

0
.0
0

0
.2
6

0
.3
1

0
.0
4

0
.4
1

73



Appendix 5

Summary of Housing Revenue Account Outturn Position 2011/12

Key

"-" figure denotes a budget under spend or an income budget

"+" figure denotes a budget overspend or an expenditure budget

 2011/12 

Revised

Budget

2011/12

Projected

Outturn as at 

Period 10

2011/12

Outturn

(Under) / 

Over

Spend

£000 £000 £000 £000

Rents - Dwellings Only -44,753 -44,728 -44,789 -36

Rents - Non Dwellings Only -1,134 -1,100 -1,107 27

Service Charges -1,450 -1,453 -1,351 99

Other Income -25 -25 -13 12

Repairs and Maintenance 10,307 10,544 10,580 273

General Management 4,920 5,065 5,247 326

Special Services 3,771 3,694 3,615 -156

Rents, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges 87 87 75 -12

Increase in Bad Debt Provision 450 400 177 -273

Rent Rebate Subsidy Deductions 811 811 818 7

Housing Revenue Account Subsidy 12,737 12,047 11,972 -765

Total within Budget Managers Control -14,278 -14,659 -14,777 -499

Capital Charges 8,161 8,161 8,161 0

Interest and Financing 262 172 162 -100

Net Support Service Recharges 4,856 4,712 4,792              -64

Technical Accounting Adjustments 13,279 13,045 13,115 -164

HRA Under spend 2011/2012 -999 -1,614 -1,662 -663

Net Contribution to/(from) Reserves 999 1,599 1,555 556

Housing Revenue Account Deficit (Surplus) 0 -15 -107 -107

Balance  b/fwd -4,893

Balance c/fwd -5,000

74



H
R

A
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 6

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

H
S

0
5

H
o
m

e
 C

h
o
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t

7
9

1
0
3

2
4

T
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
d
e
r-

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
 T

h
is

 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
, 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

n
 o

v
e
rs

e
n
d
 o

f 
£
2
6

k
. 

H
S

0
7

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

L
iv

in
g

1
,5

0
5

1
,4

3
4

-7
1

S
a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
la

te
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 t
o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 h
e
ld

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
6
8

k
. 

H
S

1
5

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

y
s
te

m
s

5
4
8

6
0
6

5
8

T
h
is

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
o
ft

w
a
re

 a
n
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 I

B
S

 r
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
2
,1

3
3

2
,1

4
4

1
1

H
S

0
4

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

5
,7

5
7

5
,9

1
0

1
5
3

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 l
o
a
n
 f

e
e
s
 o

f 
£
6
5
k
 (

P
W

L
B

) 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 b
u
y
o
u
t.

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

IB
S

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 £

6
4
k
. 

S
o
m

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 E

M
S

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
s
 s

o
m

e
 t

re
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

w
o
rk

s
 w

e
re

 

d
e
la

y
e
d
.

H
S

0
6

H
R

A
 S

u
b
s
id

y
1
2
,7

3
7

1
1
,9

7
2

-7
6
5

A
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

p
a
y
a
b
le

 i
s
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 a

 f
o
rm

u
la

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
t.

 f
o
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

 

H
S

0
8

H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
ts

 &
 O

th
e
r 

In
c
o
m

e
-4

6
,1

0
0

-4
6
,2

6
5

-1
6
5

P
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

a
d
 d

e
b
ts

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
lo

w
e
r 

a
rr

e
a
rs

.

H
S

1
6

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
e
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

3
,6

5
1

4
,0

2
3

3
7
2

£
1
5
5
k
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

a
la

ry
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
c
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
s
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 o
ff

s
e
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 (

b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 l
in

e
).

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 m

o
re

 b
o
ile

rs
 b

re
a
k
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
ld

 w
in

te
r 

£
4
0
k
, 

£
1
9
3
k
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 w

e
re

 m
o
v
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a

s
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

S
S

1
8

H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

7
,5

4
5

7
,4

4
0

-1
0
5

S
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

-£
4
6
k
. 
A

ls
o
 t

h
e
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 -

£
1
0
0
k
. 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 o

n
 v

e
h
ic

le
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
t 

h
ir
e

 d
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 s

p
o
t 

h
ir
e
 

c
o
s
ts

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 m

o
b
ile

 p
h
o
n
e
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 M

o
to

ro
la

 P
D

A
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
a
n

d
lo

rd
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

-1
6
,4

1
1

-1
6
,9

2
1

-5
1
0

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
H

o
u

s
in

g
-1

4
,2

7
8

-1
4
,7

7
7

-4
9
9

75



H
R

A
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 6

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 P
o
s
it
io

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn
O

u
tt

u
rn

 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

T
o

ta
l

-1
4
,2

7
8

-1
4
,7

7
7

-4
9
9

J
:\
A

C
S

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
\Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
_

1
1
-1

2
\M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

\O
u
tt

u
rn

\2
0
1
2
 0

5
 1

5
 p

m
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 e
x
c
e
le

ra
to

r.
x
ls

76



H
S

0
5

H
o
m

e
 C

h
o
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t

H
S

0
7

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

L
iv

in
g

H
S

1
5

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

y
s
te

m
s

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g

H
S

0
4

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

H
S

0
6

H
R

A
 S

u
b
s
id

y

H
S

0
8

H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
ts

 &
 O

th
e
r 

In
c
o
m

e

H
S

1
6

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
e
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

S
S

1
8

H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

D
iv

is
io

n
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
a
n

d
lo

rd
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
H

o
u

s
in

g

H
R

A
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 7

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

8
5

2
4

-6
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 a

t 
y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

-1
0
4

-7
1

3
3

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

o
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g
 l
a
te

 /
 n

ig
h
t 

s
h
it
s
.

7
9

5
8

-2
0

T
h
e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 a

n
 u

n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 h

ig
h
 u

s
e
 o

f 
o
n
lin

e
 f

o
rm

s
 w

it
h
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

lo
w

e
r 

p
ri
n
ti
n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 v
a

ri
a

n
c
e
.

5
9

1
1

-4
8

1
4

1
5
3

1
3
9

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
; 

 £
6
4
k
 u

n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 f

e
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

R
A

 b
u
y
o
u
t,

  
£
2
7
k
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

 c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

IB
S

 o
p
e
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

e
v
e
ra

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 n
o
t 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 £

4
2
k
.

-6
9
0

-7
6
5

-7
5

T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

p
a
y
a
b
le

 i
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 a

 f
o
rm

u
la

 s
e
t 

o
u

t 
b
y
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
t.

 f
o
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

 

6
5

-1
6
5

-2
3
0

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

a
d
 d

e
b
ts

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
lo

w
e
r 

re
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 l
e
v
e
ls

 t
h
a
n
 h

a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

1
9
7

3
7
2

1
7
4

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

-2
7

-1
0
5

-7
8

P
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 w

o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
T

e
a
m

. 

-4
4
0

-5
1
0

-7
0

-3
8
1

-4
9
9

-1
1
8

77



T
o

ta
l

J
:\
A

C
S

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
\Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
_

1
1
-1

2
\M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

\O
u
tt

u
r n

H
R

A
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 7

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

0
 F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
  

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

K
e
y

"-
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
tt

u
rn

"+
" 

fi
g
u
re

 d
e
n
o
te

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

r 
a
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tt

u
rn

P
e
ri

o
d

 1
0
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

V
s

O
u

tt
u

rn

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

-3
8
1

-4
9
9

-1
1
8

78



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 8

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

H
R

A
 E

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
B

a
la

n
c
e
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

1

R
e
a
ll

o
c
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

2
0
1
1
/1

2

U
n

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

2
0
1
1
/1

2

L
e
s
s
 A

c
tu

a
l 

U
s
e
 o

f 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

B
a
la

n
c
e

3
1
/0

3
/1

2

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

  
C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
1
2
,8

6
0

2
,2

0
8

(1
2
,4

5
5
)

2
,6

1
3

  
L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
1
,0

0
0

(8
3
2
)

1
6
8

  
S

e
rv

ic
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

&
 P

ro
je

c
t 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
8
2
1

3
4
7

(1
6
8
)

1
,0

0
0

  
S

to
c
k
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 A

p
p
ra

is
a
l

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

  
S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
5
5
8

5
5
8

T
o

ta
l 

(E
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 H

R
A

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
)

1
7
,2

3
9

0
2
,5

5
5

0
(1

3
,4

5
5
)

6
,3

3
9

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 t

o
 a

n
d

 T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 (

fr
o

m
) 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

79



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 &
 C

a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 R
e
q
u
e
s
ts

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 9

2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
0
0
-2

0
1
1
1
3

2
0
1
1
0
0
-2

0
1
1
1
3

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o

d
e
 &

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
v
is

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

O
u

tt
u

rn

(U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
) 

/ 

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n

d

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t

T
O

T
A

L
 C

a
rr

y
 

F
o

rw
a
rd

R
e
q

u
e
s
t

2
0
1
1
/1

2

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 o

r 

fu
ll

y
 g

ra
n

t 

fu
n

d
e
d

 c
a
rr

y
 

fo
rw

a
rd

re
q

u
e
s
t

U
n

c
o

m
m

it
te

d

c
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 

re
q

u
e
s
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r

£
£

£
£

£
£

C
h

ri
s
 C

a
v
a
n

a
g

h
 (

C
C

4
)

B
A

1
2
2
 -

 F
ir
e
 S

a
fe

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

s
7
4
,5

0
0

1
9
,6

7
8

-5
4
,8

2
2

5
4
,1

0
0

5
4
,1

0
0

5
4
,1

0
0

T
h
e
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
n
 t

h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

fu
lly

 c
o

m
p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 3

1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
.

B
A

1
3
1
 -

 D
a
n
e
s
 C

a
m

p
 R

o
o
f 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

0
-3

0
 

-3
0
 

B
A

1
3
2
 -

 S
t 

C
ri
s
p
in

 C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 R

o
o
m

s
, 

T
o
ile

t,
 C

a
r 

p
a
rk

0
0

0

B
A

1
3
3
 -

 S
t 

C
ri
s
p
in

 F
o
o
tb

a
ll 

P
it
c
h
e
s
 a

n
d
 P

la
y
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

0
0

0

B
A

1
3
6
 -

 W
a
te

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

s
7
0
,0

0
0

7
7
,3

8
7

7
,3

8
7

B
A

1
3
7
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
1
5
0
,2

7
7

1
4
8
,9

6
4

-1
,3

1
3

B
A

1
3
8
 -

 C
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

s
3
1
,8

2
7

5
6
,1

2
9

2
4
,3

0
2

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 s

p
e
n
d
 b

u
t 

s
ti
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

v
e
r 

to
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

B
A

1
3
9
 -

 W
o
rk

s
 t

o
 C

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

s
 (

fo
o
tp

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 b

o
u
d
a
ry

 w
a
lls

)
2
5
,0

0
0

1
7
,2

5
7

-7
,7

4
3

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

T
h
e
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 f

o
r 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 p

a
id

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

B
A

1
4
0
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 -

 D
D

A
 I

s
s
u
e
s

2
,0

0
0

-2
,9

4
2
 

-4
,9

4
2
 

B
A

1
4
1
 -

 U
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

F
a
ilu

re
s

0
2
7
5

2
7
5

B
A

1
4
2
 -

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

P
a
rk

s
1
3
9
,1

9
7

1
3
8
,3

1
9

-8
7
8

B
A

1
6
9
 -

 N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

1
,0

0
0

1
,2

9
3

2
9
3

B
A

1
7
2
 -

 S
h
e
lf
le

y
s
 /

 L
a
d
y
b
ri
d
g
e
 G

re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
 P

la
y
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

5
4
,5

8
4

5
4
,5

8
4

0

B
A

1
7
9
 -

 A
b
in

g
to

n
 P

a
rk

, 
C

h
a
n
g
in

g
 R

o
o
m

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

1
2
,0

0
0

1
1
,8

0
3

-1
9
7

1
9
7

1
9
7

1
9
7

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 g

ra
n
t 

fu
n
d
e
d
.

B
A

1
8
0
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 I

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

5
0
0
,0

0
0

0
-5

0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
,0

0
0

U
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
, 

w
it
h
in

 a
g
re

e
d
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
, 

in
 

1
1
/1

2
.

B
A

1
8
1
 -

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
A

b
in

g
to

n
 P

a
rk

 C
o
tt

a
g
e
s
 1

&
2

7
5
,3

3
5

7
4
,6

9
1

-6
4
4

B
A

1
8
2
 -

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 
M

u
s
e
u
m

 -
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
A

ir
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
in

g
 U

n
it
s

4
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

0

B
A

1
8
3
 -

 T
im

b
e
r 

F
o
o
tb

ri
d
g
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

1
0
2
,0

0
0

1
0
3
,3

2
6

1
,3

2
6

B
A

1
8
4
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 R

id
in

g
s
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
3
7
,2

4
9

3
5
,5

4
3

-1
,7

0
6

B
A

1
8
5
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 E

s
c
a
la

to
rs

 -
 G

re
y
fr

ia
rs

 B
u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n

2
4
,7

2
0

2
4
,8

4
4

1
2
4

B
A

1
8
6
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 P

a
rk

s
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
5
3
,0

0
0

6
7
,8

4
4

1
4
,8

4
4

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 s

p
e
n
d
 b

u
t 

s
ti
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

v
e
r 

to
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

B
A

1
8
7
 -

 R
a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
 B

o
w

lin
g
 G

re
e
n
 F

o
o
tp

a
th

s
1
2
,0

0
0

1
0
,8

1
4

-1
,1

8
6

3
5
0

3
5
0

3
5
0

T
h
e
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

w
o
rk

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

B
A

1
8
8
 -

 R
o
y
a
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
rn

g
a
te

 R
o
o
f 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

s
7
3
,8

3
4

8
0
,2

3
6

6
,4

0
2

B
A

1
8
9
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

s
s
e
t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

6
3
,7

2
7

6
7
,9

4
3

4
,2

1
6

B
A

1
9
1
 -

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
A

ir
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
in

g
 a

t 
W

e
s
tb

ri
d
g
e
 D

e
p

o
t

1
2
9
,8

9
0

1
2
9
,1

4
4

-7
4
6

B
A

1
9
4
 -

 G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

R
e
n
e
w

a
ls

3
1
,0

0
0

0
-3

1
,0

0
0

3
1
,0

0
0

3
1
,0

0
0

3
1
,0

0
0

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

o
rk

s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ie
s
 o

f 
s
c
a
le

.

B
A

1
9
5
 -

 P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
's

 H
e
ri
ta

g
e

0
0

0

B
A

1
9
6
 -

 G
ro

s
v
e
n
o
r/

G
re

y
fr

ia
rs

 -
 S

ta
g
e
c
o
a
c
h
 R

e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n

2
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0
0

0

B
A

1
9
7
 -

 D
e
la

p
re

 A
b
b
e
y
 R

e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n
 M

in
o
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

1
0
0
,0

0
0

9
9
,7

0
8

-2
9
2

B
A

2
0
2
 -

 B
e
c
k
e
ts

 P
a
rk

 V
ic

to
ri
a
n
 P

ro
m

e
n
a
d
e
 R

e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n

2
5
2
,4

4
2

2
5
2
,4

4
2

-0

B
A

3
6
8
 -

 U
p
to

n
 P

a
rk

 P
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 &

 C
y
c
le

 B
ri
d
g
e

5
9
5
,9

5
5

5
0
5
,4

8
9

-9
0
,4

6
6

9
0
,4

6
6

9
0
,4

6
6

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 d
e
la

y
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

B
A

3
7
4
 -

 A
b
in

g
to

n
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 -
 I

n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

L
e
v
e
l 
R

a
d
o

n
 

V
e
n
ti
la

ti
o
n

0
0

0

B
A

8
8
7
 -

 G
ro

s
v
e
n
o
r 

G
re

y
fr

ia
rs

 C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

s
1
,1

7
3
,5

3
3

1
,0

9
5
,2

6
5

-7
8
,2

6
8

7
8
,0

0
0

7
8
,0

0
0

7
8
,0

0
0

T
h
e
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
n
 t

h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

fu
lly

 c
o

m
p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 3

1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
.

B
A

8
8
8
 -

 M
a
rk

e
t 

S
q
u
a
re

 L
E

D
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g

5
1
,7

9
3

8
,7

6
4

-4
3
,0

2
9

0
P

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

T
h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 g

ra
n
t 

fu
n
d
e
d
. 

B
A

8
8
9
 -

 M
a
y
o
rh

o
ld

 C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 -
  

D
ra

in
a
g
e
 W

o
rk

s
0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
5
,8

7
6
,8

6
3

5
,1

1
8
,7

7
1

-7
5
8
,0

9
2

7
5
6
,1

1
3

1
6
5
,6

4
7

2
5
6
,1

1
3

5
0
0
,0

0
0

D
e
rr

ic
k
 S

im
p

s
o

n
 (

D
S

1
)

B
A

1
3
0
 -

 C
e
n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

O
F

 C
a
rp

a
rk

in
g

3
9
,0

9
5

1
6
,5

0
9

-2
2
,5

8
6

0
P

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

 T
h
e
 q

u
o
te

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

e
re

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
.

P
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 F

in
a
n
c
e

0
3
/0

7
/1

2

80



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 &
 C

a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 R
e
q
u
e
s
ts

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 9

2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
0
0
-2

0
1
1
1
3

2
0
1
1
0
0
-2

0
1
1
1
3

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o

d
e
 &

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
v
is

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

O
u

tt
u

rn

(U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
) 

/ 

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n

d

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t

T
O

T
A

L
 C

a
rr

y
 

F
o

rw
a
rd

R
e
q

u
e
s
t

2
0
1
1
/1

2

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 o

r 

fu
ll

y
 g

ra
n

t 

fu
n

d
e
d

 c
a
rr

y
 

fo
rw

a
rd

re
q

u
e
s
t

U
n

c
o

m
m

it
te

d

c
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 

re
q

u
e
s
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r

£
£

£
£

£
£

B
A

9
0
2
 -

 G
ro

s
v
e
n
o
r 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 -
  

P
a
rk

in
g
 M

a
c
h
in

e
s

3
3
,6

5
0

3
2
,1

4
7

-1
,5

0
3

0

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

T
o

w
n

 C
e
n

tr
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
7
2
,7

4
5

4
8
,6

5
6

-2
4
,0

8
9

0
0

0
0

F
ra

n
 R

o
d

g
e
rs

 (
F

R
2
)

B
K

0
1
0
 -

 C
o
u
n
tr

y
w

id
e
 C

lim
a
te

 F
ri
e
n
d
ly

 C
o
m

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
1
8
3
,9

0
2

8
5
,3

9
1

-9
8
,5

1
1

9
8
,5

1
1

9
8
,5

1
1

9
8
,5

1
1

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d
e
d
.

B
K

0
1
1
 -

 P
la

c
e
s
 o

f 
C

h
a
n
g
e

7
1
1
,4

9
9

7
1
1
,4

9
9

0

B
K

0
1
3
 -

 E
m

p
ty

 H
o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
0

2
,2

0
1

2
,2

0
1

B
K

0
1
4
 -

 C
B

L
 S

u
b
-r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
4
1
,2

0
1

1
4
,2

0
8

-2
6
,9

9
3

2
6
,9

9
3

2
6
,9

9
3

2
6
,9

9
3

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d
e
d
.

B
K

0
1
5
 -

 D
F

G
's

 O
w

n
e
r 

O
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
2
,6

6
7
,7

8
4

2
,0

4
8
,3

8
6

-6
1
9
,3

9
8

6
1
9
,3

9
8

6
1
9
,3

9
8

6
1
9
,3

9
8

T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
a
n
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
, 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

s
p
e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 1
0
0
%

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

p
e
n
t 

in
 2

0
1
2
/2

0
1
3
.

B
K

0
2
9
 -

 H
o
t 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 3

1
,3

9
2

0
-1

,3
9
2

1
,3

9
2

1
,3

9
2

1
,3

9
2

B
K

0
4
2
 -

 E
c
to

n
 L

a
n
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

0
5
,0

5
9

5
,0

5
9

B
K

0
4
3
 -

 E
c
to

n
 L

a
n
e
 R

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
W

o
rk

s
 2

0
-6

,6
7
8
 

-6
,6

7
8
 

B
K

0
4
4
 -

 G
O

E
M

 D
e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

4
2
4
,3

1
9

3
5
4
,2

6
7

-7
0
,0

5
2

7
0
,0

5
2

7
0
,0

5
2

7
0
,0

5
2

T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
a
n
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
, 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

s
p
e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 1
0
0
%

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

p
e
n
t 

in
 2

0
1
2
/2

0
1
3
.

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
4
,0

3
0
,0

9
7

3
,2

1
4
,3

3
4

-8
1
5
,7

6
3

8
1
6
,3

4
6

8
1
6
,3

4
6

8
1
4
,9

5
4

1
,3

9
2

J
u

li
e
 S

e
d

d
o

n
 (

J
S

1
4
)

B
A

1
4
4
 -

 P
la

y
b
u
ild

e
r 

- 
D

a
lli

n
g
to

n
4
9
,3

0
0

4
9
,0

0
0

-3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 g

ra
n
t 

fu
n
d
e
d
.

B
A

1
6
7
 -

 I
 L

o
v
e
 M

y
 P

a
rk

s
2
2
0
,0

0
0

2
1
7
,7

4
6

-2
,2

5
4

2
,2

5
4

2
,2

5
4

2
,2

5
4

B
A

2
0
4
 -

 E
M

S
 -

 C
o
n
ta

in
e
rs

2
0
8
,0

0
0

2
0
8
,1

0
5

1
0
5

B
A

2
0
5
 -

 E
M

S
 -

 F
o
o
d
 W

a
s
te

 C
a
d
d
ie

s
4
0
8
,5

6
8

4
0
8
,5

6
8

0

B
A

2
0
6
 -

 E
M

S
 -

 W
e
s
tb

ri
d
g
e
 D

e
p
o
t 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
ts

4
5
0
,0

0
0

4
5
0
,0

0
0

0

B
A

4
6
0
 -

 W
h
e
e
lie

 B
in

s
 &

 R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 B

o
x
e
s
 -

 T
o
w

n
 G

ro
w

th
1
6
,3

9
4

-3
,3

1
6
 

-1
9
,7

1
0
 

0

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

1
,3

5
2
,2

6
2

1
,3

3
0
,1

0
2

-2
2
,1

6
0

2
,5

5
4

2
,2

5
4

3
0
0

2
,2

5
4

B
A

1
6
6
 -

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
h
o
e
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
0

-1
,1

3
5
 

-1
,1

3
5
 

0

B
A

1
9
3
 -

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

- 
N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 a
n
d
 A

rt
 G

a
lle

ry
3
0
5
,9

7
6

3
2
2
,9

2
8

1
6
,9

5
2

0

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
e
is

u
re

 a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

3
0
5
,9

7
6

3
2
1
,7

9
2

1
5
,8

1
6

0
0

0
0

M
a
ri

o
n

 G
o

o
d

m
a
n

 (
M

G
3
)

B
A

1
1
1
 -

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 H

u
b
 G

IS
3
6
,1

3
0

2
2
,9

7
5

-1
3
,1

5
5

1
3
,1

5
5

1
3
,1

5
5

1
3
,1

5
5

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 a

s
 g

ra
n
t 

fu
n
d
e
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
.

B
A

1
5
7
 -

 C
O

M
; 

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 (

V
o
IP

)
5
4
,7

0
6

4
7
,5

9
8

-7
,1

0
8

7
,1

0
8

7
,1

0
8

7
,1

0
8

W
o
rk

 s
ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

o
n
 u

n
if
ie

d
 c

o
m

m
s
/v

id
e
o
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
in

g

B
A

1
7
3
 -

 M
u
lt
i-
F

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 D

e
v
ic

e
s
 (

M
F

D
's

)
1
1
8
,1

6
9

8
8
,5

4
1

-2
9
,6

2
8

2
9
,6

2
8

2
9
,6

2
8

2
9
,6

2
8

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 p

h
a
s
e
 2

 o
ff

ic
e
 w

o
rk

s
.

B
A

1
9
2
 -

 C
o
n
te

n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 f

o
r 

W
e
b
s
it
e
s

3
0
,0

0
0

2
6
,3

5
0

-3
,6

5
0

3
,6

5
0

3
,6

5
0

2
,7

9
9

8
5
1

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

fi
n
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 f

ro
m

 s
u
p
p
lie

r

B
A

1
9
8
 -

 P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
T

e
rr

a
p
in

 B
u
ild

in
g
s

7
,5

0
0

7
,5

0
0

0

B
A

2
0
7
 -

 I
T

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 S
e
rv

e
rs

 a
n
d
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 S
to

ra
g
e

1
4
2
,3

0
0

1
4
1
,8

4
8

-4
5
2

0

B
A

6
4
4
 -

 O
n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

1
7
2
,6

3
6

1
7
9
,7

8
1

7
,1

4
5

0

B
A

7
4
3
 -

 E
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 R
e
c
o
rd

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

0
0

0
0

B
A

7
6
4
 -

 C
R

M
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

1
4
2
,8

0
5

1
1
3
,1

3
9

-2
9
,6

6
6

2
9
,9

6
6

2
9
,9

6
6

2
9
,9

6
6

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 d
e
la

y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
N

D
L
 m

id
d
le

w
a
re

 

w
it
h
 l
in

e
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
o
s
e
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

y
e
a

r

B
A

7
8
6
 -

 D
a
ta

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

4
1
,6

9
2

3
6
,9

5
8

-4
,7

3
4

4
,7

3
4

4
,7

3
4

4
,7

3
4

T
h
e
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

 e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

w
if
i 
h
u
b
s

B
A

8
0
8
 -

 I
T

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
7
0
,8

1
4

3
6
,5

7
8

-3
4
,2

3
6

3
4
,2

3
6

3
4
,2

3
6

3
4
,2

3
6

T
h
e
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
n
e
tw

o
rk

 e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

- 
s
w

it
c
h
e
s

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 I
C

T
8
1
6
,7

5
2

7
0
1
,2

6
8

-1
1
5
,4

8
4

1
2
2
,4

7
7

1
2
2
,4

7
7

1
5
,9

5
4

1
0
6
,5

2
3

R
o

b
in

 B
a
te

s
 (

R
B

4
)

B
A

1
4
5
 -

 C
lif

to
n
v
ill

e
 M

o
v
e
; 

N
e
w

 w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

7
4
1
,2

5
8

7
2
1
,1

6
3

-2
0
,0

9
5

2
0
,0

9
5

2
0
,0

9
5

5
0
,0

0
0

5
,2

4
6

B
A

1
5
4
 -

 C
O

M
; 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

6
6
,3

8
4

6
7
,8

2
5

1
,4

4
1

-1
4
4
1

P
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 F

in
a
n
c
e

0
3
/0

7
/1

2

81



G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 &
 C

a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 R
e
q
u
e
s
ts

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 9

2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
0
0
-2

0
1
1
1
3

2
0
1
1
0
0
-2

0
1
1
1
3

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o

d
e
 &

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
v
is

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

O
u

tt
u

rn

(U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
) 

/ 

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n

d

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t

T
O

T
A

L
 C

a
rr

y
 

F
o

rw
a
rd

R
e
q

u
e
s
t

2
0
1
1
/1

2

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 o

r 

fu
ll

y
 g

ra
n

t 

fu
n

d
e
d

 c
a
rr

y
 

fo
rw

a
rd

re
q

u
e
s
t

U
n

c
o

m
m

it
te

d

c
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 

re
q

u
e
s
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r

£
£

£
£

£
£

B
A

1
5
5
 -

 C
O

M
; 

F
ili

n
g
 &

 S
to

ra
g
e

0
-2

5
0
 

-2
5
0
 

2
5
0

2
5
0

B
A

1
5
6
 -

 C
O

M
; 

IC
T

 S
e
rv

e
r 

R
o
o
m

0
-6

,3
4
2
 

-6
,3

4
2
 

6
,3

4
2

6
,3

4
2

B
A

1
5
8
 -

 C
O

M
; 

M
u
lt
if
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

ri
n
te

rs
2
0
,0

0
0

0
-2

0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

B
A

1
5
9
 -

 C
O

M
; 

S
it
e
 E

x
it

1
0
,0

0
0

0
-1

0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

8
3
7
,6

4
2

7
8
2
,3

9
6

-5
5
,2

4
6

5
5
,2

4
6

5
6
,6

8
7

5
0
,0

0
0

5
,2

4
6

B
A

2
0
9
 -

 H
o
s
te

d
 D

e
b
it
 a

n
d
 C

re
d
it
 C

a
rd

 P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

0
0

0

B
A

7
3
0
 -

 C
o
re

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

ls
4
6
,2

4
0

4
4
,7

9
8

-1
,4

4
2

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

4
6
,2

4
0

4
4
,7

9
8

-1
,4

4
2

0
0

0
0

B
A

8
7
8
 -

 M
o
n
e
y
 4

 Y
o
u
th

: 
Y

o
u
th

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
F

u
n
d

4
6
,7

1
2

0
-4

6
,7

1
2

0

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
o

li
c
y
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
4
6
,7

1
2

0
-4

6
,7

1
2

0
0

0
0

B
A

1
6
0
 -

 C
O

M
; 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 4

 H
o
m

e
 W

o
rk

in
g

2
7
,6

7
6

2
7
,9

5
4

2
7
8

0

B
A

1
6
4
 -

 C
O

M
; 

IT
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

N
e
w

 w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

9
0
,1

5
9

9
0
,7

0
6

5
4

7
0

B
A

1
6
5
 -

 C
O

M
; 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
,9

2
9

-9
8
,0

7
1

9
8
,0

7
1

9
8
,0

7
1

9
8
,0

7
1

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 1

2
/1

3
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
.

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts
2
1
7
,8

3
5

1
2
0
,5

8
9

-9
7
,2

4
6

9
8
,0

7
1

9
8
,0

7
1

0
9
8
,0

7
1

S
u

s
a
n

 B
ri

d
g

e
 (

S
B

1
1
)

B
A

2
1
0
 -

 J
e
ff

re
y
 R

o
o
m

 A
u
d
io

 a
n
d
 V

is
u
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

6
0
,5

0
0

5
3
,9

6
1

-6
,5

3
9

6
,5

3
9

6
,5

3
9

6
,5

3
9

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 f

in
a
lis

e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 T
h
is

 c
a
rr

y
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 g
ra

n
t.

 

B
A

8
8
3
 -

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 I

T
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
H

P
D

G
)

1
5
,9

5
5

1
2
,7

8
8

-3
,1

6
7

3
,1

6
7

3
,1

6
7

T
h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 g

ra
n
t 

fu
n
d
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

o
 f

u
n
d
 f

u
tu

re
 w

o
rk

s
.

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g

7
6
,4

5
5

6
6
,7

4
9

-9
,7

0
6

9
,7

0
6

6
,5

3
9

9
,7

0
6

0

S
te

v
e
 E

ls
e
y
 (

S
E

3
)

B
A

1
0
9
 -

 C
a
m

p
 H

ill
 M

u
lt
i 
U

s
e
 G

a
m

e
 A

re
a
 (

M
U

G
A

)
0

-1
,1

2
2
 

-1
,1

2
2
 

B
A

1
7
6
 -

 C
M

-D
ra

u
g
h
t 

P
ro

o
fi
n
g
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll

8
,2

6
0

4
,8

6
9

-3
,3

9
1

B
A

2
0
8
 -

 E
a
s
tf

ie
ld

 P
a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 P

a
rk

 E
n
tr

a
n
c
e

3
5
,0

0
0

3
4
,8

3
3

-1
6
7

B
A

2
1
1
 -

 E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
D

u
s
to

n
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
4
5
,0

0
0

2
,5

5
0

-4
2
,4

5
0

4
2
,4

5
0

4
2
,4

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
 c

a
n
 o

n
ly

 p
ro

c
e
e
d
 o

n
c
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
. 

B
A

8
7
2
 -

 N
ig

h
t 

S
a
fe

 &
 T

a
rg

e
t 

H
a
rd

e
n
in

g
 -

 S
S

N
P

8
,0

2
1

9
,3

3
5

1
,3

1
4

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

P
u

b
li

c
 P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

9
6
,2

8
1

5
0
,4

6
5

-4
5
,8

1
6

4
2
,4

5
0

0
0

4
2
,4

5
0

T
O

T
A

L
S

1
3
,7

7
5
,8

6
0

1
1
,7

9
9
,9

2
0

-1
,9

7
5
,9

4
0

1
,9

0
2
,9

6
3

1
,2

6
8
,0

2
1

1
,1

4
7
,0

2
7

7
5
5
,9

3
6

J
:\
A

C
S

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
\Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
_

1
1
-1

2
\M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

\O
u
tt

u
rn

\2
0
1
2
 0

6
 0

1
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 G
F

 P
1
3
.x

ls

T
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 a

 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

P
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 F

in
a
n
c
e

0
3
/0

7
/1

2

82



H
R

A
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 &
 C

a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 R
e
q
u
e
s
ts

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 9

2
0
1
1
/1

2

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o

d
e
 &

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
v
is

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

O
u

tt
u

rn

(U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 /

 

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n

d

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 o

r 

F
u

ll
y
 G

ra
n

t 

F
u

n
d

e
d

 C
a
rr

y
 

F
o

rw
a
rd

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t

U
n

c
o

m
m

it
te

d

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r

£
£

£
£

£
£

F
ra

n
 R

o
d

g
e
rs

 (
F

R
2
)

B
A

7
4
2
 -

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(F
IS

H
)

8
8
,8

5
0

9
5
,4

3
7

6
,5

8
7

B
H

0
0
6
 -

 W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 W

a
y
 N

e
w

 B
u
ild

0
-1

5
,9

9
6
 

-1
5
,9

9
6
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
t 

le
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 f

o
re

c
a
s
te

d

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
8
8
,8

5
0

7
9
,4

4
2

-9
,4

0
8

0
0

0

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
a
n

d
lo

rd
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

M
a
ry

 W
o

o
d

) 
(H

O
L

S
)

B
H

0
0
3
 -

 G
a
ra

g
e
s
 R

o
o
fs

 &
 D

o
o
rs

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

2
0
,0

0
0

1
4
,7

9
9

-5
,2

0
1

5
,2

0
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

5
,2

0
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

B
H

0
0
9
 -

 F
ir
e
 S

a
fe

ty
 W

o
rk

s
 -

 c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
a
re

a
s

3
2
3
,9

5
8

3
2
5
,3

2
3

1
,3

6
5

B
H

0
1
1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

s
1
0
0
,0

0
0

9
8
,4

0
2

-1
,5

9
8

1
,5

9
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

1
,5

9
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

B
H

0
1
3
 -

 D
ig

it
a
l 
A

e
ri
a
l 
U

p
g
ra

d
e

2
3
,0

1
0

2
4
,6

6
9

1
,6

5
9

B
H

0
1
4
 -

 E
s
ta

te
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

1
1
0
,3

0
6

1
7
,0

8
2

-9
3
,2

2
4

9
3
,2

2
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
9
3
,2

2
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 f

in
a
lis

e
 w

o
rk

s
. 

L
is

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 a

n
d
 

te
n
d
e
r 

w
o
rk

/s
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

0
 w

o
rk

s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
.

B
H

0
1
9
 -

 W
in

d
o
w

 R
e
s
tr

ic
to

rs
4
,8

9
2

4
,8

9
1

-1

B
H

0
2
0
 -

 P
e
ri
o
d
ic

a
l 
E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
W

o
rk

s
2
1
0
,0

0
0

1
7
8
,0

9
7

-3
1
,9

0
3

3
1
,9

0
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
3
1
,9

0
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
. 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 o

n
 

s
it
e
.

B
H

0
2
1
 -

 N
e
w

 C
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
B

o
ile

rs
2
6
0
,0

0
0

2
0
4
,4

5
7

-5
5
,5

4
3

5
5
,5

4
3

5
5
,5

4
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
C

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

s
 d

u
e
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

B
H

0
2
2
 -

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

C
E

S
P

)
9
5
0

1
0
,7

7
5

9
,8

2
5

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

o
rk

s
 b

y
 E

o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 M

a
jo

r 
W

o
rk

s
 t

e
a
m

 t
o

 

c
o
m

b
in

e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
in

s
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

B
H

0
2
3
 -

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
G

a
s
 S

u
p
p
ly

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

1
0
0
,0

0
0

5
4
,4

5
0

-4
5
,5

5
0

4
5
,5

5
0

4
5
,5

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
C

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 g

a
s
 p

ip
e
 t

h
e
ft

s
 

B
H

1
4
0
 -

 D
is

a
b
le

d
 G

ra
n
t 

- 
M

a
jo

r 
R

e
p
a
ir
s

1
,7

0
5
,6

1
1

1
,8

2
4
,0

6
6

1
1
8

,4
5
5

D
is

a
b
le

d
 G

ra
n
ts

 o
v
e
rp

s
e
n
d
 i
s
 o

ff
s
e
t 

b
y
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 A

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n
d
.

B
H

3
0
2
 -

 D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s

1
6
7
,9

8
6

8
2
,8

5
5

-8
5
,1

3
1

B
H

3
0
4
 -

 C
o
m

p
le

te
 R

o
o
fs

7
1
8
,6

9
1

3
4
2
,5

8
2

-3
7
6
,1

0
9

3
7
6
,1

0
9

3
7
6
,1

0
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 r

o
o
fi
n
g
 w

o
rk

s
. 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 o

n
 s

it
e
. 

W
o
rk

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 d

u
e
 t

o
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
d
e
la

y
s
 a

n
d
 w

e
a
th

e
r

B
H

3
0
5
 -

 S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
S

u
rv

e
y
s
 &

 R
e
p
a
ir
s
 (

R
e
d
 C

ri
te

ri
a
)

2
1
8
,9

7
5

2
2
2
,2

2
5

3
,2

5
0

B
H

3
1
7
 -

 D
e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 P

o
o
r 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

1
2
,3

8
3
,3

5
7

1
2
,8

8
3
,4

7
5

5
0
0
,1

1
8

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 d

e
c
e
n
t 

a
h
e
a
d

 o
f 

s
c
h
e
d
u

le
.

B
H

3
2
1
 -

 D
o
o
r 

&
 W

in
d
o
w

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

2
6
,7

3
2

2
3
,2

3
7

-3
,4

9
5

3
,4

9
5

3
,4

9
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

B
H

3
2
4
 -

 G
a
s
 A

p
p
lia

n
c
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

- 
P

la
n
n
e
d
 P

tn
rs

h
ip

2
,1

0
0
,4

0
0

2
,1

0
0
,4

0
0

0

B
H

3
2
5
 -

 G
a
s
 A

p
p
lia

n
c
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

- 
R

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
5
0
9
,4

5
6

5
2
9
,5

6
0

2
0
,1

0
4

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 a

 l
a
rg

e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
g
e
d
 b

o
ile

rs
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
d

 t
o
 b

e
 

re
p
la

c
e
d
.

B
H

3
2
9
 -

 H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s

1
0
3
,4

1
8

1
1
1
,9

9
2

8
,5

7
4

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
s
b
e
s
to

s
 w

o
rk

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r.

B
H

3
3
8
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
V

o
id

s
1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

9
1
0
,4

4
3

-8
9
,5

5
7

8
9
,5

5
7

8
9
,5

5
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
C

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 v

o
id

s
 w

o
rk

s
. 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 o

n
 s

it
e
.

B
H

3
4
5
 -

 K
it
c
h
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

5
7
9
,8

8
6

5
7
3
,9

2
8

-5
,9

5
8

5
,9

5
8

5
,9

5
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 K

it
c
h
e
n
 w

o
rk

s
. 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 o

n
 s

it
e
.

B
H

3
5
1
 -

 D
o
o
r 

E
n
tr

y
 U

p
d
a
te

s
3
0
3
,2

8
5

2
5
8
,1

6
6

-4
5
,1

1
9

4
5
,1

1
9

4
5
,1

1
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 D

o
o
r 

E
n
tr

y
 w

o
rk

s
. 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 o

n
 

s
it
e
.

B
H

3
5
4
 -

 L
if
t 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

2
6
7
,2

1
6

2
8
7
,1

3
9

1
9
,9

2
3

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

lif
t 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s

B
H

3
6
4
 -

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 l
a
n
d

2
5
5
,2

2
8

1
2
8
,7

0
7

-1
2
6
,5

2
1

1
2
6
,5

2
1

1
2
6
,5

2
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

F
u
ll 

w
o
rk

s
 l
is

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 a

n
d
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

w
o
rk

/s
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

0
 w

o
rk

s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
.

T
o

ta
l 

fo
r 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
a
n

d
lo

rd
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
1
,4

9
3
,3

5
7

2
1
,2

1
1
,7

1
9

-2
8
1
,6

3
8

8
7
9
,7

7
9

0
8
7
9
,7

7
9

T
O

T
A

L
S

2
1
,5

8
2
,2

0
7

2
1
,2

9
1
,1

6
1

-2
9
1
,0

4
6

8
7
9
,7

7
9

0
8
7
9
,7

7
9

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
1
 1

2
(C

a
p
H

R
A

) 
2
0
1
2
 0

6
 2

2
.x

ls

C
F

R
0
 H

R
A

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

1

P
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 F

in
a
n
c
e

0
3
/0

7
/1

2

83



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: Public 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Listed on Forward Plan: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
11 July 2012 
 
No 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
No 
 
Resources 
 
Cllr Alan Bottwood 
 
n/a 

 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 To inform Cabinet of the Council’s outturn performance for 2011-12 monthly 

and quarterly performance indicators (1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012). 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That Cabinet note the contents of the report and recommends actions to be 

taken, if any, to address the issues arising. 
 
3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1 Performance data is collected across a range of locally developed indicators 

which are collected on a monthly, quarterly or annual basis and they form the 
basis of our performance monitoring process. Cabinet members receive 
detailed information on all the measures monitoring the Corporate Plan within 
their portfolios on a regular basis. 

Report Title Corporate Performance Outturn 2011-12 

Appendices 
 

 

Agenda Item 11

84



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

 

3.1.2. This report summarises the outturn performance data for 2011-12 (1 April 2011 
to 31 March 2012). The appended report details: 

 
Introduction – Summary of overall corporate priority performance 

 Part 1 – Performance overview by corporate priority – A performance 
dashboard overview for each of the corporate priorities and summary detail 
against the priority outcomes 

 Part 2 – Summary of all corporate measures performance by priority – 
Scorecards by priority detailing all corporate measure performance for the 
year  

  
3.2 Issues 
 
3.1.1 Progress against Corporate Plan priorities 
 

Overall, two out of three Corporate Plan priorities met their targets (blue or 
green status) and one priority shows red status. 68% of measures (where data 
is available) have met their targets. 

 
3.2.2 Overall indicator performance against targets 
 

• 53% of indicators have ‘blue’ or ‘green’ status and have achieved target 

• 15% of indicators have ‘amber’ status 

• 32% of indicators have ‘red’ status  
 
3.2.3 Data Quality 

The Council has processes in place to ensure that the data and information it 
provides to support management decision-making is as reliable as possible. 
The Council has a strategy to improve data quality and service areas are 
working to achieve the objectives within it. This is closely linked to the 
Council’s risk assessment processes and is monitored each month as part of 
the Council’s Performance Management Framework. 

 
3.3 Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 Cabinet are recommended to review the appended performance report 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 
 
4.1.1 A number of corporate measures are monitored on a monthly basis to track 

progress towards delivering our priorities, as detailed in the Council’s 
Corporate Plan. Service areas annually develop objectives, measures and 
targets to ensure the delivery of the Corporate Plan through the service 
planning process. The monitoring of progress is through the Performance 
Management Framework.  

 
4.2 Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1 The service areas Service Plans underpin the delivery of the Corporate Plan 

priorities. All objectives, measures and actions within the Service Plans are 

85



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/03/07/12  

risked accessed and challenged before final approval.  The challenge process 
includes the agreement of performance targets and the capacity / ability to 
deliver the plans with appropriate resource set aside to do so. 

 
4.3 Legal 

 
4.3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report 
 
4.4 Equality 
 
4.4.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report. 

 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 Heads of Service and Management Board are consulted as part of the 

performance monitoring process on a monthly basis. 

4.5.2 Performance data (financial and non financial) is published on the NBC 
website. 

 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 Performance monitoring (financial and non financial) by exception and using it 

to improve performance is good practice in terms of efficient and effective 
management.  It focuses on the key areas and therefore contributes directly to 
the 2011-12 priorities of ‘Being a responsive Council’ and ‘Providing quality 
Services’. 

 
4.7 Other Implications 
 
4.7.1 There are no other implications arising from this report. 

 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 Outturn Performance Report for 2011-12. 
 

Catherine Wilson, Head of Business Change 
   Resources - Ext 7103 

 
 

86



2
0
1
1
 -

 2
0
1
2
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

87



T
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 w
e
ll 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll,
 6

7
.8

%
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
m

e
a

s
u
re

s
 (

w
h
e
re

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

) 
re

a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 t
a

rg
e
ts

.

P
a
rt

 1
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
. 
A

 f
u
ll 

s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 b

y
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 c
a
n
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 i
n
 P

a
rt

 2
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
, 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 a

n
d
 2

0
0

9
-1

0
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o

n
. 

A
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 i
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
, 

d
e
te

ri
o

ra
te

d
 o

r 
re

m
a
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 
o

v
e

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

O
n

 o
r 

e
x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 t
a

rg
e

t

W
it
h

in
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
le

ra
n

c
e

O
u

ts
id

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

le
ra

n
c
e

P
a
rt

 1
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

A
re

 w
e

 a
c

h
ie

v
in

g
 o

u
r 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
?

 Y
O

U

 Y
O

U
R
 T

O
W

N

 Y
O

U
R
 C

O
U

N
C
IL

Y
T
D

T
o
ta

l

1
9
  

9
1
9
  

1
2
  

5
9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
le

rt
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 

1
6

88



 Y
O

U
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 y

o
u
 w

h
e

n
 y

o
u

 n
e

e
d
 i
t

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e

o
p
le

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
, 

a
c
ti
v
e
, 

g
re

e
n
 l
iv

in
g

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 
o
v
e
r 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

O
n
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
e
d

in
g
 t
a

rg
e
t

O
u
ts

id
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 
to

le
ra

n
c
e

W
it
h

in
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
le

ra
n

c
e

s

K
e
y

Y
o
u

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
-l

e
t 

c
o
u
n
c
il
 h

o
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 2

1
.3

2
 d

a
y
s
, 

b
e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
2
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 2

3
.6

1
 d

a
y
s
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 a
n
d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
s
. 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 2
7
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

to
 3

8
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
. 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
t 

w
a
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 
7
5
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
, 

2
,0

0
6
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 t

o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 t

h
e
ir
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

n
e
e
d
s
. 

D
C
L
G

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 p

la
c
e
d
 N

B
C
 t

h
e
 9

th
 b

e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 c

o
u
n
c
il
 f

o
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

In
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ro

u
g
h
 s

le
e
p
e
rs

 s
u
rv

e
y
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
, 

1
5
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
e
re

 f
o
u
n
d
 r

o
u
g
h
 s

le
e
p
in

g
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 f

o
u
r

la
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
, 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 N

A
A
S
H

 (
N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S
in

g
le

 H
o
m

e
le

s
s
),

 

w
a
s
 c

h
o
s
e
n
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 a

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
o
n
ly

 4
0
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 D

C
L
G

 f
o
r 

th
e
 '
N

o
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 n

ig
h
t 

o
u
t'
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 n

e
w

 r
o
u
g
h
 s

le
e
p
e
rs

 f
o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 d

e
b
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 f

a
m

il
y
 

m
e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 2

4
 h

o
u
rs

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

u
p
 t

o
 1

1
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

o
u
ld

o
th

e
rw

is
e
 b

e
 s

le
e
p
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

. 

1
0
1
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0
0
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 O

a
s
is

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

R
y
la

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 U

p
to

n
. 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 o

f 
n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
n
c
il
 t

a
x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

a
n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 9

.3
 

d
a
y
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 1

1
.3

 d
a
y
s
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
1
. 

A
 y

e
a
r 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 L

e
is

u
re

 T
ru

s
t 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

8
7
5
,0

0
0
 v

is
it
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

e
is

u
re

 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
, 

a
 3

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

F
o
o
tb

a
ll
 S

e
s
s
io

n
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

o
 w

e
ll
 w

it
h
 

9
,1

6
4
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 2

,0
5
4
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 e

n
ro

ll
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
Ju

n
io

r 
D

ir
e
c
t 

D
e
b
it
.

P
E
R
F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 S

U
M

M
A
R
Y

T
o
ta

l

1
0

6
2

9

Y
O

U
: 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

le
rt

 S
u
m

m
a
ry

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 

1
6

89



H
e
lp

in
g

 c
re

a
te

 a
 c

le
a
n

, 
g
re

e
n
 a

n
d

 s
a
fe

 N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n

D
e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 i
n
v
it
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

n
jo

y
a
b

le
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e
s

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 D

ri
v
in

g
 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a

 c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
t,
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
, 
s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
N

o
rt

h
a

m
p

to
n

 

 Y
O

U
R

 T
O

W
N

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 
o
v
e
r 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

O
n
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
e
d

in
g
 t
a

rg
e
t

O
u
ts

id
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 
to

le
ra

n
c
e

W
it
h

in
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
le

ra
n

c
e

s

K
e
y

Y
o
u
r 

T
o
w

n

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

u
s
e
u
m

 d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

g
a
ll
e
ry

 a
n
d
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 t

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
, 

o
v
e
ra

ll
 v

is
it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 w
e
re

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

t 
5
1
9
 m

u
s
e
u
m

 v
is

it
s
 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 t

o
/u

s
a
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

ls
o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
9
1
 

a
t 

6
3
5
. 

F
ro

m
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
, 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 L

td
 (

E
M

S
) 

b
e
g
a
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 D

a
v
e
n
tr

y
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
n
 a

 n
e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

re
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
li
v
e
ri

n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
, 

s
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
in

g
, 

p
a
rk

s
, 

c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 l
a
n
d
 c

le
a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

li
tt

e
r,

 d
e
tr

it
u
s
, 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a
n
d
 f

ly
 p

o
s
ti
n
g
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e

w
h
o
le

. 
A
ll
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 l
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 w

h
e
n
 s

a
m

p
le

d
 f

o
r 

li
tt

e
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
. 

S
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

li
tt

e
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

; 
4
.3

3
%

 o
f 

s
a
m

p
le

d
 a

re
a
s
 f

e
ll
 b

e
lo

w
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

li
tt

e
r 

(t
a
rg

e
t 

5
%

) 
a
n
d
 6

.4
4
%

 f
o
r 

d
e
tr

it
u
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

(t
a
rg

e
t 

8
%

).
 G

ra
ff

it
i 
w

a
s
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
%

 a
t 

2
.2

8
%

 o
f 

s
a
m

p
le

d
 a

re
a
s
 f

a
ll
in

g
 b

e
lo

w
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

 F
ly

-p
o
s
ti
n
g
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 0

%
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 

0
.6

1
%

. 
O

v
e
ra

ll
, 

c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 r

e
m

a
in

 g
o
o
d
. 

T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 a
n
d
 s

e
n
t 

to
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 4

8
1
k
g
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 4

9
7
k
g
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r,

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g

th
e
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
8
-9

. 
T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
 4

2
.3

7
%

 f
ro

m
 3

8
.7

7
%

 i
n
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 w
a
s
 s

e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
. 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r,

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
7
%

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

d
ry

 s
p
ri
n
g
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 l
e
s
s
 g

re
e
n
 w

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

r 
ro

ll
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 f

o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

F
o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
b
in

s
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 7

9
3
,8

4
1
 e

a
c
h
 

m
o
n
th

 t
o
 9

9
2
,2

9
9
. 

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 r
o
u
n
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

n
 m

is
s
e
d
 b

in
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
il
s
t 

th
e
 n

e
w

 

ro
u
n
d
s
 s

e
tt

le
d
 i
n
. 

O
f 

a
ll
 t

h
e
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
, 

0
.0

7
%

 w
e
re

 m
is

s
e
d
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 8

5
%

 w
e
re

 p
u
t 

ri
g
h
t 

in
 4

8
 

h
o
u
rs

. 
T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
,2

6
0
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll
. 

T
h
e
 f

o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
li
n
e
d
. 

 

O
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
, 

9
9
.3

5
%

 o
f 
fl
y
-t

ip
p
in

g
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 E

M
S
 w

e
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
w

o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll
, 

th
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
3
 w

e
e
k
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 9

8
6
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 8

3
8
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 

O
f 

th
e
 9

8
6
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

9
2
7
 (

9
4
%

) 
w

e
re

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
3
 w

e
e
k
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 2
7
6
 m

in
o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 2

3
5
 w

e
re

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 8
 w

e
e
k
s
 (

8
5
%

).
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

8
7
%

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
t,

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
ll
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
p
o
w

e
rs

 b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 W

N
D

C
 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1
. 

 

A
ll
 l
a
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 m
a
jo

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 W

N
D

C
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
 w

it
h
 p

o
w

e
r 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d

to
 N

B
C
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
m

a
ll
 s

c
a
le

 m
a
jo

r 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 y

e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 7
5
%

 t
o
 5

8
%

 d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
. 

N
in

e
te

e
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 w

it
h
 e

le
v
e
n
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
3
 

w
e
e
k
s
. 

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

P
E
R
F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 S

U
M

M
A
R
Y

T
o
ta

l

1
2

6
4

5
2
7

Y
o
u
r 

T
o
w

n

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 

1
6

90



y
e
a
r,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

m
o
re

 S
1
0
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
lo

n
g
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 6
9
1
 o

th
e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 6

2
2
 w

e
re

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 i
n
 8

 w
e
e
k
s
 (

9
0
%

).
 T

h
is

 w
a
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
3
%

. 
T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
 g

re
a
te

r 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
U

s
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 (

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

o
rm

 7
3
 t

o
 1

0
9
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r)

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

e
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
. 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

a
 1

0
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 a

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

 5
.6

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

ri
m

e
s
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 f
ro

m
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

o
n
w

a
rd

s
 w

it
h
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 s

e
e
in

g
 a

 

5
2
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 c
ri
m

e
 t

y
p
e
 c

a
u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 t

h
e
ft

 o
f 

it
e
m

s
 f

ro
m

 v
e
h
ic

le
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 s

a
w

 a
n
 1

8
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 S
e
ri

o
u
s
 a

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
 w

il
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 f

o
ll
o
w

in
g
 y

e
a
r.

  

O
v
e
ra

ll
 c

ri
m

e
 i
n
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 1

.5
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
. 

R
is

e
s
 i
n
 a

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

m
o
s
t,

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 v

e
h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
, 

ro
b
b
e
ry

, 
th

e
ft

/h
a
n
d
li
n
g
, 

b
u
rg

la
ry

 o
th

e
r,

 c
y
c
le

 t
h
e
ft

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
p
 l
if
ti
n
g
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 1

3
 e

v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
e
v
e
n
ts

 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 D

iw
a
li
, 

M
u
s
ic

 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l,
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
D

o
g
 S

h
o
w

 a
n
d
 C

h
ri

s
tm

a
s
. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

fi
v
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 h
e
ld

 i
n
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

a
rn

iv
a
l,
 U

m
b
re

ll
a
 F

a
ir

, 
B
e
e
r 

F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 D

ra
g
o
n
 B

o
a
t 

R
a
c
e
. 

T
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 f
o
o
tf

a
ll
 f

e
ll
 b

y
 6

.4
1
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
. 

T
h
is

 c
a
n
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 b
e
 a

tt
ri
b
u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
ri
d
e
 o

f 
L
io

n
s
 e

v
e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

o
f 

2
0
1
0
 w

h
ic

h
 a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 t

h
o
u
s
a
n
d
s
 o

f 
v
is

it
o
rs

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

in
c
le

m
e
n
t 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ll
e
n
g
in

g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 f
a
c
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

o
 7

7
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 

T
h
e
 f

re
e
 o

n
e
 h

o
u
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

w
e
ll
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 w

it
h
 7

0
,0

0
0
 c

a
r 

u
s
e
rs

 t
a
k
in

g
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ff
e
r 

s
in

c
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
.

P
E
R
F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 S

U
M

M
A
R
Y

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 

1
6

91



 Y
O

U
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

B
e

in
g

 a
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s

S
a

ti
s
fy

in
g

 o
u

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 
o

v
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

O
n
 o

r 
e

x
c
e
e

d
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t

O
u
ts

id
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
le

ra
n

c
e

W
it
h

in
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

le
ra

n
c
e
s

K
e
y

Y
o
u
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 t

h
a
t 

is
 i
n
 g

o
o
d
 o

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

8
0
%

 a
t 

8
4
%

. 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
5
%

 a
t 

9
8
%

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 o

n
 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 

to
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 

1
1
.8

8
, 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
0
.4

2
 F

T
E
 d

a
y
s
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

ra
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 

s
h
o
rt

 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
. 

O
v
e
r 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
 a

 c
a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

il
l 
b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 n

o
t 

o
n
ly

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
, 

b
u
t 

to
 a

ls
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

u
lt
u
re

, 
m

o
ti
v
a
ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff

, 
e
m

p
o
w

e
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
. 

F
e
w

e
r 

o
m

b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 e

n
q
u
ir

ie
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 (

1
5
) 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

2
0
).

 E
a
c
h
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
o
k
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
2
1
 

d
a
y
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t

o
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 o

m
b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
2
8
 d

a
y
s
. 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
g
u
la

rl
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
ir
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 o

u
r 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 

In
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
, 

9
1
%

 o
f 

th
o
s
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
. 

 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
ll
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 w

a
s
 8

8
%

, 
a
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 9

4
%

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 H
ig

h
e
r

c
a
ll
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 w

e
re

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 f
o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

o
u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 b

il
li
n
g
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

s
a
w

 a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
2
,7

0
0
 c

a
ll
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
a
it
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 1

5
 m

in
u
te

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 O

n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
5
%

 a
t 

8
5
%

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 

9
7
%

. 
C
ro

s
s
 T

ra
in

in
g
 h

a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
d
o
w

in
g
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

d
e
s
k
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

n
q
u
ir
y
 t

im
e
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

re
n
d
 d

e
s
p
it
e
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
. 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 1
5
 t

o
 3

0
 m

in
u
te

s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f

lo
o
r 

w
a
lk

e
rs

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 i
n
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

e
lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 i
n
s
ta

ll
in

g
 a

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 

fo
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 q

u
e
ri

e
s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
. 

 

T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

to
n
e
w

a
ll
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
n
d
e
x
 2

0
1
2
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

a
n
k
e
d
 

2
1
0
 o

u
t 

o
f 

3
6
3
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 S

to
n
e
w

a
ll
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

le
s
b
ia

n
, 

g
a
y
 a

n
d
 b

i-
s
e
x
u
a
l 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

ra
n
k
in

g
 i
n
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T
h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 O

p
in

io
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

7
3
%

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 s

ta
te

d
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

jo
b
. 

L
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 r
e
g
u
la

rl
y
 a

s
k
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 o

p
in

io
n
s
. 

In
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
, 

3
6
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
e
lt
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 

4
7
%

 f
e
lt
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

5
3
%

 a
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 r

u
n
s
 t

h
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 3

4
%

 f
e
e
l 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 n
o
w

 a
t 

q
u
it
e
 a

 p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 k

e
y
 t

o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

n
d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
n
g
 m

o
re

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 B
e
c
k
e
tt

s
 P

a
rk

 s
a
w

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
ri
n
a
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
m

e
n
a
d
e
. 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 n

e
w

 b
u
s
 

in
te

rc
h
a
n
g
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
. 

S
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 f

o
r 

S
t.

Jo
h
n
s
. 

N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 Z

o
n
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t

o
w

n
's

 w
a
te

rs
id

e
 a

re
a
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
1
. 

P
E
R
F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 S

U
M

M
A
R
Y

T
o
ta

l

6
3

9
5

2
3

Y
o
u
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 

1
6

92



C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 r

e
m

a
in

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 d

e
s
p
it
e
 t

h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
. 

9
7
.2

9
%

 o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 t

a
x
 w

a
s
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
7
.5

%
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

0
.1

4
%

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

ra
te

 f
o
r 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
y
e
a
rs

. 
T
h
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

tt
a
in

e
d
 d

e
s
p
it
e
 a

n
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

li
m

a
te

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
 a

u
s
te

ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

d
h
e
re

n
c
e
 t

o
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 r

e
te

n
d
e
ri

n
g
 o

f 
o
u
r 

B
a
il
if
f 

a
n
d
 D

e
b
t 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 A

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
. 

N
e
x
t 

y
e
a
r'
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

il
l 
b
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
s
 b

e
in

g
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

e
 w

il
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 r

e
fo

rm
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

. 
9
9
.7

4
%

 o
f 

n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 w

e
re

 c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
, 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
9
.6

5
%

 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 f

a
ir
 b

u
t 

fi
rm

 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d

th
a
t 

th
is

 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 w
il
l 
b
e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 d
e
fe

rr
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
.

T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

c
o
u
n
c
il
 h

o
u
s
e
 r

e
n
t 

lo
s
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
a
s
 1

.4
4
%

. 
W

h
il
e
 t

h
is

 d
id

 n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

ta
rg

e
t 

it
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 r

e
tu

rn
 o

f 
1
.8

7
%

. 
W

it
h
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 

e
m

p
ty

 a
t 

a
n
y
 o

n
e
 t

im
e
 i
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

re
n
t 

lo
s
t 

w
il
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
. 

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
t'
s
 r

e
n
ts

 w
a
s
 9

9
.8

7
%

. 
T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
li
g
h
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 a

n
d
 

b
e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 b
u
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

m
o
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

o
p
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

a
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
. 

T
o
ta

l 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
ts

 a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 t

o
ta

le
d
 £

1
,3

5
9
,8

3
5
, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

q
u
a
te

s
 t

o
 2

.9
7
%

 o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
c
o
ll
e
c
ta

b
le

 d
e
b
it
. 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f

ig
u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 3

.1
5
%

. 
 

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 
d
e
b
t 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

in
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
r 

o
v
e
rd

u
e
 w

a
s
 4

.4
3
%

. 
T
h
is

 w
a
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
7
.9

5
%

.

P
E
R
F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E
 S

U
M

M
A
R
Y

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 

1
6

93



E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
r 

o
v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

O
n
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t

O
u
ts

id
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 

to
le

ra
n
c
e

W
it
h
in

 a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
le

ra
n
c
e
s

K
e
y

G
o
o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o
w

: 
W

o
rs

e

G
o
o
d
 t
o
 b

e
 l
o
w

: 
B

e
tt
e
r

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

G
o
o
d
 t
o
 b

e
 H

ig
h
: 
W

o
rs

e

G
o
o
d
 t
o
 b

e
 H

ig
h
: 
B

e
tt
e

r

N
o
 d

a
ta

 o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 p

a
g
e
s
 d

e
ta

il 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
fe

e
d
  

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
.

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
q
u
a
rt

ile
 i
s

d
is

p
la

y
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
Q

u
a
rt

ile
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 'A

ll 
E

n
g
la

n
d
' d

a
ta

.

W
h
e
re

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
:

P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
: 
2
1
2
,1

0
0

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
: 
9
1
,9

7
5

P
a
rt

 2
: 

T
h

e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 t

h
a
t 

te
ll

 u
s
 h

o
w

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 u
n

d
e
r 

e
a
c
h

 p
ri

o
ri

ty

N
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

N
o
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 

1
6

94



 Y
O

U
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 y

o
u

 w
h

e
n

 y
o

u
 n

e
e

d
 i
t

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h
y
, 

a
c
ti
v
e

, 
g

re
e

n
 l
iv

in
g

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

0
1
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
-l

e
t 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o
m

e
s
 (

d
a
y
s
) 

(M
)

2
1
.3

2
2
2
.0

0
2
3
.6

1
2
3
.9

9
T

o
p

 Q
u

a
rt

il
e
.

Q
3

, 
H

o
u

s
e

m
a

rk
.

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

0
7
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

N
I1

5
6
) 

(M
)

3
8

7
5

2
7

9

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

0
9
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 f

o
r 

w
h
o
m

c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
d
v
ic

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 t

h
e
ir

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n

(M
)

2
,0

0
6

2
,0

0
0

2
,1

4
7

9
0
1

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
il

e
.

Q
3

, 
H

o
u

s
e

m
a

rk
.

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

1
0
 T

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 

s
le

e
p
in

g
 r

o
u
g
h
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 (
A
)

1
5

8
4

1
1

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
m

e
a

s
u

re
 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

e
a

c
h

 
y
e

a
r.

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

3
3
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 

c
o
u
n
c
il
 h

o
m

e
s
 (

N
I 

1
5
8
)(

A
)

?
4
6
.0

0
 %

?
5
1
.7

4
 %

A
w

a
it
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

lly
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
s
u

rv
e
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
.

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

3
6
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 (

N
I 

1
5
5
)(

Q
)

1
0
1

1
0
0

1
1
4

3
0
3

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 L
T
0
1
 T

o
ta

l 
V
is

it
s
 t

o
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

8
7
5
,5

6
7

8
5
0
,0

5
6

8
6
7
,5

0
3

8
5
6
,8

5
9

L
e

is
u

re
 T

ru
s
t 
P

I 
fr

o
m

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 L
T
0
2
 T

o
ta

l 
N

o
. 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 e
n
ro

ll
e
d
 i
n
 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
2
,0

5
4

2
,0

0
0

L
e

is
u

re
 T

ru
s
t 
P

I 
fr

o
m

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 L
T
0
3
 T

o
ta

l 
A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 t

o
 S

tr
e
e
t 

F
o
o
tb

a
ll
 S

e
s
s
io

n
s
 (

M
)

9
,1

6
4

9
,0

9
0

L
e

is
u

re
 T

ru
s
t 
P

I 
fr

o
m

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
1
 T

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t/

C
T
B
 n

e
w

 c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 -
 d

a
y
s
 (

M
)

9
.3

1
1
.0

1
1
.3

1
0
.2

U
p

p
e

r 
M

e
d

ia
n

. 
2
0

1
1

 -
 Q

3
 -

L
G

In
fo

rm
-

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

(1
0
-1

1
 t

o
 

1
1
-1

2
)

L
a
te

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
t

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 

1
6

95



H
e

lp
in

g
 c

re
a
te

 a
 c

le
a

n
, 

g
re

e
n

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

 N
o

rt
h

a
m

p
to

n

D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 i
n

v
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n
jo

y
a

b
le

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 D
ri
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

t,
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
, 

s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
N

o
rt

h
a

m
p

to
n

 

 Y
O

U
R

 T
O

W
N

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 C
H

0
4
 V

is
it
s
 t

o
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

M
)

5
1
9
.0

9
5
1
0
.1

5
6
0
2
.9

5
?

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 C
H

0
8
 N

o
 o

f 
v
is

it
s
 t

o
/u

s
a
g
e
's

 o
f 

m
u
s
e
u
m

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

M
)

6
3
5
.2

2
5
9
1
.9

4
7
2
2
.5

0
?

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
0
1
 N

o
. 

o
f 

m
is

s
e
d
 B

in
s
/B

o
x
e
s
 a

s
 a

 

%
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
0
.0

7
 %

0
.0

2
 %

0
.0

2
 %

0
.0

2
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
0
2
 N

o
. 

m
is

s
e
d
 b

in
s
 p

u
t 

ri
g
h
t 

in
 

4
8
h
rs

8
4
.9

2
 %

1
0
0
.0

0
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

 

R
e

p
o

rt
e
d

 f
ro

m
 J

a
n

 2
0

1
2

. 

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
0
3
n
 N

o
 K

G
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
, 

n
o
t 

s
e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
u
s
e
, 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

o
r 

n
o
t 

c
o
m

p
o
s
te

d
 (

M
)

4
4
,0

6
0
,5

5
0

3
0
,4

1
1
,3

1
1

4
5
,5

2
3
,7

0
9

4
6
,3

7
5
,5

6
1

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 2
0

1
0
-1

1
: 

L
o

w
e

r 
M

e
d

ia
n

. 
L

G
 I

n
fo

rm
, 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
0
4
 %

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
te

d
 (

N
I1

9
2
)

4
2
.3

7
 %

4
7
.0

0
 %

3
8
.7

7
 %

3
8
.2

4
 %

U
p

p
e

r 
M

e
d

ia
n

. 
2
0

1
0

-1
1
 L

G
 

In
fo

rm
, 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
0
5
 %

 o
f 

L
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 l
it
te

r 
fa

ll
in

g
 b

e
lo

w
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
l 
- 

L
it
te

r 
(N

I1
9
5
a
)

4
.3

3
 %

5
.0

0
 %

3
.0

0
 %

5
.0

0
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
0
6
 %

 o
f 

L
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 l
it
te

r 
fa

ll
in

g
 b

e
lo

w
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
l 
- 

D
e
tr

it
u
s
 (

N
I1

9
5
b
)

6
.4

4
 %

8
.0

0
 %

7
.0

0
 %

1
2
.0

0
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
0
7
 %

 o
f 

L
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 l
it
te

r 
fa

ll
in

g
 b

e
lo

w
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
l 
- 

G
ra

ff
it
i 
(N

I1
9
5
c
)

2
.2

8
 %

2
.0

0
 %

4
.0

0
 %

5
.0

0
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

(1
0
-1

1
 t

o
 

1
1
-1

2
)

L
a
te

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
t

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
1
6

96



S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
0
8
 %

 o
f 

L
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 l
it
te

r 
fa

ll
in

g
 b

e
lo

w
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
l-

F
ly

P
o
s
ti
n
g
 (

N
I1

9
5
d
)

0
.6

1
 %

0
.0

0
 %

1
.0

0
 %

2
.0

0
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
0
9
 %

 o
f 

F
ly

 T
ip

p
in

g
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 

n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
O

2
)

9
9
.3

5
 %

1
0
0
.0

0
 %

1
0
0
.0

0
 %

1
0
0
.0

0
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
1
0
 L

e
v
e
l 
o
f 

q
u
a
li
ty

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 -
O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 &

 P
a
rk

s

- 
L
it
te

r 
(%

)

1
.3

9
 %

5
.0

0
 %

5
.0

0
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
1
1
 L

e
v
e
l 
o
f 

q
u
a
li
ty

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 -
O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 &

 P
a
rk

s

- 
D

e
tr

it
u
s
 (

%
)

4
.5

1
 %

8
.0

0
 %

4
.0

0
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
.

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
1
2
 L

e
v
e
l 
o
f 

q
u
a
li
ty

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

-O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 &

 P
a
rk

s
 -

G
ra

ff
it
i 
&

 F
ly

 P
o
s
ti
n
g
 (

%
)

6
.2

5
 %

2
.0

0
 %

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
. 

N
e

w
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 2

0
1

1
-1

2

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 E
S
C
1
4
 N

o
. 

o
f 

ju
s
ti
fi
e
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

1
,2

6
0

1
,0

0
0

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

P
I 

fr
o

m
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
u

tt
u
rn

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 N

B
C

 d
a

ta
. 

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
is

 

m
e

a
s
u

re
.

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 N
I1

5
7
a
 L

M
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
'l
a
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

' 

m
a
jo

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 

1
3
 w

e
e
k
s
 (

M
)

0
.0

0
 %

0
.0

0
 %

0
.0

0
 %

0
.0

0
 %

A
ll 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 t
h
is

 

c
a

te
g

o
ry

 w
e

re
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 

W
N

D
C

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

in
g

 3
1

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

. 
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 p
a

s
s
e

s
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 

N
B

C
 a

s
 f

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
2

 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 N
I1

5
7
a
 S

M
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
's

m
a
ll
 s

c
a
le

'

m
a
jo

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 

1
3
 w

e
e
k
s
 (

M
)

5
7
.8

9
 %

7
5
.0

0
 %

7
5
.0

0
 %

1
0
0
.0

0
 %

n
/a

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 N
I1

5
7
b
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
'm

in
o
r'
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 8
 

w
e
e
k
s
 (

M
)

8
5
.1

4
 %

8
7
.0

0
 %

8
7
.1

5
 %

8
3
.2

4
 %

U
p

p
e

r 
M

e
d

ia
n

. 
Q

3
, 
2

0
1

1
, 

L
G

 
In

fo
rm

, 
A

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

(1
0
-1

1
 t

o
 

1
1
-1

2
)

L
a
te

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
t

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
1
6

97



B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 N
I1

5
7
c
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
'o

th
e
r'
 p

la
n
n
in

g

a
p
p
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 8
 w

e
e
k
s
 (

M
)

9
0
.1

6
 %

9
3
.0

0
 %

9
2
.8

9
 %

9
2
.0

4
 %

U
p

p
e

r 
M

e
d

ia
n

. 
Q

3
, 
2

0
1

1
, 

L
G

 
In

fo
rm

, 
A

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 P
P
0
6
 %

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 s

e
ri

o
u
s
 a

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 

c
ri

m
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
li
n
e
 (

M
)

5
.6

0
 %

-1
0
.0

0
 %

-5
.1

6
 %

N
e

w
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 P
P
0
8
 %

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 m

o
s
t 

s
e
ri

o
u
s
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
li
n
e
 (

M
)

-3
.8

5
 %

-5
.0

0
 %

-2
.4

0
 %

N
e

w
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 P
P
0
9
 O

v
e
ra

ll
 c

ri
m

e
 (

ro
ll
in

g
 f

ig
u
re

) 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 b

a
s
e
li
n
e
 (

M
)

2
0
,5

1
8

2
0
,2

2
2

2
0
,2

2
2

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 T
C
O

0
1
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
v
e
n
ts

 d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

: 
T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

Q
)

1
3

6
F

ir
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 T
C
O

0
2
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
v
e
n
ts

 d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

: 
p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 (

Q
)

5
6

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 T
C
O

0
4
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

in
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 (

Q
)

7
7

6
0

4
5

N
e

w
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 2

0
1
0

-1
1

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 T
C
O

0
5
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 T

o
w

n
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
r 

(Q
)

-6
.4

1
 %

2
.0

0
 %

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 T
C
O

0
9
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
o
rs

 r
e
c
ie

v
in

g
 

fr
e
e
 o

n
e
 h

o
u
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 (

Q
)

6
9
,4

6
5

5
3
,0

0
0

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

(1
0
-1

1
 t

o
 

1
1
-1

2
)

L
a
te

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
t

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
1
6

98



 Y
O

U
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

B
e

in
g

 a
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s

S
a

ti
s
fy

in
g

 o
u

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 A
S
T
0
3
a
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 

w
h
e
re

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
 o

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

(H
Y
)

8
4
.4

6
 %

8
0
.0

0
 %

7
3
.3

0
 %

N
e

w
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 B
V
0
0
8
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
g
o
o
d
s
 &

 s
e
rv

. 
p
a
id

 w
it
h
in

 

3
0
 d

a
y
s
 (

M
)

9
8
.0

6
 %

9
5
.0

0
 %

8
7
.0

9
 %

9
5
.4

7
 %

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 B
V
0
1
2
_
1
2
r 

A
v
e
. 

n
o
. 

o
f 

d
a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 

lo
s
t 

to
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

ro
ll
in

g
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

 

p
e
ri

o
d
 (

M
)

1
1
.8

8
9
.0

0
1
1
.4

6
1
1
.5

8

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 C
E
X
0
1
 T

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rm

e
n
t 

O
m

b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 F

ir
s
t 

E
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 

(c
a
s
e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
) 

(Q
)

1
5

2
0

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 C
E
X
0
2
 A

v
 n

o
. 

o
f 

d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it
h
 L

G
 O

m
b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 F

ir
s
t 

E
n
q
u
ir

ie
s
 

(c
a
s
e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
) 

(Q
)

2
0
.6

7
2
8
.0

0
F

ir
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 C
S
0
5
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(M
)

9
1
.1

6
 %

9
0
.0

0
 %

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 C
S
1
3
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
A
L
L
 c

a
ll
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 (

M
)

8
8
.0

2
 %

9
5
.0

0
 %

9
3
.5

7
 %

9
1
.4

0
 %

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 C
S
1
4
 O

n
e
-S

to
p
 s

h
o
p
: 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

a
ll
 c

u
s
t.

 w
a
it
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 1

5
 m

in
s
 

(e
x
c
l.
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
) 

(M
)

8
5
.1

2
 %

9
5
.0

0
 %

9
6
.9

6
 %

N
e

w
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 2

0
1
0

-1
1

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

(1
0
-1

1
 t

o
 

1
1
-1

2
)

L
a
te

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
t

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
1
6

99



B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 F
IN

2
7
 N

B
C
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

N
B
C
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

(M
)

£
4
4
3
,0

0
8

£
3
7
0
,0

0
0

£
4
6
2
,7

3
7

N
e

w
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 2

0
1
0

-1
1

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

0
4
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 v

o
id

 r
e
n
t 

lo
s
s
 (

M
)

1
.4

4
 %

1
.0

0
 %

1
.8

7
 %

M
e

d
ia

n
 Q

u
a
rt

il
e

. 
Q

3
, 

H
o

u
s
e
m

a
rk

.
N

e
w

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

1
2
 R

e
n
t 

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

re
n
t 

o
w

e
d
 o

n
 H

R
A
 d

w
e
ll
in

g
s
 %

 

e
x
c
.a

rr
e
a
rs

 b
ro

u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 (
M

)

9
9
.8

7
 %

1
0
0
.1

0
 %

1
0
0
.2

9
 %

M
e

d
ia

n
 Q

u
a
rt

il
e

.
Q

3
, 

H
o

u
s
e
m

a
rk

.
N

e
w

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

1
3
 R

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f

th
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
d
e
b
it
 (

M
)

2
.9

7
 %

2
.8

0
 %

3
.1

5
 %

M
e

d
ia

n
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

.
Q

3
,

H
o

u
s
e
m

a
rk

.
N

e
w

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
R
3
1
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 o

p
in

io
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 -

 s
ta

ff

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 c

o
ll
a
te

d
 

a
n
n
u
a
ll
y
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 (

A
)

7
3
.0

0
 %

8
0
.0

0
 %

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 H
R
3
2
 E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
n
d
e
x
. 

N
B
C
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
 

to
p
 2

0
0
 o

f 
S
to

n
e
w

a
ll
 r

a
n
k
in

g
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 

in
d
e
x
 b

y
 J

a
n
. 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

(A
)

2
1
0

2
0
0

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
4
 (

p
re

v
 B

V
0
1
0
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 d

u
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r,

 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 (

M
)

9
9
.7

4
 %

9
9
.6

5
 %

9
9
.6

5
 %

9
9
.1

6
 %

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
5
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 T

a
x
 C

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 R

a
te

 (
in

 

y
e
a
r 

c
a
s
h
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
t)

9
7
.7

0
 %

9
7
.6

0
 %

9
7
.1

5
 %

?

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

(1
0
-1

1
 t

o
 

1
1
-1

2
)

L
a
te

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
t

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
1
6

100



B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
6
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T

a
x
 

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
 (

M
)

9
7
.2

9
 %

9
7
.5

0
 %

9
7
.1

5
 %

9
6
.3

4
 %

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
il

e
. 

2
0

1
0

-1
1

, 
L

G
 

In
fo

rm
, 

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
7
 T

o
ta

l 
%

 o
f 

d
e
b
t 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
, 

n
o
t 

in
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
rd

u
e
 (

M
)

4
.4

3
 %

8
.0

0
 %

7
.9

5
 %

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
8
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 T

a
x
 D

e
b
t 

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
, 

a
s
 a

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
g
re

e
d
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

to
 c

o
ll
e
c
t 

(M
)

1
3
3
.0

6
 %

1
0
0
.0

0
 %

?
?

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
E
P
0
6
 %

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 f

e
e
l 
th

e
y
 c

a
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
li
ty

3
5
.6

0
 %

3
5
.6

0
 %

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
E
P
0
7
 %

 o
v
e
ra

ll
, 

h
o
w

 w
e
ll
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 

d
o
 y

o
u
 f

e
e
l 
a
b
o
u
t 

lo
c
a
l 
p
u
b
li
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
6
.9

0
 %

4
6
.9

0
 %

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
E
P
0
8
 %

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il
 r

u
n
s
 t

h
in

g
s

5
3
.5

0
 %

5
3
.5

0
 %

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
E
P
0
9
 %

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 f

e
e
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y
 (

V
F
M

)
3
3
.7

0
 %

3
3
.7

0
 %

F
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

O
u
tt

u
rn

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

(1
0
-1

1
 t

o
 

1
1
-1

2
)

L
a
te

s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
t

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
1
6

101



 T
: 

P
L
0
1
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 (

M
)

 T
: 

P
L
0
2
 J

o
in

t 
C
o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 (

M
)

 2
0
1
0
-1

2
 R

E
G

0
5
.1

 G
ro

s
v
e
n
o
r/

G
re

y
fr

ia
rs

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
 R

E
G

0
5
.6

 S
t.

 J
o
h
n
s
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r

 2
0
1
0
-1

2
 R

E
G

0
2
 B

e
c
k
e
ts

 P
a
rk

 -
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

 a
n
d
 2

P
ro

je
c
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

C
o
m

m
e
n
t

P
a
g
e
 1

6
 o

f 
1
6

102


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5a Overview and Scrutiny: Scrutiny Panel: Customer Services
	O and S

	6 Enterprise Zone- Rate Relief
	EZ Map

	7 Land at Sixfields - Development Strategy
	Appendix 1

	8 Land at Eagle Drive, Delapre
	Appendix 1

	9 Royal and Derngate
	10 Finance and Monitoring Outturn Report
	App1
	App 2 and 3
	App 4
	App 5
	App 6 and 7
	App 8
	App 9
	App 9a

	11 Corporate Performance Outturn report 2011/12
	Corporate Performance


